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SUMMARY OF KEY FIGURES

Ascom is an international provider of tailor-made “mission-critical” communication solutions. To 

us, mission-critical communication means development, sales and realisation of products and solutions, 

which optimally address time-critical needs and operate speedily, reliably and seamlessly even under 

extreme conditions.

Ascom is headquartered in Berne (Switzerland). Worldwide, more than 2,000 employees are 

working for the group. Registered shares in Ascom Holding Ltd. are traded on the SWX Swiss Exchange 

in Zurich (symbol ASCN).
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Close to the customer

With our own subsidiaries and local 

sales partners, we make sure that 

we are able to address your needs 

quickly and competently at all times.

Revenue by region 

nn Subsidiaries in 

 17 countries all over 

 the world.

nn Switzerland  26 %

nn Europe excl. Switzerland 63 %

 Germany 8 %

 France 8 %

 UK 7 %

 Netherlands 14 %

 Sweden 9 %

 Other European countries 17 %

nn USA/Canada 3 %

nn RoW 8 %

Share information

2006 2005 2004

Share price at 31. 12. in CHF 15.35 18.65 19.00

Market capitalisation in CHF 1,000 552,600 671,400 684,000

Nominal value per share in CHF 0.50 5.50 5.50

Performance in CHF
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Revenue by division

nn  Wireless Solutions 50 %

nn  Security Solutions 35 %

nn  Special Products 11%

nn  Corporate   4 %
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COMMON VALUES

Responsible, competent, talented, ambitious

Values that our people live by every day – for our customers. Combined with innovative products 

and reliable solutions that offer our customers new prospects.

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 COMMON VALUES
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Dear Shareholders

Ascom continued to consistently implement its de-

fined strategy during fiscal year 2006. Let me summarise 

the most important results of our Group: 

Incoming orders were up 9.1 % at CHF 614.8 million.

Order backlog rose by 24.6 % to CHF 244.4 million.

Altogether the two core divisions Wireless Solutions  

and Security Solutions recorded an increase of 9.5 % in incoming orders and of 36.5 % in order 

backlog.

Group revenue improved slightly to CHF 564.9 million, up 2.1 % year-on-year. 

EBIT rose to CHF 33.0 million from CHF 31.4 million in 2005.

Continuing operations posted a profit of CHF 33.2 million compared with CHF 28.0 million in 2005. 

Ascom recorded a Group profit of CHF 17.1 million for 2006.

These results, backed by strong incoming orders and a robust order backlog, are proof that 

Ascom achieved important successes with many customers, based on the innovative products 

and solutions that it offers through its two core divisions, Wireless Solutions and Security Solu-

tions. For the Group, there is potential for profitable growth over the next few years. Continuing 

operations posted a profit of CHF 33.2 million, corresponding to an increase year-on-year of CHF 

5.2 million. Discontinued operations posted a loss of CHF (16.1) million in 2006 due to the book 

loss from the sale of Network Integration Italy and losses posted by the Toll Systems unit, which 

is held for sale. Ascom reached a Group profit of CHF 17.1 million for fiscal year 2006. 

Looking back into 2001, Ascom recorded high loss and a net debt position that prompted a 

radical realignment of the Group at that time. The Board of Directors decided to systematically 

streamline the Group structure and to divest non-core business activities. In a further refinement 

of this strategy, the Board of Directors decided in autumn 2004 that Ascom should put a clear 

focus on mission-critical communication, concentrating on its two divisions Wireless Solutions 

and Security Solutions. As a consequence of this strategy, Ascom already achieved positive results 

again in fiscal year 2004. The divestments of non-core business activities, coupled with the sale 

of various properties in Switzerland, resulted in non-recurring profits from divestment in an 

amount of CHF 103.7 million for fiscal 2005. The divestment programme was largely completed 

during 2006, although with a book loss. 

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

MESSAgE frOM thE ChAirMAN Of thE bOArd

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD



3Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Today’s streamlined organisational structure and the sound financial base allow Ascom to 

grow organically as well as through acquisitions, and to achieve a sustainable increase in the 

Group’s profitability in future.   

Board of Directors and Executive Board

At the General Meeting of Shareholders on 6 April 2006, shareholders voted in favour of a 

par value repayment amounting to CHF 180 million and a dividend payment of CHF 10.1 million. 

The share capital was subsequently reduced by way of a reduction in par value per share from 

CHF 5.50 to CHF 0.50. In keeping with the principles of modern corporate governance, it was also 

decided to shorten the term of office of members of the Board of Directors from three years to 

one. Pierre Roy and Adrian Schmassmann were elected to the Board of Directors for the first time. 

On expiry of his term of office Beat Näf, who joined the Board of Directors in 2003, decided to 

resign and did not stand for re-election as a member of the Board of Directors. 

With effect from 15 February 2007, the Ascom Board of Directors appointed Fritz Mumen-

thaler, Head of Wireless Solutions, as Chief Executive Officer ad interim and Head of Security 

Solutions. In December 2006 Alberto Romaneschi, who was appointed Chief Financial Officer on 

1 September 2006, took over additional responsibilities for the Payphones and Toll units, includ-

ing the divestment process for these two units. 

 

The future of Ascom

In recent years Ascom has proven that its brand is strongly associated with innovation and 

superior quality. The Ascom brand is widely known and enjoys an excellent reputation among 

our customers. The strategic focus is now on ensuring the sustainable further development of 

the Wireless Solutions and Security Solutions divisions, enhancing its commercialisation capa-

bilities and accelerating growth. Ascom is aiming to expand its position as a technology leader 

in both areas through innovative products and solutions, and to strengthen its market position 

in selected countries and regions. The Company aims to achieve higher profitability and cash 

flows through growth in revenue and disciplined cost management.
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A word of thanks

Ascom’s success is based on good relationships with business partners, customers, employ-

ees and shareholders. I would like to take this opportunity to thank my colleagues on the Board 

of Directors and the members of the Ascom Executive Board for their strong commitment. Special 

thanks go also to our employees for their splendid efforts and wholehearted dedication. I would 

also like to express my thanks to our customers for their loyalty and to you, our valued sharehold-

ers, for the confidence you continue to show in Ascom.

With our clear strategy focused on mission-critical communication, we are well positioned 

to exploit opportunities in our markets and to leverage Ascom’s value-adding potential. 

Juhani Anttila

Chairman
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rEpOrt Of thE ExECUtiVE bOArd 

In 2006 Ascom reached important milestones on its path to sustainable and profitable 

growth. With the aim to accelerate growth in the Wireless Solutions division, the Company for-

mulated three principal measures: promote innovation, reinforce the sales force and strengthen 

the management team. On all three levels, we made significant progress in the course of 2006, 

which resulted in a substantial year-on-year rise in incoming orders and order backlog as well as 

a further increase in profitability. 

The priority for the Security Solutions division was on intensifying business activities and 

returning to profitable results at EBIT level. These goals were also reached with a strong increase 

in incoming orders and order backlog, and an EBIT of CHF 2.2 million.

Divestments were consistently and intensively pursued. In the course of the year under 

review, Ascom divested the business activities Network Integration Italy, Network Integration 

Germany, Powerline Communications, Manufacturing France (Ascodi Industries SA), as well as 

non-operational properties in Switzerland. As a result, the efforts to streamline the business 

portfolio are now largely completed, and the focus of Ascom on mission-critical communications 

with its two divisions Wireless Solutions and Security Solutions has become evident now.  

Wireless Solutions and Security Solutions 

Wireless Solutions posted an increase in incoming orders by 6.2 % to CHF 297.2 million com-

pared with CHF 279.8 million for the previous year. Order backlog rose by 21.3 % to CHF 70.7 million. 

Revenue growth was below expectations due to a decline of revenue in the OEM business as a 

result of price reductions and postponement of several large customer projects whose implemen-

tations have been rescheduled for 2007. Revenue increased overall by 2.5 % to CHF 285.9 million 

compared with CHF 279.0 million in 2005. For the year under review the operating result improved 

to CHF 32.4 million, corresponding to an operating margin of 11.3 %. By comparison, the division 

recorded an operating result of CHF 29.9 million in 2005 with an operating margin of 10.7 %. At 

EBIT level the division posted a profit of CHF 27.6 million compared with CHF 21.3 million in 2005, 

raising the EBIT margin to 9.7 % compared with 7.6 % for the previous year. 
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Security Solutions closed fiscal year 2006 with a healthy situation in incoming orders and 

order backlog. Incoming orders rose substantially by 13.8 % to CHF 243.1 million compared with 

CHF 213.6 million in 2005. The order backlog increased even more rapidly at a rate of 44.5 % to 

CHF 161.5 million. While revenue at CHF 195.0 million was some CHF 10.7 million lower than in the 

previous year, the result at EBIT level showed significant improvement. Several projects, particu-

larly in Central and Eastern Europe, were postponed and were therefore not recognised as rev-

enue in 2006. Systematic, tight cost management in areas such as IT and personnel, coupled with 

efficiency enhancement measures mainly in Traffic Security and TelcoNet Services, resulted in a 

sizeable reduction of operating costs. This enabled Security Solutions to achieve its targeted 

positive result and close 2006 with an EBIT of CHF 2.2 million at an EBIT margin of 1.1 %, compared 

with the previous year’s operating loss of CHF (2.1) million and an EBIT margin of (1.0) %. 

Special Products

Results for Special Products included the activities of Payphones, Manufacturing France and 

Real estate by year end of 2006. With the divestment of Manufacturing France in September 2006 

and various non-operational properties in June/July 2006, revenue in Special Products declined 

to CHF 69.2 million from CHF 76.2 million for the previous year. Revenue in Payphones rose by 

25.5 % to CHF 35.0 million while EBIT in this business unit remained unchanged at CHF 2.2 million. 

Altogether, the Special Products segment recorded a loss at EBIT level of CHF (3.0) million for 

2006, compared with EBIT of CHF 6.2 million in 2005. It should however be noted that EBIT in 2005 

included a non-recurring profit of CHF 6.2 million from the sale of non-operational property. 

Ascom will continue to seek new owners for the remaining business activities in Special Prod-

ucts.

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 

Ascom key figures 

CHFm 2006 2005

Incoming orders 614.8 563.3

Order backlog 244.4 196.2

Revenue 564.9 553.3

Operating result 33.0 17.1

EBIT 33.0 31.4

Profit continuing operations 33.2 28.0

Profit discontinued operations (16.1) 116.8

Group profit 17.1 144.8

Number of employees 2,082 2,386
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Group

At Group level Ascom recorded positive results due to good incoming orders and order 

backlog at Wireless Solutions and Security Solutions, and as a result of enhanced cost manage-

ment. For fiscal 2006 the Ascom Group reported incoming orders of CHF 614.8 million, order 

backlog of CHF 244.4 million, and revenue of CHF 564.9 million. This represents increases of 9.1 % 

in incoming orders, 24.6 % in order backlog and 2.1 % in revenue. The operating result virtually 

doubled in 2006 to CHF 33.0 million from CHF 17.1 million in 2005. EBIT for 2006 amounted to CHF 

33.0 million. Previous year’s EBIT of CHF 31.4 million included higher special effects in an amount 

of CHF 7.0 million from divestments of previous years, as well as CHF 5.0 million of higher profits 

from the sale of property. 

Group profit includes the results of discontinued operations (Network Integration Italy, 

Switzerland, Belgium and Germany, Transport Revenue, Powerline Communications, Toll France 

and Hong Kong). In 2005 these activities contributed CHF 116.8 million to Group profit, primarily 

due to non-recurring profits in an amount of CHF 97.5 million from the sale of large parts of these 

operations. For fiscal year 2006, these discontinued operations had a negative impact of CHF 

(16.1) million on Group profit. Ascom closed fiscal year 2006 with Group profit of CHF 17.1 mil-

lion.   

The ASCOM brand

In addition to the operating targets that we set ourselves for 2006, we also introduced 

initiatives to enhance the Ascom brand. In a dynamic process, which involved Ascom employees 

internationally and across all business units, we developed the brand values that Ascom repre-

sents. The new brand strategy is now implemented step by step. Ascom stands for a dynamic 

and highly innovative company that offers its customers solutions from a single source – from 

analysis, planning and integration right through to operation of products and solutions and as-

sociated comprehensive services. Moreover, Ascom fosters a corporate culture that embodies the 

values of responsibility, competence, talent and ambition. Ascom is a reliable partner for all of 

its customers.

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 

Revenue by division

n Wireless solutions 50 %

n security solutions 35 %

n special products 11%

n corporate 4 %

n switzerland  26 %

n europe excl. switzerland 63 %

 Germany 8 %

 France 8 %

 uK 7 %

 netherlands 14 %

 sweden 9 %

 other european countries 17 %

n usA/canada 3 %

n RoW 8 %

Revenue by region 
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Challenges ahead in 2007

2006 was a year of transformation for Ascom. The strategic divestment process is largely 

completed, and we can now concentrate our efforts on the ongoing development of the Wireless 

Solutions and Security Solutions divisions. 

In Wireless Solutions, we are aiming for growth primarily in North America and Europe. The 

US market offers the highest potential, and we are focussing our offer of VoWiFi, DECT and IP-

DECT solutions exclusively on workplace telephony applications, with particular emphasis on the 

healthcare sector with its rapid growth in infrastructure investments. We have further optimised 

our sales channels in order to improve our market position, and to this end have forged sales 

partnerships with Hill-Rom (a member of Hillenbrand Industries Inc., Indiana), Infologix Inc. of 

California, and the Presidio Corporation of Maryland. In view of our clear focus, we are confident 

that we can steadily gain market share in the US. 

Wireless Solutions is well positioned in Europe. We see in Germany, Italy, Spain and central 

Europe further potential. In both the healthcare and industrial sector, the trend in Europe will 

either be towards DECT standard or towards VoWiFi. The market opportunities for us in both 

technologies are very good, and we are ideally positioned to exploit the potential offered by the 

expected migration from existing DECT installations to VoIP (IP-DECT) installations over the next 

few years. With its range of new products and solutions, Wireless Solutions is highly competitive 

and, with its three sales channels, well-positioned to take advantage of market opportunities. In 

addition to direct sales via our own local country organisations and sales via OEM partners, Wire-

less Solutions intends to strengthen its indirect sales channel through Value Adding Resellers 

(VARs).

In Security Solutions we focus on specialised security systems for European customers. In 

addition to the strong market position we have held in Switzerland for many years, we have 

succeeded in gaining a foothold in markets in Northern, Central and Eastern Europe, where we 

intend to reinforce and sustainably expand our market position. Since these markets are ex-

pected to boost Ascom’s business significantly, we have enlarged our sales organisations and 

have trained our employees intensively. It is our goal to improve sales volumes substantially and, 

as a result, also raise our profitability. We have been working on the Russian market for some 

time, and expect to see a positive development of our business activities in this market during 

2007. For Mobile Test Solutions we have entered into a strategic alliance with Comarco Inc. of 

California, which will provide us with sales access to the US market and allow us to benefit from 

technology know-how in the area of CDMA. This alliance will also support the global expansion 

of our services offered by Mobile Test Solutions. 

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 
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In addition to the organic growth we will also consider acquisitions and strategic alliances 

during 2007. Any planned acquisition will be subject to clearly defined criteria. We are looking 

for healthy enterprises with an innovative technology base and good management. Any candi-

date considered must also strengthen our strategic focus on mission-critical communication. 

Acquisitions must provide us with access either to new markets, new technologies or new key 

customers. It is our aim to grow profitably in our focussed niche markets. In geographical terms 

our interest is primarily focused on Europe and North America.

Further development

Assuming the economy continues to flourish, we view Ascom’s growth prospects for the 

upcoming years as favourable. In the medium term our aim is to maintain customer satisfaction 

and achieve sustainable growth, attractive profitability and good cash flows.

Fritz Mumenthaler

Chief Executive Officer a. i.

Alberto Romaneschi

Chief Financial Officer
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Ascom’s corporate strategy is based on four pillars 

and focuses on creating sustainable values.

 

Mission-critical communication

Our business is to deliver solutions tailored to meet 

communication requirements in particularly challenging 

environments. Ascom products and solutions are deployed 

wherever permanent, comprehensive monitoring, rapid re-

action times, the highest security standards and reliable, 

error-free data transmission are essential. Our customers 

must be able to identify critical situations at an early stage 

so that they can respond immediately with the appropriate 

steps. Our solutions also help companies to reduce costs by 

ensuring optimal communications. 

Organic growth

Sophisticated, innovative products and solutions cou-

pled with geographical expansion are key to our company’s 

growth and sustainable development. We view North 

America, Europe and selected East European countries as 

the regions offering the best potential for stepping up our 

global activities. In a consistent pursuit of innovation we 

offer our customers state-of-the-art communication solu-

tions tailored to their individual applications and require-

ments, and integrated rapidly and cost-efficiently in their 

existing system environments by our teams of experts. 

Backed by motivated, creative employees and high-tech 

solutions, we enhance our competitive position.

Targeted acquisition policy

To ensure sustainable corporate success, we focus our 

acquisition policy on technology resources and distribution 

channels. Ascom is active in attractive niche markets that 

– in view of the rapid trend towards mobility and the grow-

ing need for greater safety and security – offer good po-

tential for growth. With the aim of further boosting the 

competitive position of Wireless Solutions and Security So-

lutions, Ascom aims to accelerate organic growth through 

targeted, strategically appropriate acquisitions, while at the 

same time further enhancing the Group’s profitability. 

 

Increased operational efficiency and consistent cost 

management

Ascom’s lean organisational structure benefits our 

customers and is being further optimised at Group and di-

visional levels. Short, efficient information channels allow 

us to react quickly and flexibly to changes in the market 

environment and to the different client needs.

COrpOrAtE StrAtEgy 

thE MiSSiON-CritiCAL COMMUNiCAtiON COMpANy 

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 CORPORATE STRATEGY
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Talent 

The talent inherent in our employees is invaluable. 

With their individual skills and expertise, they play a central 

role in Ascom’s success. Innovative solutions and products 

are created by talented people. At the same time, dealing 

with individual clients, requires also the talent to provide 

individual advice and support. Our specialists incorporate 

state-of-the art communication technologies in their devel-

opments, designing special functionalities that meet cus-

tomer requirements and are tailored precisely to individual 

customer environments. 

Ambition

We are ambitious. Our primary goal is to provide max-

imum customer satisfaction. Terms of business that are 

attractive not only to us at Ascom but also to our clients 

form the basis for developing a healthy and lasting relation-

ship. We will continue to invest heavily in order to enhance 

our technological advantage, expand our competitive posi-

tion and strengthen the Ascom brand.

The Ascom brand stands for innovative communica-

tions solutions and a corporate culture founded on clearly 

formulated values. We impress our customers with our su-

perior quality, speed, security and reliability. We want our 

customers to be successful. Our products, solutions and 

services help them to sustainably enhance their competi-

tiveness, productivity and efficiency. We are fully commit-

ted to customer satisfaction. To achieve our objectives, all 

Ascom units and employees act in accordance with the four 

brand values that form the foundation of Ascom’s corpo-

rate culture. Responsibility, competence, talent and ambi-

tion are the values we strive for in all our actions.

Responsibility 

We honour our responsibility. Reliability, integrity and 

trustworthiness are the cornerstones of our business and 

our actions. As an internationally active Group, we take our 

economic, ecological and social responsibilities seriously. 

We consider it important to achieve full client satisfactions, 

secure the corporate future of our Group, ensure the safety 

of our employees and use natural resources sparingly. 

Competence 

Clear customer focus, superior quality and first-class 

performance are the yardsticks by which we measure our 

competence. The close working relationship that our cus-

tomer account managers and engineering specialists enjoy 

with our clients builds up trust. We firmly believe that mu-

tual trust forms the basis of all successful relationship with 

a client. So, we make sure that we deliver what we prom-

ise. 

brANd VALUES 

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 BRAND VALUES
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SUStAiNAbiLity

Responsible actions

Responsibility is one of the four values behind the As-

com brand. As an internationally active Group, Ascom takes 

its economic, ecological and social responsibilities seriously. 

For us, responsible actions mean that we provide our offer-

ings with due consideration to the environment and safety 

issues. Training opportunities for apprentices, our em-

ployee’s safety and the protection of natural resources are 

as important to us as Ascom’s corporate future. 

Social responsibility

Ascom’s success is determined considerably by its 

employees. Day after day their skills, motivation and team 

spirit ensure that our customers are satisfied with our tech-

nologies, products and solutions. We offer our employees 

interesting tasks, opportunities for targeted further train-

ing, fair compensation structures and good social benefits. 

Added to this, we are committed to non-discrimination and 

equal treatment of all employees. We view the individual 

contributions of employees in their own function and with-

in the team as a pivotal element of our corporate culture. 

To ensure a high level of transparency and an understand-

ing of Ascom’s corporate goals, we foster a culture of open 

communication with employees, social partners, customers 

and suppliers. 

Professional training 

Ascom has long viewed the professional training of 

young people as one of its most valuable success factors. 

As a technology and industrial enterprise, we believe it is 

essential to employ people with outstanding skills and 

qualifications across the entire job spectrum (trained pro-

fessionals and graduates from universities, colleges and 

management schools). In Switzerland, companies are large-

ly responsible for the organisation and cost of vocational 

training. In view of the importance attached to this task, 

Ascom has defined vocational training as part of its strate-

gic human resources policy and personnel marketing. For 

us and the economy as a whole, providing young people 

with a basic vocational training (apprenticeship) is a long-

term investment and a systematic means of promoting and 

fostering young talents. 

Ascom, Swiss Post and login Berufsbildung jointly op-

erate a vocational training centre in Berne, where instruc-

tion is given to apprentices from these and approx. 40 

other partner companies. In recent years, the training cen-

tre has evolved to become a regional “centre of competence 

for technical professions”. In 2006 Ascom Switzerland pro-

vided training for 63 apprentices in the fields of electronics, 

design, IT, polymechanics and office administration. This 

corresponds to 9 % of our entire workforce in Switzerland. 

One key element of our training concept is the early 

integration of apprentices in practical work. By introducing 

them to existing structures at an early stage, they can rap-

idly contribute to productive work and enjoy a broad, com-

prehensive and practical basic training alongside their 

theoretical studies. Every year our apprenticeship plans and 

training modules are adapted to changing market require-

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 SUSTAINABILITY

Ascom switzerland apprentices by trade 2006

total number of apprentices in

switzerland 63

n polymechanic 14%

n electronic technician 48%

n Draughtsman 9%

n Administrative clerk 16%

n It engineer 13%
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The importance attached by Ascom to workplace 

safety and health is also exemplified by Ascom Switzer-

land’s conversion of a former galvanizing facility at the 

Bodenweid factory to create a warehouse and assembly hall 

during summer of 2006. This involved partial renovations 

and sealing. The project was approved by the relevant can-

tonal authorities and carried out on schedule by a company 

specialising in environmentally friendly renovations. Work-

place safety, health protection and environmental conser-

vation were important criteria, and great care was taken to 

comply with all the valid guidelines and regulations. Wher-

ever necessary, waste was recycled or disposed of in an 

environmentally friendly manner. The completed work re-

ceived the official seal of approval at the beginning of Oc-

tober 2006.  

Quality management

Quality management is a top priority at Ascom. Be-

cause our customers expect our products and system solu-

tions to deliver superior functionality, reliability and avail-

ability, we regularly review and improve all our processes. 

We also continually adapt our management systems to 

meet international standards. Ascom’s quality manage-

ment system is ISO 9001 certified in most Group compa-

nies.

ments and the latest economic trends. Ascom Switzerland’s 

vocational training scheme is ISO 9001:2000 certified as a 

comprehensive apprenticeship system: clear evidence of 

Ascom’s strong commitment to guaranteeing a high qual-

ity of training in office administration, electronics, polyme-

chanics and IT. 

Health and safety 

Safety is a key element of Ascom’s products and solu-

tions. At the same time, the safety and health of our em-

ployees is a major priority to us. We raise staff awareness 

of health protection and accident prevention through train-

ing and regular information. Working processes are con-

tinually reviewed in order to rapidly eliminate any potential 

risks. 

Ascom Switzerland regularly analyses employee ac-

cidents and compares the data with the Swissmem (the 

leading representative body of the Swiss mechanical and 

electrical engineering industries) sector index in an annual 

benchmarking process. For years the results have shown 

that the number of accidents at Ascom Switzerland is below 

the industry average. In 2006 the absence rate of 0.39% of 

total working time due to work-related and non-work-re-

lated accidents was once more well below industry aver-

age.
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employees by region Absence rate due to accidents in % of total working time  

Ascom switzerland

2005

2006

0 0.15 0.3 0.45

2004

0.6

total number of employees 2,082

n switzerland  36 %

n europe excl. switzerland 61 %

 Germany 5 %

 France 8 %

 uK 4 %

 netherlands 14 %

 sweden 20 %

 other european countries 10 %

n usA/canada 2 %

n RoW 1 %
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Environmental management

One of the ongoing challenges facing technical prog-

ress and the company’s operational management is to find 

ways of protecting and conserving natural habitats. Ascom 

currently engages in business activities that have a rela-

tively low impact on the environment. We have pledged to 

comply with the following: 

We take account of the various aspects of environmental 

protection.

The processes we use in developing and manufacturing 

our products and services are as environmentally friend-

ly as possible. 

We consistently strive to optimise our environmental 

management measures.

We encourage and motivate our employees to perform 

their tasks as responsibly and ecologically as possible. 

In line with our clear focus on mission-critical com-

munication, Ascom production facilities are mainly concen-

trated in two locations: Herrljunga in Sweden (Wireless 

Solutions Division) and Hombrechtikon in Switzerland (Se-

curity Solutions Division). For many years both locations 

have been implementing targeted energy-saving measures 

in order to control energy consumption effectively. During 

the financial year 2006, energy consumption in Hombre-

chtikon could be held on constant level. Owing to continu-

ous energetic and structural measures the energy efficien-

cy at this production location was increased since the year 

2000 by approximately 20 %. 

ß

ß

ß

ß

At the location in Herrljunga the energy consumption 

was lowered in the financial year 2006 by approximately 

15 % to 1900 MWh, although the production volume of  

finished elements increased from 70 million (year 2005) to 

73 million in the year under review.

Ascom has guidelines for waste recycling which stipu-

late clear separation of any waste materials. When it comes 

to processing electronic waste our production facilities work 

with specialised companies that use recycling processes to 

convert waste material into reusable products. In 2006 the 

recycling ratio at our Hombrechtikon site was once more at 

the high level of previous years. Some 57 % of the waste 

material was returned to the material flow and 43 % was 

disposed of using the environmentally friendly thermal re-

cycling process.

Lead-free soldering processes

Since the RoHS (Restriction of the use of Hazardous 

Substances) guidelines came into force on 1 July 2006, prod-

ucts containing materials hazardous to the environment 

may no longer be sold. At the same time, strict regulations 

govern the disposal of electronic and electrical equipment. 

Ascom’s production facilities in Herrljunga and Hombre-

chtikon are fully compliant with the RoHS guidelines. All 

Wireless Solutions products contain neither lead, cadmium, 

chrome-6, PBB, PBDE nor mercury, and soldering processes 

are also completely lead-free. Security Solutions also devel-

ops and manufactures products that contain no hazardous 

substances and are suitable for recycling. Various produc-

tion and logistics processes at Hombrechtikon were modi-

fied back in 2005, and soldering at this site, too, has been 

completely lead-free since January 2006.
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energy consumption in mWh

n Hombrechtikon   

n Herrljunga

2005

2006

0 1,250 2,500 3,750

2004

5,000
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The rejected heat is recovered and fed back into the heat-

ing system, thereby saving additional energy costs. 

The controls enable automatic activation and deactiva-

tion of the compressors at weekends and on holidays, 

once more helping to save on energy costs.

Thanks to installation of the screw compressor, for-

merly theoretical calculations for energy savings are now 

more than fulfilled. Combined with other economising mea-

sures such as automatic light regulators and low-energy 

lighting, the new system has had a positive impact on en-

ergy consumption in the year 2006.  

ß

ß

An example of energy-saving measures

Ascom’s Hombrechtikon site has been a member of 

the Zurich Energy Model since 1998. The aim of this asso-

ciation is to achieve a 13 % increase in energy efficiency by 

2010 (with the year 2000 as the starting point) vis-à-vis the 

canton of Zurich and the Confederation, and to reduce CO
2
 

emissions by 36 % (with 1990 as the starting point). Thanks 

to various investments and improvements made by Ascom 

in recent years, the company is on track to meet these tar-

gets. One example of how targeted investment in energy-

saving measures also offers practical advantages is our new 

pressurised air system.

Industrial production facilities operated by Ascom 

Switzerland and by tenant companies at our Hombrechtikon 

site use two main sources of energy: electricity and com-

pressed air. At a cost of CHF 0.03 – 0.04 per cubic meter, 

compressed air is a relatively expensive energy. Three com-

pressors feed the compressed air network so as to ensure 

a continual supply of compressed air and guarantee unin-

terrupted production even if one compressor unit fails. Dur-

ing a routine overhaul of the compressed air system in 

November 2003, a potential defect was identified in one of 

the compressors. Rather than engaging in costly repairs a 

decision was made to purchase a new screw compressor 

with a master controller. The new compressor was installed 

in 2004 and offers the following benefits: 

Quiet operation, long life and lower maintenance costs.

Flexible production volumes due to automatic rpm (revs 

per minute) regulation. This reduces the number of 

switch-off cycles, thereby decreasing energy costs. 

Thanks to optimised controls, all compressors can be op-

erated interchangeably and at lower pressure, which 

again results in energy savings.

ß

ß

ß
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A SOLUtiON fOr fUtUrE grOwth
At the Sentara hospitals in Virginia, USA, nurses praise the Ascom i75 handset functionality 

and ease of use while the IT staff endorses the solution because of the 802.11b/g handset and the 

fact that it’s the only VoWiFi system that is completely standards-based.



 18 Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 WIRELESS SOLUTIONS

SAfEty fOr hOSpitAL StAff
Location – Centre hospitalier Spécialisé du gers in Auch, france. the hospital chose          

an ip-dECt solution for three reasons: it fulfilled the loneworker protection needs (following 

several attacks on psychiatric sites), was in phase with the deployment of a new network 

infrastructure, and the security of dECt technology.
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wirELESS SOLUtiONS

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 WIRELESS SOLUTIONS

“The significant investment in training that I received 

from Ascom in Solution Selling made a major difference 

when competing for the Sentara Healthcare business.  

The quality of our Freeset telephony system in one of  

their hospitals gave Sentara the confidence to try our  

new FreeNET VoWiFi platform. In the end, the robustness 

of our i75 handset gave Ascom its first FreeNET VoWiFi 

win. I am very proud to have been a part of such a huge 

accomplishment in Ascom’s history.” 

Chris Morant, Director, Hospital Solutions

“It has been quite an experience to be responsible for the 

installation of the IP-DECT platform. Together with a team  

of talented engineers who devoted themselves to the  

assignment we managed to meet the expectations of the 

customer and made this new technology solution work.”

Cyril Dufresne, Pre-sales engineer and project manager 
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An Overview on Wireless Solutions

Ascom Wireless Solutions is the leading specialist in 

wireless on-site communication solutions in commercially 

used buildings and on industrial sites. 

We fulfil a clear mission: “To create value for our cus-

tomers by providing them with competitive solutions for 

on-site wireless communication – voice and professional 

messaging – to support and optimize their mission-critical 

processes.” 

As a leader in enterprise mobility, we offer the most 

comprehensive portfolio of products, systems, solutions 

and services for mission-critical wireless communication in 

enterprises:

Wireless communication systems for voice and profes-

sional messaging

Specific applications, customized to the customers’ 

needs

Integration of our systems into the customers’ (system-) 

environments

We also have a clear and distinct positioning:

Ascom Wireless Solutions concentrates on selective mar-

ket segments, mainly hospitals, elderly care, industry, 

retail, secure establishments and hotels

We are an integral supplier of work place telephony, pag-

ing and nurse call

We are a global player in mobility for work place tele-

phony, making use of different technologies such as DECT, 

IP-DECT and VoWiFi. We provide “best-fit-technology”, i.e. 

we work closely together with our clients to evaluate 

which technology offers the best means of covering the 

specific user requirements.

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

During 2006, we made substantial progress in the 

implementation of our strategy. We introduced new prod-

ucts, refreshed part of our existing product offering, and 

enhanced operational efficiency by applying rigorous finan-

cial discipline. At the same time, we continued to build a 

strong management team to position our division for the 

next phase of innovation, growth and profitability.

Key figures Wireless Solutions

CHFm 2006 2005 2004

Incoming orders 297.2 279.8 283.8

Order backlog 70.7 58.3 57.8

Revenue 285.9 279.0 273.8

Operating result 32.4 29.9 38.8

EBIT 27.6 21.3 22.6

EBITDA 35.9 34.1 42.4

Number of employees 1,156 1,194 1,140
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Ascom Wireless Solutions markets its offering in three 

distinct channels

Direct Channel (Systems, Solutions and Services)

Products, Systems, Customized Solutions  

(e.g. Integrations, Applications), Project management,  

Commissioning and Services

managed by the local Country Organizationsß

Indirect Channel (Products and Standard Systems)

Products and Standard Systems through local Value Adding 

Resellers (VARs)

managed out of the Headquarters of the Divisionß

OEM Channel (Terminals)

DECT Terminals, IP-DECT (incl. fixed radio equipment), VoWiFi 

Terminals for work place telephony (“Enterprise”)

managed out of the Headquarters of the Divisionß
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Business results 2006 

For fiscal year 2006, Ascom Wireless Solutions’ incom-

ing orders increased by 6.2 % compared to the previous year 

and reached CHF 297.2 million. The major contributors to 

this growth were the US, the Netherlands, Switzerland, Bel-

gium, Belgium, Sweden and Italy as well as with interna-

tional salespartners. The US grew its orders by 30 %, the 

European countries combined grew incoming orders by 7 %.

In 2006, we generated revenue of CHF 285.9 million, 

compared with CHF 279.0 million in 2005. Sales from the 

direct channel, managed by our wholly owned subsidiaries 

rose by more than 5 %. This sales channel contributed over 

85 % of total revenue of our division. Overall growth was 

impacted by a decline in the OEM business, which was main-

ly due to price decreases at more or less stable volume of 

devices sold. As a result, our overall revenue growth was 

lower than expected at around 2.5 %.

 In view of the high pace of technological innovation, 

the expenses for research and development could be even 

lowered a little for the year at CHF 20.1 million. To improve 

our productivity, we streamlined the existing product range 

and reduced the number of variants by half. With disci-

plined cost management and productivity improvements 

throughout all operations in the different countries, our 

functional costs remained at the level of the previous year. 

EBIT in 2006 amounted to CHF 27.6 million representing an 

EBIT margin of 9.7 %, compared with CHF 21.3 million and 

margin of 7.6 % in 2005.

Outlook

Wireless Solutions has made further steps to strength-

en its position in the global market of enterprise mobility. 

By successfully deploying our VoWiFi solution and our DECT 

offering in North America, we have made important steps 

towards our goal to establish Wireless Solutions as a world 

leader in on-site, mission-critical communication. Our range 

of products, solutions and services is new and very com-

petitive and this should result in further growth and profit-

ability. Ascom Wireless Solutions is well positioned in all the 

three of its sales channels – direct sales channel, indirect 

sales channel and OEM sales channel. The management 

teams in the countries as well as the one at our divisional 

headquarter were strengthened. 

So far all the improvements seen during the previous 

year were achieved by organic growth. To further gain mar-

ket share and speed, carefully selected acquisitions shall 

accelerate the process of successful business development 

for the division. For 2007, our financial objectives are rev-

enue growth of around 5 % and EBIT margin of between 

8 – 10 %. Our mid to long-term targets, excluding any impact 

from potential acquisitions, are an annual revenue growth 

rate of 5 – 10 % and EBIT margin of between 9 – 11 %.

Revenue by region Revenue by segment
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new and improved functionality ensures that messages are 

distributed and received far quicker and it guarantees that 

vital communications – “mission-critical communication” 

– are maintained, particularly during emergencies. GEM en-

sures that messages or alarms can be received by groups 

of individuals, such as trauma teams, prison guards or se-

curity personnel, simultaneously, without delay and with-

out confusion – absolutely crucial in a life threatening situ-

ation like a fire, a prison disturbance or when a patient 

needs resuscitation.

Given its strong position in healthcare and in elderly 

care, and given the need to economically manage funds in 

these segments, Narrow Band Paging and Personal Alarm-

ing is still a very much appreciated and proven “lower cost” 

solution to wireless communication. Ascom Wireless Solu-

tion continued to refresh and renew part of its very suc-

cessful product offering by bringing a new personal alarm 

device, the a51 to the market and thereby proving its com-

mitment to its existing customers. 

As a world premiere, Ascom Wireless Solutions 

launched a Bluetooth module which is integrated in our Of-

ficeM handset. It thereby brought Bluetooth technology for 

the first time to professional DECT users. The module allows 

the use of several different headsets for different environ-

ments and its installation can easily be made by the user. 

Ascom Wireless Solutions made substantial steps with 

regard to innovation during 2006. Bringing an IP-DECT solu-

tion to the market and SIP enabling our VoWiFi offering, 

reflects the trends of enterprise telephony systems moving 

towards VoIP and the rapidly increasing WLAN penetration 

of enterprises across the world. As a matter of fact, in 2006 

for the first time ever, more IP-PBX were sold and installed 

globally than traditional circuit switched PBX.

Ascom Wireless Solutions has a large installed base of 

worldwide more than 70,000 installed systems. IP-DECT of-

fers excellent opportunities to migrate legacy mobility com-

munication systems towards the new technology and 

thereby protecting the customer’s former investments. 

In December 2006, Ascom Wireless Solutions’ VoWiFi 

handset Ascom i75 was certified by Cisco for SIP interoper-

ability. This opens a whole new field for us and positions us 

for even further reaching partnerships as our VoWiFi mobil-

ity solution will now help driving sales for any kind of SIP 

enabled IP-PBX. 

Our core offering of Professional Messaging will be a 

natural part of converged applications – our Unite platform 

will become a professional complement to Microsoft’s 

“MSN” and the introduction of “Collaborative IT systems” 

fits very well with our Professional Messaging concept.

Enhancing our Professional Messaging Platform 

“Unite”, we also provided our customers in industry, health-

care and in correctional institutions with the latest broad-

cast and multicast messaging capabilities through our 

Group Enhanced Messaging (GEM) feature package. This 
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North America

There are a number of reasons, why we believe that 

our biggest potential for growth is in the North American 

Market.  

Penetration for on-site wireless voice solutions in enter-

prises in North America is far lower than in Europe. 

The widespread deployment of Wireless LAN technology 

has helped to kick-start penetration of VoWiFi in the US 

much faster than in Europe. 

About one year ago the FCC endorsed the DECT standard 

(slightly different frequency than EU). 

Last, but not least, Ascom Wireless Solutions (US) cur-

rently has a relatively low market share due to its late 

entry into the on-site wireless market in North America.

Our focus in North America is work place telephony 

only. Our offerings include VoWiFi (“FreeNET”), DECT (Free-

set DECT 1900) as well as IP-DECT. We currently have the 

strongest target market in the healthcare industry which 

sees high growth in infrastructure expenditures. 

In April 2006, we launched our FreeNET offering - the 

Ascom i75 VoWiFi handset in combination with our Unite 

Messaging Suite and our Portable Device Manager – and 

this was undisputedly a success. In order to ramp-up the 

distribution of our VoWiFi offering in an optimal way, As-

com (US) Inc. managed to sign up more than 20 new dis-

tributors across the US and Canada under a new partnership 

program for system integrators. Before year end, numerous 

systems have been installed and often won in head-to-head 

field trials against competition from the more established 

players. Most of those systems were deployed on access 

points from Cisco/Airespace, but successful field tests have 

proven that Ascom’s offering is interoperable with the in-

frastructures from Meru, Trapeze, Symbol and Aruba.

ß

ß

ß

ß

Ascom Wireless Solutions won a major VoWiFi deploy-

ment at Baptist Health South Florida (BHSF) in Miami. The 

first system has been deployed in the Doctors Hospital, 

which is a 281 bed hospital with over 18,000 emergency 

room visits each year. BHSF chose the Ascom i75 VoWiFi 

handset based on its robust design, extensive feature set 

and integration capability. BHSF plans to replace three 

thousand 900 MHz wireless phones across their six hospital 

campus with the Ascom FreeNET i75 standards based device 

during 2007. Once installed over the six hospital organiza-

tion, the BHSF VoWiFi system will be one of the largest Vo-

WiFi deployments in the US.

In parallel Ascom Wireless Solutions also introduced 

its Freeset DECT 1900 offering in the US and enjoyed very 

fast success mainly in the healthcare industry, but also in 

the manufacturing industry. Especially the proven rugged 

Ascom 9d24 handset has enjoyed great enthusiasm with 

American users. Migrations from PWT were also discussed 

and quoted and will for sure help to build future business 

in the US. With two completely new product lines, FreeNET 

and Freeset DECT 1900, Ascom is optimally positioned to 

quickly capture market share in its target segments. This 

was underlined by the recent acceptance of Ascom (US) Inc. 

into the AVAYA DevConnect Program on the Gold Partner 

Level.

MArKEt SUCCESS
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Indirect sales channel

Ascom Wireless Solutions was successful in 2006 

again in expanding its business through independent dis-

tributors all across the world. With the concept of multi-

channel distribution in selected markets as well as with a 

new concept for Ascom Certified Sales Partners, the pene-

tration of new markets gained momentum. Especially in 

Australia and in Southern Europe progress was made.  

OEM sales channel

Our OEM business is primarily based on the longstand-

ing strong relationship with Ericsson. In 2006, the enterprise 

business has regained strategic importance within Ericsson 

and due to the launch of new IP-based enterprise switches, 

the volume development of DECT products has been above 

expectations. As a consequence of this, the order intake 

particularly during the last quarter of 2006 has become 

stronger again.

Having introduced new products in Ericsson, including 

Protector and ATEX versions of the 9d24 handset as well as 

a handset portfolio for the US market, Ascom Wireless Solu-

tions is confident about the business development for the 

coming 12 months.

The sales of rugged DECT handsets to our second larg-

est OEM customer Aastra have also developed according to 

plan. On the basis of new product introductions at the end 

of 2006 Ascom Wireless Solutions expects the business to 

show a positive development during the next 12 month pe-

riod.

Europe

Europe is clearly the stronghold of Ascom Wireless 

Solutions. Our undisputed leading market position as a sup-

plier in DECT Enterprise mobility, our strong relations with 

a few selected OEMs as well as our strong distribution arm 

through the fully owned subsidiaries make us a major play-

er in this challenging market. 

In Europe, the penetration for wireless communication 

is high. On-site paging is still commonly in use – in health-

care as well as in other segments. For work place telephony, 

the dominant standard is clearly DECT. High functionality is 

requested. The acceptance of VoWiFi in Europe was during 

2006 rather slow.

As it is expected that either VoWiFi or DECT will serve 

the majority of the enterprise users (healthcare and indus-

try), we see very good opportunities for our DECT offering 

and an excellent potential for our IP-DECT solutions. Given 

the large installed base of DECT and given the current re-

placement of traditional PABX by IP-PBX (VoIP in the fixed 

net) a substantial migration potential is expected to mate-

rialize in the coming 2 to 3 years for which Ascom is opti-

mally positioned also due to its integration capabilities with 

legacy PBXs. 

The market share of Ascom Wireless Solutions in Eu-

rope is currently estimated at over 20 % and improved com-

pared to fiscal year 2005. In 2006 Ascom Wireless Solutions’ 

strong field organizations in the Netherlands, Sweden, 

France, Norway and in Belgium all gained market share 

while the business in the other countries grew in line with 

the market. In Germany first successes in accelerating the 

growth pattern were seen. For our field organizations the 

key competitive advantage is the ability to integrate with 

existing IT and communication infrastructure as well as with 

other systems and applications. Differentiating with dedi-

cated solutions and services for clearly defined customer 

segments, such as healthcare, elderly care, industry, retail 

and secure establishments continues to be an important 

success factor. Ascom Wireless Solutions’ offering in Nurse 

Call clearly underlines that. 
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We were very pleased to add two new OEM customers 

during 2006. With our German partner Innovaphone, Ascom 

Wireless Solutions agreed to engage in a OEM relationship 

for the VoWiFi portfolio. The second new OEM customer, 

also based in Germany, is Swyx, a company specialized in 

the development and sales of a pure IP-PBX (SwyxWare). 

Ascom Wireless Solutions and Swyx have reached an agree-

ment on the distribution of IP-DECT infrastructure and 

handsets.

Furthermore, we are also testing our VoWiFi offering 

with a number of other potential OEM partners.

 

Other market success

In June 2006, the VoWiFi handset Ascom i75 success-

fully passed the Cisco certification test and became the first 

VoWiFi handset with Cisco Compatible Extension (CCX) test 

approval. By this CCX certification the handset is available 

for the Cisco channels and is displayed on Cisco’s website. 

In October 2006, Wireless Solutions had its Unite messaging 

platform tested and certified according to Cisco’s CTDP cer-

tification (Cisco Technology Development Program) for 

interoperability with the Cisco Call Manager and Cisco IP 

phones. And in December 2006, the Ascom i75 was verified 

for SIP compatibility towards Cisco’s Call Manager.

Products, Systems & Solutions 

Our newly introduced Ascom a51 is a unique product 

with dual mode positioning as well as several alarm options 

(push button, man down, no movement and pull-cord). This 

is also the first product in a range that will be fully linked 

to the new IP Paging infrastructure that is under develop-

ment. Ascom Wireless Solutions is determined to rejuve-

nate the paging and personal alarm industry with IP tech-

nology in the same manner as the telecom business is see-

ing the VoIP solutions coming into the traditional PBX world. 

The Ascom a51 is the first product in a complete new range 

of portables and fixed equipment that will be the most 

modern and up to date narrow band paging portfolio.

The IP paging concept brings the internet to the pag-

ers, each unit can be assigned a unique IP identity and even 

an email address. The fixed paging infrastructure is mi-

grated to a TCP/IP backbone and is fully integrated into 

Ascom Wireless Solutions’ UNITE professional messaging 

platform. This ensures a constant accessible from any IP 

connected device or system and, at the same time, more 

than doubles the data rate and capacity. A well designed 

transition path exists for the large installed base to ensure 

a smooth transition. 
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The Portable Device Manager, which comes as an em-

bedded appliance or a windows based version, gives a com-

plete control of all wireless devices for SW download or user 

configuration. The appliance version also gives the unique 

“virtual SIM” and “shared phone” concept to the users. Any 

user can take any phone and by means of a pin code trans-

form it to his or her personal or assigned task device, com-

plete with all settings without the need of any support 

personnel. This concept will change the whole maintenance 

set-up and reduce cost and down time. The first version of 

the PDM is targeting the VoWiFi product range.

The new VoWiFi portable i75 was successfully launched 

and is being deployed in increasing numbers. The challenge 

to have good interoperability with the major WLAN infra-

structure vendors has been a focus area for the R&D labs 

during the year. The WLAN industry has undergone a dra-

matic change and matured during the last year. Many new 

features have been incorporated that enhance security, QoS 

and Voice. Today the i75 is certified towards the Cisco, Aru-

ba and Meru infrastructures. Extensive testing and fine tun-

ing is currently done to include more vendors to this list.

IP-DECT

During 2006, Ascom Wireless Solutions launched the 

first products in its new IP-DECT product family. IP-DECT 

combines the proven DECT radio standard with the new 

VoIP technology. This enables our customers to migrate 

over to VoIP and still keep the installed DECT mobility sys-

tem. The IP-DECT system has a unique topology that is 

highly scalable from small single cell to very large multi site 

systems with up to 10,000 users. By using both a central 

and as well as a decentralized approach, both legacy DECT 

as well as new installations can be cost effectively designed. 

On the fixed side both legacy TDMA as well as SIP and H323 

PBX’s are supported.

As with all other products from Ascom Wireless solu-

tions the complete UNITE suite for professional messaging 

is fully supported.

Ascom Wireless Solutions is also very active on up-

grading and refreshing the existing product range. The 

DECT work horse for demanding environments, the Ascom 

9d24 was released in its Mk2 version during 2006 with en-

hanced user interface and a new display technology. The 

9d24 Mk2 also passed the very stringent test and certifica-

tions for use in explosive environments and is one of very 

few DECT portables to meet the IEC EX requirements. 

The topic of managing and supporting communication 

systems is constantly increasing in importance as the sys-

tems become more complex and central to the daily opera-

tions. Ascom Wireless Solutions introduced in 2006 a unique 

product range, the PDM (Portable Device Manager) that 

completely changes the way the management of wireless 

systems is performed.
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QUALity bUiLdS CUStOMEr CONfidENCE
Customers of Orange France trust in having optimal connectivity in Orange’s mobile network at 

any time – even in cases of an emergency. Orange service technicians use Ascom’s QVoice® Symphony 

solution to perform measurements with regards to quality of service and network availability on 

various routes within the city of Nantes and in the Loire-Atlantique region. 
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iNfOrMAtiON rECEiVEd, iNStUCtiON UNdErStOOd
Thanks to openAccess® technology from Ascom, units of the Finnish Army enjoy first-class  

links with the command centre at all times and from any location. The communication systems 

provide support for officers when planning and deploying resources. Reliable information               

links between command centre and troops ensure that the right decisions can be made and      

carried out at the right time.  
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“An order such as the one from Orange France shows 

that our new QVoice® product family is proving highly 

successful. A motivation for the entire Mobile Test 

Solutions team! Implementing an innovative solution to 

the utmost satisfaction of a long-established customer 

is a highly rewarding task and proves that we are 

moving on track.”

Jean-Christophe Voegtlin, Head of Mobile Test Solutions France

“Right from the beginning, the Ascom goal was to 

develop a technology platform using commercially 

available proven technology that is used in millions of 

systems throughout the Internet. Our solution adapts 

that technology to the demanding needs of the Finnish 

Defence Forces and I am very proud that we are able to 

satisfy and support our customer in such a way.”

Olavi Keränen, Head of R&D and Engineering, Ascom Finland
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Overview of Security Solutions

Ascom Security Solutions is a leading provider of prod-

ucts and solutions serving the market segments Defence, 

Public Safety, Traffic Security and Telecom Operations. 

Wherever there is a need for systems and equipment to 

function reliably and securely, Ascom is the right partner 

for mission-critical communication solutions.

In the Defence sector Ascom acts as a competent part-

ner for armed forces and security organisations, delivering 

customised solutions for Command, Control, Communica-

tion, Computing & Information (C4I).

In the Public Safety segment, the main sources of rev-

enue are alarm and mobilisation systems as well as emer-

gency call dispatching systems for police and rescue or-

ganisations. 

In Traffic Security Ascom delivers passenger informa-

tion, emergency call and tunnel radio communication sys-

tems that make rail and road travel safer and more pleas-

ant, and help transport operators to manage their business 

processes efficiently.

In the Telecommunications segment Ascom delivers 

systems to optimise and measure the quality of mobile net-

works. The product portfolio also includes software solu-

tions for network operators and service providers, to en-

hance their internal processes related to the planning and 

implementation of telecom networks.

Ascom Security Solutions products are sold in the do-

mestic market of Switzerland as well as through Ascom’s 

own subsidiaries in Austria, Germany, Finland, the Czech 

Republic and Poland. Other European markets (in certain 

segments also global markets) are served via strategic 

partnerships.

Strategic focus

Ascom Security Solutions focuses on three strategic 

key areas:

Consistent monitoring of structural costs and internal 

processes in order to achieve operational improvements 

and hence reach the main objective of increasing profit-

ability. Expansion and extension of international distribu-

tion channels in order to boost market activities.

Clear focus on innovation, with special emphasis on solu-

tions based on the openAccess®, openTAS® and QVoice® 

platforms developed in-house.

Internationalisation of business activities, coupled with 

the set-up and development of strategic partnerships 

with a view to generate organic growth. Targeted acqui-

sitions in order to effectively boost market position in the 

individual segments.

Security Solutions has set ambitious goals. We will 

achieve growth and higher profitability thanks to our tal-

ented, highly skilled workforce. Their responsible and con-

scientious attitude helps Ascom Security Solutions to pro-

duce innovative products and solutions, thereby justifying 

the trust placed in us by our customers.

ß

ß

ß

Key figures Security Solutions

CHFm 2006 2005 2004

Incoming orders 243.1 213.6 223.8

Order backlog 161.5 111.8 107.8

Revenue 195.0 205.7 257.8

Operating result 7.3 3.1 19.1

EBIT 2.2 (2.1) 12.8

EBITDA 5.2 (0.1) 15.6

Number of employees 771 844 833
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Business results 2006 

In 2006 Ascom Security Solutions recorded a substan-

tial increase in incoming orders and order backlog, winning 

important contracts in all the segments in which we oper-

ate. Details are provided on pages 35 to 38 of this Annual 

Report. Incoming orders and order backlog were boosted in 

particular by the major contract awarded to Defence by the 

Swiss Army, as well as several orders won from the Finnish 

Army.

In the year under review, Security Solutions posted an 

increase of 13.8 % in incoming orders to CHF 243.1 million, 

compared with CHF 213.6 million in 2005, and order backlog 

increased by 44,5 % to CHF 161.5 million. 

In 2006 the Division intended to achieve revenue at a 

similar amount of that posted during previous year. How-

ever, several projects – primarily in Central and Eastern 

Europe – were postponed and have not therefore impacted 

revenue in the year under review. As a result, revenue post-

ed by Security Solutions was lower than previous year, and 

came to CHF 195.0 million. At EBIT level we have achieved 

our target and recorded a positive result. Thanks to spe-

cific and rigorous cost management measures related to IT 

and personnel expenses, coupled with additional efficiency 

enhancement measures (above all in Traffic Security and 

TelcoNet Services), we have achieved a sizeable reduction 

in operating costs. At EBIT level, the Division reached a 

profit of CHF 2.2 million for 2006 compared to a previous-

year loss of CHF (2.1) million. 

To enhance our competitiveness and maintain innova-

tive impetus, we also made substantial investments in new 

product and solution development in the year under review. 

Illustrated examples of our development activities and their 

implementation for our customers are given on pages 28 to 

31 and in the “Applied Innovation” section on page 40. 

Outlook

Ascom Security Solutions’ favourable order backlog at 

the end of 2006 provides a solid basis for revenue in 2007. 

Growth, coupled with process-enhancing and cost-saving 

measures, will bring about further improvements in profit-

ability. Concentrated efforts to boost international sales are 

gradually generating higher business volumes outside Swit-

zerland. For 2007 we are targeting revenue growth of more 

than 5 % with an EBIT margin between 1 – 3 %. In the me-

dium to longer term, excluding acquisitions, we plan to 

achieve annual revenue growth of around 5 % and an EBIT 

margin between 5 – 7 %.

Revenue by region Revenue by segment
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Ascom also builds emergency call systems for motor-

ways. The latest system generation, NIS ROAD, developed 

along the same lines as NIS RAIL, was successfully launched 

on the market in 2006. Our TIC radio communication sys-

tems for rail and road tunnels provide a communication 

platform for police and rescue services and enable network 

connectivity for mobile phones in tunnels. A comprehensive 

package of auxiliary services, covering system expansion, 

software upgrades and round-the-clock maintenance, sup-

ports these mission-critical systems throughout their life-

cycle. 

Ascom caters to the transport sector with a full range 

of products and services that incorporate the latest tech-

nologies and can be combined as required. Our solutions 

provide rail and road users with the information they need 

and also help to make rail and road travel safer and more 

reliable. At the same time, Ascom systems allow rail and 

road operators to rationalise their operations and cut costs. 

Ascom’s favourable market position in Switzerland and 

Austria provides a basis for intensive marketing activities 

aimed at generating additional business volume and boost-

ing the company’s international market presence.

Significant business successes

Ascom won important contracts in 2006. The Matter-

horn-Gotthard railway placed an order for passenger infor-

mation systems; the Swiss Federal Railways awarded sev-

eral contracts for passenger information, operational tele-

com and tunnel communication systems; and the canton of 

Zurich placed on order for a motorway tunnel communica-

tion system. In Austria, Wiener Linien, the Vienna Transport 

Authority, ordered display systems for the city’s under-

ground railway. Orders were also received for displays re-

garding a rail project in Syria and equipment for a motor-

way test section. Ascom also equipped a major rail operator 

in the UK with the first interactive help points.

Market

While the need for mobility is growing, transport in-

frastructures, roads and rail networks are limited and can 

only be expanded at great expense. Moreover, as rail op-

erators face growing competition in their domestic markets 

and abroad, the pressure to reduce costs is rising. Passen-

gers want access to information and safe travelling through-

out their journey. These trends and requirements are forc-

ing rail and road transport infrastructure operators to seek 

technologies that allow them to optimise costs and auto-

mate procedures. In the wake of these developments, the 

segment is expected to grow by about 5% per year.

Ascom’s market offerings

Ascom customers in the Traffic Security segment in-

clude rail operators, suburban and long-distance transport 

organisations, rolling stock manufacturers, motorway au-

thorities and general contractors for large-scale infrastruc-

ture projects. Ascom’s activities in this area cover several 

product groups: 

For rolling stock manufacturers, Ascom’s RAILVOX® 

passenger information system and FZPL management sys-

tem cater to a full range of on-board communication and 

information needs. At railway stations, bus or tram stops 

the DISPRAS® system provides passengers with important 

information via a range of displays supported by a variety 

of technologies. 

Ascom’s NIS RAIL is a comprehensive communication 

and management platform that covers all the requirements 

of rail operators for their day-to-day operations. The IP-

based NIS RAIL system is also used as the basis for imple-

menting emergency call and information systems for rail 

passengers.
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Market

The Defence segment has changed significantly in re-

cent years. The armed forces’ mandate has become much 

broader and more challenging, covering not only defence 

of the country but also including protection of borders, em-

bassy security, military aid for disaster relief, crisis manage-

ment and, above all, deployment in international peace 

missions. 

New equipment and systems are required to tackle 

these challenging new tasks. While virtually all the armed 

forces have reduced troop numbers significantly, there is a 

sharp rise in demand for command, control and communica-

tion systems, since no modern army can operate without 

such tools. Moreover, the new EU/NATO members in Eastern 

Europe urgently need to catch up by procuring C4I systems, 

particularly for international assignments where modern, 

interoperable communications equipment is essential. The 

market in this segment is growing at an annual rate of  

2  – 3 %, while growth in Eastern Europe is estimated at   

4  – 5% per year. 

Ascom’s market offerings

Ascom has positioned itself primarily as a provider of 

C4I (Command, Control, Communication, Computing & Infor-

mation) solutions for selected armed forces and security 

organisations in Europe. 

The core of these solutions is Ascom’s proprietary 

openAccess® Node, a multifunctional IP-based product that 

was designed specifically with military communications in 

mind and can be used in mobile as well as stationary ap-

plications.

As a local system integrator, Ascom implements inte-

grated C4I solutions customised to meet country-specific 

requirements, thereby featuring proprietary and third-

party products. Comprehensive services support the sys-

tems throughout their life cycles (from solution design to 

system upgrades, servicing and maintenance). In addition, 

Ascom specialises in the provision of interactive documen-

tation and training courses for complex technical systems. 

The major challenge facing most armed forces is to 

integrate different systems from different vendors to cre-

ate a unified management and communications platform. 

With its expertise, independent status and the flexible, cus-

tomisable openAccess® platform, Ascom is the communica-

tions specialist of choice for complex, mission-critical ap-

plications and offers the ideal qualifications for successful 

implementation of such projects. 

With this in mind, Ascom intends to focus in future on 

acquiring and implementing such integration projects and 

on international distribution of its openAccess® product 

family.

Significant business successes

In 2006 the division won several important orders: in 

autumn the Finnish Army announced a strategic partner-

ship with Ascom for the delivery of openAccess® communi-

cation systems (a proprietary Ascom development) be-

tween 2007 and 2011. Orders for the first instalment were 

received in November 2006.

The Swiss Army has commissioned Ascom to install 

and expand the military telecommunications infrastructure. 

The “TK Mobile Management” project, worth approximate-

ly CHF 60 million, also incorporates state-of-the-art IP tech-

nology and will create a platform for networked operations 

management. Following expansion activities in Poland, an 

initial pilot order was received during 2006. 
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pUbLiC SAfEty 

upgrades and regular maintenance ensure that such sys-

tems function efficiently and retain value throughout their 

life cycle. Cost considerations and technological change are 

forcing security organisations and telecom operators to 

gradually replace their existing proprietary security net-

works with new IP/web-based solutions. Ascom’s large 

installed base in various European countries, coupled with 

its ultra-modern openTAS® product range make the com-

pany an ideal partner for security and rescue services seek-

ing to modernise or migrate to sophisticated alarm, mo-

bilisation and dispatching solutions. Moreover, the newly 

developed applications based on the openTAS® and openAc-

cess® basic platforms provide an excellent springboard from 

which to push ahead with internationalisation. 

Significant business successes

Highlights in fiscal year 2006 included the implemen-

tation and commissioning of the communications platform 

for the Canton of Geneva’s police command centres, mo-

bilisation systems for the Canton of Schaffhausen police 

and fire services, and the first ECS Safety emergency call 

dispatching centre in the Canton of Uri. Orders were re-

ceived for various remote siren control systems in Switzer-

land and for the integration of various fire brigades in 

Austria’s existing network. Ascom also received an order 

from Slovenia for a country-wide security network and for 

expansion of the city of Prague’s radio communication sys-

tem, as well as orders for first pilot projects in Finland and 

Poland. 

Market

Public Safety is a growing business field. The main 

drivers behind this trend are the major social changes that 

have characterised the past 15 years. Rising crime, terror 

threats and attacks are driving up demand for greater se-

curity and protection. The requirements imposed on public 

and private security and rescue organisations have risen 

accordingly. This in turn has increased their need for techni-

cal equipment in order to carry out their mandate effec-

tively. Other business opportunities are emerging in the 

wake of EU expansion to the east, where major investments 

are being made in a bid to protect the EU’s outer borders 

and provide local police and rescue services with better 

equipment. The need for modernisation in this area is high, 

and this market segment is growing at an annual rate of 

roughly 5 –7 %.

Ascom’s market offerings

Ascom is a leading provider of IP-based alarm and 

mobilisation systems, primarily for emergency organisa-

tions such as police, fire and other rescue services as well 

as security operators. AlarmLink and EmergencyLink, both 

based on the openTAS® system platform, are used for alarm 

and mobilisation applications. Remote siren controls in the 

same product family complete the portfolio. Ascom’s ECS 

Safety is an emergency dispatching system based on the 

openAccess® platform, for processing incoming emergency 

calls. Ascom also acts as a system integrator in the Public 

Safety segment, implementing video and campus surveil-

lance systems, integrated communication solutions, finger-

print identification systems and rescue service control cen-

tres in close collaboration with partner companies. System 
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tELECOM OpErAtiONS  

Market

Competition among the many global telcos is becom-

ing increasingly fierce, forcing network operators to opti-

mise their internal processes and reduce costs on an ongo-

ing basis. Non-core business activities are increasingly be-

ing outsourced to external companies. The annual market 

growth of 2 –5 %, depending on the application used, offers 

Ascom the corresponding business potential.

Ascom’s market offerings

Ascom has three business areas in the Telecom Op-

erations segment: Mobile Test Solutions, TelcoNet Services 

and Systems & Solutions. The products, solutions and ser-

vices delivered by all three units help to improve the per-

formance and service quality of globally operating telecom 

companies.

Thanks to its QVoice® measurement system, the Mo-

bile Test Solutions business unit is considered global market 

leader in equipment testing, evaluating and optimising of 

mobile networks. The newly developed Symphony, Com-

panion and Smart product generation meets all the require-

ments for assessing the quality of multimedia (3G) net-

works. These measuring systems are supported by a com-

prehensive range of expert tools for the systematic analysis 

and evaluation of measurements. Ascom acts as an out-

sourcing partner, offering a comprehensive drive/walk test 

service (including measurement evaluation). In autumn of 

2006 Mobile Test Solutions entered into a strategic alliance 

with Comarco, a US enterprise. This joint venture offers cus-

tomers of both companies significant benefits: in future, 

the QVoice® product platform can be used to measure mo-

bile networks based on both the European (GSM/UMTS) 

standard and the US (CDMA) standard. With its new part-

ner, Mobile Test Solutions is now aiming for strong growth 

in global marketing activities, particularly in countries 

where mobile networks use both technologies.

TelcoNet Services acts as a general contractor, deliver-

ing a full range of services for the planning, implementation 

and maintenance of telecommunications equipment for 

network operators. The focus continues to be on targeted 

expansion of the customer base and service offerings.

Systems & Solutions specialises in customised soft-

ware applications that enable network operators to stream-

line and enhance their internal processes. Typical applica-

tions include workflow solutions for fault notification and 

processing, and rota systems for customer service staff. 

Systems & Solutions is gradually extending its geographical 

market reach through globally active key account custom-

ers.

Significant business successes

The successful rollout of the latest-generation QVoice® 

generation – Symphony, Companion and Smart – accom-

panied by the first order from Orange France, were the main 

highlights of fiscal 2006 for Mobile Test Solutions. Thanks 

to a number of orders, among others from the Kenyan 

regulatory authority CCK and from Mobilkom Austria, as 

well as orders from Taiwan and Egypt, the business unit 

succeeded in further expanding its market position. 

TelcoNet Services won new customers and expanded 

the existing customer base. 

Systems & Solutions received large orders from Voda-

fone Germany and Swisscom, as well as a major contract 

from a Japanese operator.
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openTAS®

openTAS®, a web-based service platform for use by 

police, rescue services and private security organisations, 

enables the secure use of low-cost networks (Internet/IP) 

for security applications.

Development of the openTAS® AlarmLink, a special 

application for transmitting and processing alarms, was 

completed in 2006 and a pilot project was successfully 

launched.

Key functionalities were developed for the openTAS® 

EmergencyLink, a web-based mobilisation system for emer-

gency services, and the system was also integrated in pilot 

installations. 

QVoice®

The project, launched in 2005, to further develop the 

QVoice® platform was continued in 2006, with three new 

QVoice® products – Symphony, Companion and Smart – be-

ing readied for serial production. The test phase proved 

highly successful, providing proof that the new QVoice® 

family meets all the test requirements of (3G) multimedia 

networks. Thanks to the open system architecture, future 

requirements are built in and customers can be assured of 

a sustained return on investment.

Other innovation projects  

Various advanced functions were implemented in 

RAILVOX®, DISPRAS® and the FZPL vehicle platform. In joint 

collaboration with Mammut, Ascom developed PULSE Bar-

ryvox®, a new device for locating avalanche victims, marking 

a technological milestone for the fast, effective rescue of 

avalanche victims.

In 2006 Ascom Security Solutions invested substan-

tially in development of its solutions. To retain the requisite 

expertise in-house, the division boasts a core team of engi-

neers who conduct research and development in specific 

areas. Most of the employees in this unit work on concrete 

product and application developments geared towards our 

customer and market segments. The main focus is on the 

three basic platforms –openAccess®, openTAS® and QVoice® 

– which will continue to form the basis of the majority of 

Ascom products and solutions within the Security Solutions 

Division.

openAccess®

openAccess® is a flexible, scaleable, modular IP com-

munication platform for complex applications. The follow-

ing products and solutions were developed and tested on 

this platform in 2006:

ALVI INT is a multifunctional communication node for 

deployment with international troops. The first units were 

successfully field-tested in the course of 2006. This ALVI 

node is being further developed for mobile applications in 

conjunction with the Finnish Army, and is scheduled to be 

ready in 2007.

openAccess® also provides the platform for NIS RAIL 

and NIS ROAD, the new generation of emergency call sys-

tems for railway stations and motorways. The market 

launch and pilot installations were successfully implement-

ed in 2006. Another feature of NIS RAIL is the interactive 

Help Point, installed for the first time by a British rail op-

erator.

2006 also saw the first installation of ECS Safety, an 

openAccess® application for emergency call dispatching for 

police forces.

iNNOVAtiON 

emergency call system nIs RAIl platform iptnA end-user terminal
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Finnish Army project

Following a strategic analysis, the Finnish Army deter-

mined that communication played a key role in the man-

agement of any modern army.

Col. Kyösti Halonen came to the following conclusion: 

“Communication systems help us to deploy our resources 

systematically and efficiently, and play an important role 

in joint operations within the Finnish armed forces as well 

as in combined operations with other partners.”

The Finnish Army’s requirements for a modern com-

munication system are: modular design based on standard 

components, equipped with a variety of exchangeable in-

terfaces, easy adoption to changing deployment conditions, 

and suitable for use in fixed as well as mobile equipment 

and networks.

Based on these specifications Ascom developed the 

openAccess® Node, a flexible communication platform ca-

pable of combining different types of wireless and fixed 

networks and therefore ensuring connectivity with all avail-

able networks.

The ALVI version of this openAccess® platform has 

since passed the army’s rigorous tests and is in daily use. 

The openAccess® Node acts as the communication interface 

between the different systems used by the Army, Navy and 

Air Force, and as a connecting link to command headquar-

ters.

A new project has now been launched in conjunction 

with the Finnish Army, with the aim of adapting the openAc-

cess® concept for integration in vehicles or for use in harsh 

environments. This system will be tested and introduced to 

troops in the course of 2007.

Orange France project

With the launch of the new QVoice® family, Ascom has 

marked a milestone in network measurement technology. 

The new products Symphony, Companion and Smart are 

capable of testing all mobile multimedia network applica-

tions. Orange France was the first customer to order the 

new QVoice® generation. Orange, the mobile brand of the 

France Telecom group – one of the world’s largest com-

munication companies – has 23 mobile networks around 

the globe with about 90 million registered subscribers. Or-

ange is seen throughout the industry as an early adopter 

of technology and an innovator in marketing emerging mo-

bile services. 

The use of forward-looking technologies and services 

is driving the demand for increasingly higher quality stan-

dards in order to satisfy subscribers. To meet this demand, 

Orange France decided to purchase QVoice® Symphony, the 

new leading-edge quality of service measurement and op-

timisation system from Ascom, so as to perform complex 

test procedures within its mobile networks in the simplest, 

most flexible and efficient way.

Orange France, has been a satisfied QVoice® user for 

over eight years. Thierry Kuhn, Head of the Performance 

and Investigation Tools Department at Orange France, com-

mented: “Because of the system’s ability to simultane-

ously measure multi-operators, multi-technologies (2G/3G) 

or multi-services in only one drive-pass, “France Telecom/

Orange” chose to deploy Symphony throughout its region-

al operational units to assess network QOS KPI and the QOS 

perceived by its subscribers. The prospect of reducing the 

number of test drive-passes with Symphony will lead to 

cost-savings at OPEX in data collection, a service which cur-

rently is sub-contracted.” Orange uses Ascom measuring 

equipment in vehicles. Network availability and quality are 

systematically measured along predefined routes, e.g. in 

the city and suburbs of Nantes.

AppLiEd iNNOVAtiON
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IP telephony

Internet Protocol telephony – Technology that supports voice, data 

and video transmission via IP-based LANs, WANs, and the Internet 

(including VoIP).

IR positioning

Infra red positioning

LAN

Local Area Network – A system of connecting PCs and other devices 

within the same physical proximity for sharing resources such as an 

Internet connections, printers, files and drives. When WiFi is used to 

connect the devices, the system is known as Wireless LAN or WLAN.

MHz

Megahertz – HZ is the international unit for measuring frequency, 

equivalent to the older unit of cycles per second. One Megahertz 

(MHz) is one million hertz. One Gigahertz (GHz) is one billion hertz. 

The standard US electrical power frequency is 60 Hz, the AM broad-

cast radio frequency band is 535 – 1,605 kHz, the FM broadcast 

radio frequency band is 88 – 108 MHz, and wireless 802.11b LANs 

operate at 2.4 GHz.

OEM

Original Equipment Manufacturer – A company that builds products 

or components which are used in products sold by another com-

pany. An OEM will typically build to order based on design of such 

another company. When Ascom mentions its OEM business (mainly 

in Wireless Solutions division), it means that Ascom produces and 

delivers products and systems that are sold by the OEM clients. 

PABX

Private Automatic Branch eXchange – A telephone exchange that is 

owned by a private business, as opposed to one owned by a com-

mon carrier or by a telephone company

PBX

Private Branch eXchange – A private telephone network used 

within an enterprise. Users of the PBX share a certain number of 

lines for making telephone calls external to the PBX. Most medium- 

sized and larger companies use a PBX because it is much less expen-

sive than connecting an external telephone line to every telephone 

in the organization. In addition, it’s easier to call someone within  

a PBX as the number usually needed to dial is just 3 to 4 digits. 

ATEX

A standard/guideline for explosion protection in the industry.

Best-fit-technology

Ascom customers can choose from a broad spectrum of products, 

systems and solutions, thus making it possible to use the technol-

ogy that represents the “best fit” in any given situation. When  

Ascom talks about finding the “best fit”, it means working together 

with the client(s) to evaluate which technology offers the  

best means of covering specific user requirements. Options to 

choose from include paging, DECT technology or WLAN solutions. 

Ascom integrates the chosen solution into the clients’ existing 

infrastructure, thus allowing them to retain and even increase 

the benefits and value of previous investments (for example in 

networks or technology).

Bluetooth 

Bluetooth wireless technology – A technology specification for link-

ing portable computers, personal digital assistants (PDAs) and mo-

bile phones for short-range transmission of voice and data across a 

global radio frequency band without the need for cables and wires. 

C4I

Command, Control, Communication, Computing & Information (C4I).

CDMA

Code Divisional Multiple Access – A digital cellular technology.

DECT

Digital Enhanced Cordless Telecommunications – A flexible digital 

radio access standard for cordless communications in residential, 

corporate or public environments. 

FCC

Federal Communications Commission – The governing body for 

telecommunications law in the United States of America. 

GSM

Global System for Mobile Communications – A popular standard  

for mobile phones in the world.

IEC

International Electrotechnical Commission

IP

Internet Protocol – A set of rules used to send and receive  

messages at the Internet address level.

tEChNiCAL gLOSSAry
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PDA

Personal Digital Assistant – Smaller than laptop computers but 

with many of the same computing and communication capabilities. 

PDAs range greatly in size, complexity and functionality. PDAs can 

provide wireless connectivity via embedded WiFi card radios, slide-

in PC card radios, or compact flash WiFi radios.

PWT

Pacific Western Technology Ltd.

QoS

Quality of Service

SIM

Subscriber Identity Module

SIP

Session Initialization Protocol – A signalling protocol that  

establishes real-time calls and conferences over IP networks.

SW

Software

TCP/IP

Transmission Control Protocol/Internet Protocol – The underly-

ing technology behing the Internet and communications between 

computers in a network. The first part, TCP, is the transport part, 

which matches the size of the messages on either end and guaran-

tees that the correct message has been received. The IP part is the 

user’s computer address on a network. Every computer in a TCP/IP 

network has its own IP address that is either dynamically assigned 

at start-up or permanently assigned. All TCP/IP messages contain 

the address of the destination network as well as the address 

of the destination station. This enables TCP/IP messages to be 

transmitted to multiple networks (subnets) within an organization 

or worldwide.

TDMA

Time Division Multiple Access – Refers to a channel access method 

for shared medium (usually radio) networks. It allows several users 

to share the same frequency channel by dividing the signal into 

different timeslots.

UMTS

Universal Mobile Telecommunications System – One of the  

third-generation mobile phone technologies. 

VARs

Value Added Resellers – A company that sometimes adds  

some features to an existing product, then sells it to end-users  

as a new package.

VoIP

Voice over Internet Protocol – Voice transmission using Internet 

Protocol to create digital packets distributed over the Internet. 

VoIP can be less expensive than voice transmission using standard 

analog packets over POTS (Plain Old Telephone Service).

VoWiFi

Voice over Wireless Fidelity – VoWiFi is a WiFi based VoIP service. 

Where VoIP consists of the hardware and software.html that 

enables people to use the Internet as the transmission medium for 

telephone calls, VoWiFi is the wireless version of this technology 

which is designed to work on wireless devices. 

WiFi

Wireless Fidelity – A term defined and trademarked by the Wi-Fi 

Alliance. Wireless LAN equipment carrying the WiFi logo have been 

interoperability tested for compability with one (or more) 802.11 

standards, and certified by the WiFi Alliance to be sold under the 

WiFi brand.

WLAN

Wireless Local Area Network – Also referred to as LAN. A type of lo-

cal area network that uses high-frequency radio waves rather than 

wires to communicate between nodes.
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1. coRpoRAte stRuctuRe And shAReholdeRs 

Operating corporate structure as of 15 February 2007

COrpOrAtE gOVErNANCE

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Listed corporation: Ascom Holding Ltd.

Ascom Holding Ltd. (Ascom Holding SA, Ascom Hold-

ing AG) is a joint-stock company based in Berne, Switzer-

land. It has a share capital of CHF 18 million, divided into 

36,000,000 registered shares with a par value of CHF 0.50 

per share.

The company’s registered shares are traded on the 

SWX Swiss Exchange main board under security ID number 

1133920, symbol ascn. Ticker symbols:

Bloomberg: ASCN SW

Reuters: ASCN.S

Market capitalisation as of 31 December 2006 was  

CHF 552.6 million.

ß

ß

Board or Directors

Chief Executive Officer

a. i. Fritz Mumenthaler

CFO/Investor Relations/

Special Products

Alberto Romaneschi

General Secretary/

Corp. Communications

Daniel Lack

Wireless Solutions Security Solutions



 44

Unlisted Group companies

The following companies belong to the Ascom Holding Ltd. scope of consolidation:

Country Company Location Capital Investment

Austria Ascom Austria GmbH Vienna EUR 3,634,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100  %

Belgium Ascom (Belgium) NV Brussels EUR 1,424,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Czech Republic Ascom (CZ) s.r.o. Prague CZK 200,000 Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 100 %

Denmark Ascom Danmark A/S Silkeborg DKK 1,200,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Finland Ascom (Finland) Oy Vantaa EUR 562,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

France Ascom SAS Guilherand-Granges EUR 5,000,000 Ascom Holding SA (F): 100 %

Ascom Holding SA (F) Guilherand-Granges EUR 9,600,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom (France) SA Nanterre EUR 2,000,000 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100 %

Ascom Multitoll Solutions SAS Orsay EUR 3,648,000 Ascom SAS: 100 %

Germany Ascom Deutschland GmbH Frankfurt/M. EUR 2,137,000 Ascom Unternehmensholding GmbH: 

99.76 %, Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 0.24 %

Technologiepark Teningen 

GmbH

Teningen EUR 6,136,000 Ascom Unternehmensholding GmbH: 

94 %, Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 6 %

Ascom GCT Grau-communica-

tions technology GmbH

Frankfurt/M. EUR 1,534,000 Ascom Unternehmensholding GmbH: 

94 %, Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 6 %

Ascom Unternehmens- 

holding GmbH

Frankfurt/M. EUR 5,113,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Hong Kong Ascom Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong HKD 1,500,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Mexico Ascom de México SA. de C.V. México, D.F. MXN 50,000 Ascom SAS: 100 %

Netherlands Ascom (Nederland) BV Utrecht EUR 1,361,000 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100 %

Ascom Finance BV Arnhem EUR 45,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Mocsa Real Estate BV Utrecht EUR 454,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom Tateco BV Hoofddorp EUR 18,000 Ascom (Nederland) BV: 100 %

SPT Wijk by Duurstede BV Utrecht EUR 18,000 Ascom (Nederland) BV: 100 %
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Country Company Location Capital Investment

Norway Ascom (Norway) A/S Oslo NOK 1,250,000 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100 %

Poland Ascom Poland Sp z o.o. Warsaw PLN 2,405,200 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Russia Letus ZAO St. Petersburg RUB 10,000 Ascom (Finland) Oy: 51 %

Sweden Ascom (Sweden) AB Gothenburg SEK 96,154,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 66.4 %, 

Ascom UK Group Ltd.: 33.6 %

Ascom Sweden Holding AB Gothenburg SEK 100,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Switzerland Adilan S.à.r.l. in Liquidation Geneva CHF 20,000 Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 100 %

AIWP AG in Liquidation Berne CHF 500,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom Favag AG Bevaix CHF 8,000,000 Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 100 %

Ascom Immobilien AG Berne CHF 2,400,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

BIWP AG in Liquidation Berne CHF 50,000,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom (Schweiz) AG Berne CHF 28,000,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Wolf Computer AG  

in Liquidation

Berne CHF 100,000 Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 100 %

UK Ascom Croydon Ltd. Croydon GBP 600,000 Ascom UK Group Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom Dartford Ltd. Croydon GBP 1,000,000 Ascom UK Group Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom Telecommunications 

Ltd. (in liquidation)

Croydon GBP 11,500,000 Ascom UK Group Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom (UK) Ltd. Sevenoaks GBP 50,000 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100 %

Ascom UK Group Ltd. Croydon GBP 5,000,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

USA Ascom Holding Inc. Rockaway NJ USD 10 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom (US) Inc. Morrisville NC USD 10 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100 %
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Shareholders

Registered shareholders

As of 31 December 2006 there were 7,110 shareholders 

registered in the Ascom Holding Ltd. share register. Share 

ownership as of 31 December 2006 is broken down as fol-

lows:

Number of shares Number of shareholders

1 to 100 1,730

101 to 1000 4,065

1 001 to 5000 1,077

5001 to 10,000 107

More than 10,000 131

Total 7,110

Changes subject to disclosure requirements during the 

2006 financial year 

In an announcement dated 28 March 2006, published 

in compliance with Art. 20 of the Stock Exchange Act (SES-

TA), Tower Equity N.V., Curaçao; Hyos Invest Holding AG, 

Zurich, and AB Eno River Holding AG, Zug (all companies 

owned by the Müller-Möhl community of heirs, Zurich) dis-

closed that their total shares in Ascom now accounted for 

less than 5 % of the voting rights (SOGC notice of 25 April 

2006).

In an announcement dated 5 July 2006, published in 

compliance with SESTA Art. 20, the Zurich Cantonal Bank, 

Zurich disclosed that it holds Ascom shares accounting for 

5.01 % of the voting rights (SOCG notice of 12 July 2006).

In an announcement dated 7 July 2006, published in 

compliance with SESTA Art. 20, the Zurich Cantonal Bank, 

Zurich, disclosed that its shares in Ascom now accounted 

for less than 5 % of the voting rights (SOCG notice of 14 July 

2006).

In an announcement dated 24 July 2006, published in 

compliance with SESTA Art. 20, the Zurich Cantonal Bank, 

Zurich, disclosed that it held Ascom shares accounting for 

5.00 % of the voting rights (SOCG notice of 28 July 2006).

In an announcement dated 4 August 2006, published 

in compliance with SESTA Art. 20, the Zurich Cantonal Bank, 

Zurich, disclosed that its shares in Ascom now accounted 

for less than 5 % of the voting rights (SOCG notice of 10 

August 2006).

In an announcement dated 24 August 2006, published 

in compliance with SESTA Art. 20, the Zurich Cantonal Bank, 

Zurich, disclosed that it held Ascom shares accounting for 

5.16 % of the voting rights (SOCG notice of 14 September 

2006).

In an announcement dated 19 September 2006, in 

compliance with SESTA Art. 20, the Trident European Fund, 

George Town, Cayman Islands, disclosed that it held Ascom 

shares accounting for 5.01 % of the voting rights (SOCG no-

tice of 26 September 2006).

In an announcement dated 18 December 2006, pub-

lished in compliance with SESTA Art. 20, the Zurich Can-

tonal Bank, Zurich, disclosed that its shares in Ascom now 

accounted for less than 5 % of the voting rights (SOCG no-

tice of 28 December 2006).

Significant shareholders (as recorded in the   

share register)

The following significant shareholders as defined by 

Art. 663c of the Swiss Code of Obligations, holding more 

than 5 % of the share capital, were recorded in the share 

register at 31 December 2006:

Hasler Foundation, Berne 8.46 %

Sterling Strategic Value Ltd., Tortola BVI 5.11 %
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In 2000, uniform registered shares with a par value of 

CHF 10 were introduced by splitting the existing registered 

shares with a par value of CHF 100 and bearer shares with 

a par value of CHF 500. Each share carries one vote and all 

shares carry the same claim to dividend payments. 

Shares and participation certificates

31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Number CHFm Number CHFm

Registered shares 

nom. CHF 5.50

– – 36,000,000 198

Registered shares 

nom. CHF 0.50

36,000,000 18 – –

Registered 

shareholders

7,110 – 8,038 –

Ascom Holding Ltd. and its subsidiaries held 317,600 

own registered shares as of the balance sheet date.

Bonus certificates

Ascom Holding Ltd. has not issued any bonus certifi-

cates.

Authorised share capital/ conditional share capital

Ascom Holding Ltd. had neither authorised nor condi-

tional share capital at 31 December 2006.

Three further shareholders were entered in the share 

register with holdings exceeding 2 % of the share capital. 

This does not cover shares which are not registered in the 

share register (Dispo shares). Dispo shares were at 43.5 % 

as of 31 December 2006.

Ascom is not aware of any shareholders’ agree-

ments.

Cross-shareholdings

The Ascom Group has not entered into cross-share-

holdings with other companies in terms of capital or voting 

rights. 

2. cApItAl stRuctuRe

Ordinary share capital

Since 6 April 2006, the share capital has amounted to 

CHF 18,000,000, divided into 36,000,000 registered shares 

with a par value of CHF 0.50 per share.

At the Annual General Meeting on 6 April 2006, the 

company’s share capital was reduced from CHF 198,000,000 

to CHF 18,000,000 (par value reduced to CHF 0.50). Par 

value of CHF 5 per registered share was repaid on 28 June 

2006.

At the Extraordinary General Meeting on 4 December 

2003 the share capital was initially reduced from CHF 

225,000,000 to CHF 123,750,000 in two stages (par value 

reduced to CHF 5.50) and subsequently increased by CHF 

74,250,000 to CHF 198,000,000 through the issue of 

13,500,000 new shares with a par value of CHF 5.50 per 

share. In a resolution passed on 22 December 2003, the 

Board of Directors noted that the capital increase had been 

implemented. 

The share capital is fully paid up. The participation 

capital in the amount of CHF 38.875 million in existence at 

the time was dissolved on the occasion of the General Meet-

ing held on 11 June 1991.
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Changes in equity

The equity of Ascom Holding Ltd. has changed as fol-

lows:

Since 6 April 2006, the share capital has amounted to 

CHF 18,000,000, divided into 36,000,000 registered shares 

with a par value of CHF 0.50 per share.

At the Annual General Meeting on 6 April 2006, the 

company’s share capital was reduced from CHF 198,000,000 

to CHF 18,000,000 (par value reduced to CHF 0.50). Par 

value of CHF 5 per registered share was repaid on 28 June 

2006.

Limitations on transferability and nominee   

registrations

In principle, the Articles of Incorporation of Ascom Holding 

Ltd. contain no limitations on transferability.

Every person recorded in the share register is regarded as 

a shareholder or beneficiary vis-à-vis the company. 

A share register is maintained for registered shares in 

which the names and addresses of the owners and ben-

eficiaries are entered. Changes must be reported to the 

company.

Entry in the share register requires proof of acquisition of 

title to the shares or of beneficiary status.

ß

ß

ß

ß

A purchaser of registered shares is entered in the share 

register upon request as a voting shareholder if he/she 

expressly declares that he/she acquired the registered 

shares in his/her own name and on his/her own account. 

If the purchaser is not prepared to make such a declara-

tion, the Board of Directors may refuse registration as a 

voting shareholder.

After consulting the party involved, the company may 

delete entries in the share register if such entries occurred 

in consequence of false statements by the purchaser. The 

purchaser must be informed immediately of the dele-

tion.

Admission of nominees is decided by the Board of Direc-

tors. No petitions in this regard were submitted in 2006.

Options/convertible bonds

Options

Ascom stock option plans are listed in section 5 (Com-

pensation, shareholdings and loans).

Convertible bonds

Ascom Holding Ltd. has not issued any convertible 

bonds.

Management transactions

With effect from 1 July 2005, the listing rules of SWX 

stipulate a disclosure obligation in respect of management 

transactions. To ensure compliance with these provisions, 

the Board of Directors has issued a new Annex to the Or-

ganisational Guidelines. Members of the Board of Directors 

and the Executive Board as well as the General Secretary 

are required to make a disclosure to the company. In 2006 

eleven individual disclosures (see table) were submitted as 

well as three collective reports, which were not published. 

Therefore it cannot be concluded from the individual dis-

closures only, how many shares and derivatives are being 

held by the Board of Directors and the Executive Board. 

ß

ß

ß

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

2006 2005 2004 2003

Share capital 18,000,000 198,000,000 198,000,000 198,000,000

Statutory 

reserves

9,820,000 6,233,000 1,021,000 0

Free reserves 105,293,000 111,812,000 32,551,000 3,369,000

Total 133,113,000 316,045,000 231,572,000 201,369,000
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3

3. BoARd of dIRectoRs

Board of Directors of Ascom Holding Ltd.

The Board of Directors holds ultimate decision-making 

authority and determines the strategic, organisational and 

financial planning guidelines for the Group as well as the 

company objectives. The Board of Directors is responsible 

for the overall direction as well as the supervision and con-

trol of the Management. It sets guidelines for business 

policies and ensures that it is regularly informed on the 

course of business.

The primary tasks of the Board of Directors under the 

Swiss Code of Obligations and the Articles of Incorporation 

of Ascom Holding Ltd. are

overall management of the company and the Group, 

including setting the strategic direction, as well as 

issuing directives as required;

defining the organisation and management structure;

laying out the forms of accounting and financial control 

as well as financial planning,

appointing and dismissing persons entrusted with the 

management and representation of the company and 

determining who is entitled to sign on behalf of the 

company;

ultimate supervision of business activities;

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

Transaction date Number of 

shares

Type of transaction Amount in 

CHF

16.3.2006 8,640 Sale from Ascom SOP 2003 148,867

17.3.2006 6,000 Sale from Ascom SOP 2003 104,180

17.3.2006 41,360 Sale from Ascom SOP 2003 716,417

4.4.2006 14,000 Sale from Ascom SOP 2003 245,220

19.9.2006 23,334 Sale 322,009

21.9.2006 11,668 Sale 160,435

21.9.2006 50,000 Purchase of call option 343,750

22.9.2006 7,811 Sale 107,791

25.9.2006 7,189 Sale 99,208

1.11.2006 16,000 Sale from Ascom SOP 2004 103,840

13.11.2006 20,000 Sale 297,040
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drawing up the Annual Report as well as preparing the 

Annual General Meeting and carrying out its resolutions;

informing the courts in the event of excessiv indebted-

ness;

passing resolutions on the financing of the business, 

especially deciding on capital increases and IPOs and the 

consequent changes to the Articles;

passing resolutions on participations of major/strategic 

significance; 

fixing the compensation for Members of the Board of 

Directors and the Executive Board. 

Composition of the Board of Directors of   

Ascom Holding Ltd.

In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, the 

Board of Directors of Ascom Holding Ltd. consists of one or 

more members who are elected for a one-year term of office 

(amendment to the Articles approved by the Annual Gen-

eral Meeting on 6 April 2006).

Since the Annual General Meeting of Ascom Holding 

Ltd. held on 6 April 2006, the Board of Directors has con-

sisted of the members listed in the table below. 

Member since

 AGM in

Elected for term 

of office until 

AGM in

Juhani Anttila, Chairman 2001 2007

Paul E. Otth, Vice-Chairman 2002 2008

Dr Wolfgang Kalsbach 2002 2008

Dr J. T. Bergqvist 2005 2008

Dr Rolf A. Meyer 2005 2008

Dr Axel Paeger 2005 2008

Pierre Roy 2006 2007

Adrian Schmassmann 2006 2007

Secretary to the Board of Directors: Dr Daniel Lack (since 16 May 

2001)

All members of the Board of Directors are non-execu-

tive members.

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß
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Changes to the Board of Directors

Beat Näf decided not to stand for re-election and 

stepped down from the Board of Directors at the 2006 An-

nual General Meeting. Pierre Roy and Adrian Schmassmann 

were elected to the Board of Directors for the first time.

Cross-involvement 

There are no cross-involvements between the Board 

of Directors of Ascom Holding Ltd. and any other listed com-

pany. Board of Director mandates with other listed compa-

nies are shown on the right hand side of this page.

Election and terms of office

Since the 2006 Annual General Meeting, members of the 

Board of Directors have been appointed by the Annual 

General Meeting for a term of one year. Prior to this, mem-

bers of the Board of Directors served for three years. In 

this context, one year is understood to be the period from 

one Annual General Meeting to the next. Members may 

be re-elected.

Members are elected or re-elected to the Board of Direc-

tors individually.

Members of the Board of Directors leave the Board at the 

Annual General Meeting held in the year in which they 

celebrate their 70th birthday. 

Internal organisation 

The Board of Directors is self-constituting and designates 

its own Chairman and Secretary. The latter need not be a 

member of the Board.

The Board of Directors may pass resolutions provided that 

the majority of members are present. In the event of 

capital increases, such a quorum is not required for deci-

sions concerning definition of the capital increase, amend-

ment to the Articles of Incorporation, or resolutions re-

garding the capital increase report.

The Board of Directors passes its resolutions by a major-

ity of the votes cast. The Chairman holds the casting 

vote.

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

Resolutions may also be adopted by written consent to a 

proposal circulated by the Chairman among all members 

and passed by a majority of all members of the Board of 

Directors.

Minutes are kept of deliberations and resolutions, and are 

signed by the Chairman and the Secretary.

Members of the Board of Directors may exercise a consult-

ing mandate for the Ascom Group in parallel with their 

activity on the Board only with the unanimous consent of 

the Board of Directors. There are no such consulting man-

dates as at the qualifying date.

Juhani Anttila also acted as CEO of the Ascom Group 

concurrently from 1 March 2003 to 31 May 2004. None of the 

other members of the Board of Directors previously worked 

for the Ascom Group, nor does any member of the Board of 

Directors perform any permanent management or consul-

tancy functions for important Swiss or foreign interest 

groups or hold any official positions or political offices.

Juhani Anttila is a member of the Board of Directors 

of Actelion Ltd., Allschwil. Paul E. Otth is a member of the 

Board of Directors of Inficon Holding AG, Bad Ragaz (Vice-

Chairman) as well as Swissquote Group Holding AG, Gland. 

Dr Rolf A. Meyer is a member of the Board of Directors of 

UBS AG, Zurich and Dr J.T. Bergqvist is a member of the 

Board of Norvestia OYJ, Helsinki (Finland). Adrian Schmass-

mann is a member of the Supervisory Board of Teleplan 

International N.V., Veldhoven (Netherlands). The other 

members of the Board of Directors of Ascom Holding Ltd. 

do not hold positions on the Boards of any other exchange-

listed companies.

Paul E. Otth is also a member of the Board of Directors 

of SBB AG, Berne, and Chairman of the Board of EAO Holding 

AG, Olten. Dr Rolf A. Meyer is also a member of the Board 

of Directors of DKSH Holding AG, Zurich. Dr Axel Paeger is 

Chairman of the Board of Directors of AMEOS Holding AG, 

Zurich and Adrian Schmassmann is Chairman of the Board 

of Directors of Katadyn AG, Wallisellen and a member of the 

Board of Directors of Selection Schwander AG, Zurich.  

ß

ß

ß
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Juhani Anttila, Chairman of the Board of Directors of 

Ascom Holding Ltd., Berne  

Nationality: Finnish  |  Born 1954  |  Place of residence: Baar, 

Switzerland  |  Member since  2001  |  Chairman of the Board of 

Directors since 14 May 2002  |  Elected for period of office to AGM in 2007  

> Studied law at the University of Helsinki, Finland (1976 Bachelor’s 

degree, 1978 Master’s degree) > Moved to Switzerland in 1978  

> 1981 – 1985 Managing Partner at CA Corporate Advisers, Zurich  

> 1985 Appointed Managing Director of Nokia GmbH, Zurich, and 

responsible for various activities for the Nokia Group > 1990 – 1995 

Chairman of the Executive Board of Nokia (Deutschland) GmbH in 

Pforzheim > 1996 – 2002 CEO of Swisslog Group > Since 14 May 2002 

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Ascom Holding Ltd.  

> 1.1. 2003 – 31.5. 2004 also CEO of the Ascom Group

Paul E. Otth, Vice-Chairman, Business Consultant, Zurich  

Nationality: Swiss  |  Born 1943  |  Place of residence: Zurich, 

Switzerland  |  Member since 2002  |  Elected for period of office to 

AGM in 2008

> Certified auditor > 1974 – 1988 Various management functions at 

the Corange Group (Boehringer Mannheim) in Switzerland and 

abroad > 1988/89 Partner and Executive Board member of Budliger 

Treuhand AG > 1989 Activities for Landis & Gyr, from 1994 CFO and 

Group Executive Board member > 1996 – 1998 CFO and Group 

Executive Board member of Elektrowatt, Zurich > 1998 – 2000 CFO 

and Division Board member of Siemens Building Technologies, Zurich  

> 2000 – 2002 CFO and Group Executive Board member of Unaxis 

Holding, Zurich > Since 2003 Business Consultant

Dr Wolfgang Kalsbach, CEO of Micronas Semiconductor 

Holding AG, Zurich

Nationality: German  |  Born 1954  |  Place of residence: Bahlingen, 

Germany  |  Member since 2002 |  Elected for period of office to AGM 

in 2008 

> 1983 Doctorate in physics > 1984 – 1990 Director of Research & 

Development, Picture Tube Division, ITT Industries GmbH, Freiburg, 

Germany > 1990 Managing Director, Luxor AB, Sweden (Nokia Group 

subsidiary) > 1994 Chief Operating Officer ITT Intermetall (a unit of 

ITT Industries GmbH, Germany) > Since 1998 CEO of Micronas 

Semiconductor Holding AG, Zurich

Dr J. T. Bergqvist, Business Consultant

Nationality: Finnish  |  Born 1957  |  Place of residence: Helsinki, Finland   

|  Member since 2005  |  Elected for period of office to AGM in 2008

> 1981 Master of Science (Helsinki University of Technology) > 1987 

Doctorate in Computer Science from Helsinki University of Technology

> 1980 – 1987 Various positions as a software specialist, project 

manager and export manager at Nokia Group, Helsinki > 1988 

Assistant Professor at Helsinki School of Economics > 1988 Manager 

bOArd Of dirECtOrS

     Juhani Anttila < > paul e. otth > dr Wolfgang Kalsbach
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Overseas Marketing South East Asia, Nokia Cellular Systems, Kuala 

Lumpur > 1990 Area Manager & Assistant Vice President Marketing 

South Europe, Nokia Cellular Systems, Paris > 1993 Area General 

Manager, Nokia Telecommunications, Paris > 1995 Vice President 

Cellular Transmission Business, Nokia Telecommunications > 1997 

Senior Vice President Radio Access Systems, Nokia Telecommunica-

tions > 2000 Senior/Executive Vice President & General Manager 

Nokia Networks, IP Mobility Networks > 2003/04 Senior/Executive 

Vice President & General Manager Nokia Networks, Global Business 

Units > 2001 – 2005 Member of the Strategy Panel of the Group 

Executive Board Nokia Corporation > 2002 – 2005 Member of Group 

Executive Board Nokia Corporation 

Dr Rolf A. Meyer, Business consultant

Nationality: Swiss  |  Born 1943  |  Place of residence: Bäch, Switzerland   

|  Member since 2005  |  Elected for period of office to AGM in 2008  

> 1967 MBA from the University of St. Gallen (lic. oec. HSG), majoring 

in marketing > 1973 Ph. D. in political science (Dr. rer. pol.), University 

of Basel > 1984 Program for Management Development (PMD), 

Harvard Business School, Boston MA, USA > 1967 Marketing, 

Bertschinger & Co. AG, Wohlen > 1972 Assistant to CEO, Modern 

Plastics Corp., Long Beach CA, USA > 1973 Financial analyst, Ciba-

Geigy AG, Basel > 1976 Group Company Controller, Ciba-Geigy Ltd., 

Johannesburg, South Africa > 1979 Director of Central Control and 

Corporate Systems, Ciba-Geigy AG, Basel > 1985 Vice President 

Finance and Information Services, Ciba-Geigy Corp. Ltd. (USA), 

Ardsley NY, USA > 1992 Chief Financial Officer and Member of the 

Group Executive Committee, Ciba-Geigy Ltd. > 1996 Chairman and 

Delegate of the Board, Ciba Specialty Chemicals, Basel > 1998 – 2000 

CEO and Chairman of the Board, Ciba Specialty Chemicals, Basel 

Dr Axel Paeger, CEO of AMEOS Holding AG, Zurich  

Nationality: German  |  Born 1965  |  Place of residence: Freienbach, 

Switzerland  |  Member since 2005  |  Elected for period of office to 

AGM in 2008

> Dr  med. (Ludwig-Maximilians University Munich; Harvard 

University, Boston MA, USA; University of London, Guy’s Hospital 

Medical School, London) > Master of Business Administration (MBA)/

Master of Business Informatics (Erasmus University Rotterdam School 

of Management, Rotterdam; Case Western Reserve University 

Weatherhead School of Management, Cleveland OH, USA) > 1990 

Medical Intern, Medical Controlling, Massachusetts General Hospital 

(MGH), Boston MA, USA > 1992 Associate Partner, Health Care 

Consultancy, (HCC), Cleveland OH, USA > 1995 Member of the Board, 

Pacific Health Corporation Inc., Long Beach CA, USA > 1999 Chief 

Managing Officer, Asklepios Kliniken, Nidda, Germany > Since 2003 

Chief Executive Officer of AMEOS Holding AG, Zurich
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Adrian Schmassmann, Operational Chairman,

Katadyn Holding AG, Wallisellen 

Nationality: Swiss  |  Born 1959  |  Place of residence: Ebmatingen, 

Switzerland  |  Member since 2006  |  Elected for period of office to 

AGM in 2007

> 1984 Master of economics, University of Basel > 1985 van Baerle  

& Cie. AG, Münchenstein, Switzerland: Assistant to the CEO > 1988 

van Baerle & Cie. AG, Münchenstein, Switzerland: Sales Manager  

North America > 1990 Saurer Holding AG, Glattbrugg: Assistant to 

the CEO > 1993 Saurer Holding AG, Glattbrugg: Investors Relations  

> 1994 W. Schlafhorst & Co. AG, Mönchengladbach, Germany  

(Saurer Group): Project Manager > 1995 W. Schlafhorst & Co. AG, 

Mönchengladbach, Germany (Saurer Group): Head of Sales and 

Marketing and Head of Business Unit Winding Systems >1997 

Katadyn Products Inc., Wallisellen, Zurich: CEO > 1998 Katadyn 

Holding AG, Wallisellen, Zurich: Management Buyout Katadyn 

Group > 2006 Katadyn Holding AG: Operational Chairman > Since 

2004 Director, Teleplan International N.V. (The Netherlands)  

> Since 2004 Director, Selection Schwander AG, Zurich

Pierre Roy, Executive Vice President and COO Digital TV 

Business Kudelski Group, Cheseaux  

Nationality: Swiss  |  Born 1952  |  Place of residence: Begnins, 

Switzerland  |  Member since 2006  |  Elected for period of office to 

AGM in 2007

> 1972-1975 Economic School of the Lausanne University

MBA Finance & Marketing > 1977 Sales and Computer School IBM 

Corp. > 1984 INSEAD Fontainebleau (France) International Advanced 

Management Program > 1975 – 1977 Procter & Gamble Geneva, 

Financial Analyst  > 1977 – 1979 IBM (Switzerland) Geneva and 

Lausanne, Sales Engineer, Data Processing Division > 1979 – 1982 

Digital Equipment Corp. (Europe) Geneva, European Product Group 

Controller/European Sales Controller > 1982 – 1986 Digital Equipment 

Centre Technique (Europe) Sophia Antipolis (France), Finance and 

Administration Manager > 1986 – 1989 Digital Equipment Corp. 

(Europe) Geneva, Scientific Research, Education & Government 

Industries Marketing Manager > 1989 – 1990 Digital Equipment Corp. 

(Europe) Geneva, Applications Marketing Manager (Europe) – DCC 

Public Sector > 1991 – 1992 Digital Equipment Corp.(Europe) Geneva, 

Volume Group European Finance Manager > 1992 – 1998 Kudelski SA, 

Cheseaux/Lausanne, Managing Director Audio division & Business 

Development; Director NagraVision, Precel SA, Neuchâtel, Managing 

Director > 1999 – 2003 PI Consulting Services, Senior Consultant/ 

owner > Since 2003 Executive Vice President and COO Digital TV 

Business Kudelski Group, Cheseaux
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Audit Committee

composition: paul e.otth (chairman), Beat näf (until the 

2006 Annual General meeting), dr Rolf A. meyer and 

dr Axel paeger (since the 2006 Annual General meeting)

The Audit Committee is composed of three non-ex-

ecutive members of the Board of Directors and generally 

meets six times a year, although the Chairman may call 

meetings as often as business requires. Five Audit Commit-

tee meetings were held in 2006, all of them attended – at 

least for part of the time – by external auditors.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors also attended 

three of these meetings. The CEO, CFO and other members 

of management attend the meetings as and when required. 

Representatives of Internal Audit are also involved. The 

Secretary to the Board of Directors prepares meetings and 

records minutes. The full Board of Directors is kept informed 

on a regular basis of the Audit Committee’s activities and 

receives a copy of the minutes too.

The Audit Committee’s main activities are:

Evaluating processes in the company’s risk and control 

environment

Supervising financial reporting

Evaluating internal and external auditing

Compensation & Nomination Committee

composition: dr Wolfgang Kalsbach (chairman), 

dr Rolf A. meyer and dr Axel paeger

The Compensation Committee is composed of three 

non-executive members of the Board of Directors. The 

Chairman calls meetings as often as business requires. 

Three meetings were held in 2006. The CEO and the Head 

of Corporate Human Resources attend as and when re-

quired. The Secretary to the Board of Directors prepares 

meetings and records minutes. The full Board of Directors 

is kept informed on a regular basis of the Compensation 

Committee’s activities.

ß

ß

ß

The other members of the Board of Directors of Ascom 

Holding Ltd. are not involved in any activities in governing 

or supervisory bodies of important public- or private-law 

Swiss or foreign corporations, institutions or foundations.

Mode of operation of the Board of Directors 

As a rule, the Board of Directors meets on a monthly 

basis. Additional meetings or conference calls are held as 

and when necessary. Ten meetings (including one confer-

ence call) were held in 2006. The average board attendance 

was 90.9 %. The ordinary meetings of the Board of Directors 

last generally a full day. The CEO, CFO and other members 

of the Executive Board attend meetings of the Board of 

Directors as and when required. The Board of Directors also 

engages external consultants and specialised attorneys to 

address specific topics.

Self-evaluation of the Board of Directors

Since 2005 the Board of Directors has carried out a 

self-evaluation at year-end on the basis of a standardised 

process using a comprehensive questionnaire. The results 

are discussed at the first meeting in the new year, and any 

measures necessary for improvements are discussed and 

implemented as required. 

Committees of the Board of Directors

To ensure the efficient and effective organisation of 

its duties, the Board of Directors of Ascom Holding Ltd. has 

set up the following committees whose primary role is to 

prepare materials to serve as a basis for Board of Directors 

decisions in specialised areas. All members of the Board are 

entitled to attend any meetings of these committees.
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One of the main activities performed by the Compen-

sation Committee is the formulation of proposals for the 

full Board of Directors with regard to:

the Ascom Group’s salary policies;

defining compensation models for members of the Board 

of Directors and the Executive Board;

implementing and supervising stock option plans;

selecting candidates for election to the Board of Direc-

tors;

reviewing candidates for appointment to the Executive 

Board;

annual appraisals of top management.

Strategy Committee

composition: Juhani Anttila (chairman), dr J.t. Bergqvist, 

pierre Roy and Adrian schmassmann

The Strategy Committee is composed of four non- 

executive members of the Board of Directors. The Chairman 

calls meetings as often as business requires. Three meet-

ings were held in 2006. The CEO attends as and when re-

quired. The Secretary to the Board of Directors prepares 

meetings and records minutes. The full Board of Directors 

is kept informed on a regular basis of the Strategy Commit-

tee activities.

On the main activities performed by the Strategy 

Committee is the formulation of proposals for the full Board 

of Directors with regard to:

Portfolio of business activities, Mergers & Acquisitions, 

technology, structure of the Ascom Group;

Financial planning, in particular cost structure and value 

enhancing measures.

Areas of responsibility

The Board of Directors has delegated the manage-

ment of ongoing business to the CEO who, together with 

the Executive Board as advisory body, is responsible for 

overall management of the Ascom Group. A detailed defini-

tion of areas of responsibility is set down in the Annex to 

the Organisational Guidelines.

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

Information and control instruments in respect of the 

Executive Board/management instruments 

The Ascom Group’s management information system 

(MIS) consists of management reporting and financial con-

solidation.

Each month a balance sheet, income statement, in-

coming and outstanding orders and employee headcount 

for the individual companies are entered in the manage-

ment reporting system. This information is consolidated for 

the various Divisions and for the Group as a whole, and 

compared against the previous year’s figures and the cur-

rent budget. The Executive Board discusses the results and 

the action to be taken at monthly intervals.

Financial consolidation in compliance with IFRS is per-

formed on a quarterly basis by all subsidiaries, which are 

consolidated by segment, region and the Group as a whole.

Financial reports are submitted to the Board of Direc-

tors on a monthly basis.

Additional management instruments for the monitor-

ing of management processes include strategic planning for 

several years, annual planning and quarterly forecasts. 

Regular reports are presented to the Board of Directors and 

the Audit Committee on topics such as legal issues and risk 

management. For information purposes, meetings of the 

Board of Directors and the Audit Committee are attended 

by the CEO and CFO as well as, where necessary, other mem-

bers of management.

Internal auditing is performed on a mandate basis by 

Ernst & Young according to the directions of the Audit Com-

mittee. The Internal Audit Plan is revised on an annual basis 

in conjunction with the external auditors and management, 

and approved by the Audit Committee. Special audits are 

also commissioned as and when required.
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4. executIve BoARd

The Executive Board of the Ascom Group 

The Executive Board is responsible for operational 

management of the Ascom Group within the framework of 

the delegation of responsibilities. Its duties are set down in 

the Organisational Guidelines and the corresponding An-

nexes.

Composition of the Ascom Executive Board 

The Ascom Group Executive Board comprised the fol-

lowing members as of 31 December 2006: 

Member of the 

Executive Board since

Rudolf Hadorn* CEO and  

General Manager 

Security Solutions

1.11.2002  

(CEO from 1.6.2004 

to 15.2.2007)

Fritz Mumenthaler* General Manager 

Wireless Solutions

1.9.2006

Alberto Romaneschi CFO 1.6.2005

* Rudolf hadorn resigned from office as ceo and as a member of the execu-

tive Board of the Ascom Group as of 15 february 2007. fritz mumenthaler was 

elected by the Board of directors as ceo ad interim as of 15 february 2007,  

and as General manager security solutions.

Changes in the Executive Board

Alberto Romaneschi was elected to the Executive 

Board as CFO on 1 September 2006 as successor to Thomas 

Casata. Bernd Kuhlin stepped down from the Executive 

Board on 30 November 2006. In addition to his position as 

CEO, Rudolf Hadorn took over responsibility as General Man-

ager of the division Security Solutions.

Rudolf Hadorn was a member of the Board of Directors 

of CSEM AG in Neuchâtel as the representative of Ascom. 

With the exception of this, the members of the Executive 

Board are not involved in any activities in governing or su-

pervisory bodies of important public- and private-law Swiss 

and foreign corporations, institutions and foundations.
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Rudolf Hadorn was a member of the Committee of 

Industrie-Holding, the Federation of Swiss Industrial Hold-

ing Companies, Berne, as the representative of Ascom. The 

other members of the Executive Board do not perform any 

permanent management or consultancy functions for im-

portant Swiss or foreign interest groups or hold any official 

positions or political offices.

Mode of operation of the Executive Board

The Executive Board generally convenes on a monthly 

basis. Additional meetings or conference calls are held as 

and when necessary. Eight meetings were held in 2006. 

Management contracts

There are no management contracts in the Ascom 

Group.

Organisation of the internal audit 

The internal auditing mandate was awarded to Ernst 

& Young Ltd., Zurich, effective 1 December 2002. 

The Internal Audit Plan is revised in line with the audit 

priorities on an annual basis, in conjunction with the exter-

nal auditors and management, and approved by the Audit 

Committee. Special audits are also commissioned as and 

when required.

Fees are based on the scope of services rendered. In 

2006, Ernst & Young performed a total of three project au-

dits as well as various individual audits. Ernst & Young were 

paid remuneration totalling CHF 201,103 (including expens-

es) for these services.  

Business relationships with closely associated compa-

nies and persons 

No significant business transactions exist with closely 

associated companies and persons.
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Rudolf Hadorn, Chief Executive Officer of the Ascom 

Group + General Manager Security Solutions until 15 

February 2007

Nationality: Swiss  |  Born 1963 

> 1988 Degree in business administration from the University of 

St. Gallen (lic. oec.) > 1989 General Motors Europe, Zurich: financial 

and operational analysis > 1991 – 1996 various management 

functions at GM Hungary, Austria and GM/Opel AG Germany, 

including Head of Department, setting up the controlling system, 

Head of Financial Accounting and Analysis, Director of Auditing 

> 1997 GM/Opel Hungary and South Eastern Europe, Budapest: 

Director of Finance and CEO > 1999 GM/Opel Austria, Vienna: Director 

of Finance and CEO > 2000 Krone GmbH Germany, Berlin: Manage-

ment spokesman and CFO of the Krone Group > 2002 Joined the 

Ascom Group as CFO > From 1 June 2004 to 15 February 2007 CEO of 

the Ascom Group and Chairman of the Executive Board 

Alberto Romaneschi, Chief Financial Officer of the  

Ascom Group

Nationality: Swiss  |  Born 1958 

> 1982 Studied business administration at the University of Zurich, 

graduating with a lic. oec. publ. > 1983 – 1989 Various activities at 

Swiss Bank Corporation in Zurich and New York > 1989 – 1991 

Responsible Corporate Finance Group, Treasury Department, 

Nestlé S.A., Vevey > 1991 – 1993 Head of Finance Department/

Treasurer Nestlé Capital Corporation Inc., Stamford, CT, USA > 1993 – 

1999 Group Treasurer, Nestlé S.A., Vevey > 1999 – 2003: CFO, Cereal 

Partners Worldwide, Morges (Nestlé/General Mills Joint Venture)   

> 2003 – 2005 CFO, Dreyer’s Grand Ice Cream Holdings, Inc., and 

Nestlé Ice Cream Company, LLC, Oakland and San Ramon CA, USA  

> 2005 – 2006 Controller of Global Reporting and Globally Managed 

Businesses, Nestec Inc./Nestlé Group, Vevey > Since 1.9.2006 CFO of 

the Ascom Group and Member of the Executive Board

Fritz Mumenthaler, General Manager Wireless Solutions, 

since 15 February 2007 CEO ad interim of the Ascom Group

Nationality: Swiss  |  Born 1958

> 1985 Business Administration degree at universities of Berne and 

Neuchâtel (lic. rer. pol.) > 1985 Credit Suisse: Manager Human 

Resources > 1988 MBA at INSEAD, Fontainebleau > 1989 Swissphone 

Telecommunications: Assistant Director > 1992 Landis & Gyr: Project 

Manager Corporate Development > 1994 Landis & Gyr Building 

Control, Landis & Stäfa, Siemens Building Technologies: Head of 

Marketing Europe, later Head of Global Marketing in the Building 

Automation Division > 2000 Siemens Building Technologies, Building 

Automation Division: Head of Zone Europe, Member of the Manage-

ment Team of the Division > 1 June 2005 General Manager Wireless 

Solutions and Member of the Executive Board of the Ascom Group 

> Since 15 February 2007 CEO ad interim of the Ascom Group and also 

General Manager Wireless Solutions and General Manager Security 

Solutions

ExECUtiVE bOArd

   Rudolf hadorn < > Alberto Romaneschi    Fritz Mumenthaler <
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In 2006, the members of the Executive Board received 

options worth 20 % of the total of their basic salaries and 

target bonuses. The value of the options was determined 

by an independent third party. 

Compensation for acting members of governing bodies

The following compensations were paid in 2006:

Board of Directors 

The members of the Board of Directors were paid com-

pensation totalling CHF 860,000 in 2006. 

CHF

Juhani Anttila, Chairman 240,000

Paul E. Otth, Vice-Chairman 160,000

Dr J.T. Bergqvist 80,000

Dr Wolfgang Kalsbach   80,000

Dr Rolf A. Meyer   80,000

Dr Axel Paeger 80,000

Pierre Roy (since 6.4.2006) 59,000

Adrian Schmassmann (since 6.4.2006) 59,000

Beat Näf (until 6.4.2006) 22,000

Executive Board  

The total of five members active in the Executive 

Board in fiscal 2006 were paid a total of CHF 2,531,000 (for 

members leaving the Board in the course of the year, the 

total amount includes compensation during their term of 

office including all employer’s contributions to the occupa-

tional pension scheme). The total amount includes provi-

sions in respect of the bonus payments of the three Execu-

tive Board members in office as of 31 December 2006. The 

total amount also includes the amounts paid to departing 

Executive Board members Thomas Casata and Bernd Kuhlin 

as part of the contractually agreed performance of their 

employment contracts. In addition the members of the Ex-

ecutive Board received in total 135,400 options (Ascom 

Stock Option Plan 2006).

ß

ß

5. compensAtIon, shAReholdInGs And loAns

Content and method of determining compensation and 

shareholding programmes

Board of Directors

Fees for members of the Board of Directors are set 

down in the Compensation Guidelines (as an Annex to the 

Organisational Guidelines).

The fee for a regular member of the Board of Directors 

has long remained unchanged at CHF 80,000 per annum. 

The Chairman of the Board of Directors receives a fee 

of CHF 240,000 per annum. The Vice-Chairman of the Board 

of Directors, who is also Chairman of the Audit Committee, 

receives a fee of CHF 160,000 per annum.

Executive Board

The compensation packages for all members of the 

Executive Board are set by the full Board of Directors on the 

recommendation of the Compensation Committee. Each 

member’s total compensation consists of a basic salary and 

a performance-related bonus. The performance-related bo-

nus is linked to the attainment of clearly measurable tar-

gets set at the beginning of the year. On achieving the 

defined targets, the respective member of the Executive 

Board receives a predetermined percentage of his basic sal-

ary as a bonus. In cases where the targets set in the mem-

ber’s respective area of responsibility are exceeded – and 

the Group targets are also achieved – a sum up to a maxi-

mum of double the bonus may be paid.

In addition, the Board of Directors approved an option 

programme for senior management for 2003, 2004, 2005 

and 2006. The allocation of options is made on the basis of 

stock option plans set up each year and agreed in writing. 

The conditions regarding exercising are defined on alloca-

tion of the options, with no subsequent changes being 

made and in particular no re-pricing. The management of 

the Ascom Stock Option Plans is the responsibility of the 

Board of Directors.

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Executive Board members’ bonus claims for 2006 will 

be calculated and paid in 2007 after approval of the annual 

financial statements. The criteria governing payment of the 

2006 bonus are measurable and contractually regulated.

The highest total compensation within the Executive 

Board is paid to the CEO. The total amount for 2006 came 

to CHF 864,000. This figure includes provisions for the bo-

nus claims for fiscal 2006. The CEO was also allocated 60,300 

options under the 2006 Ascom Stock Option Plan.

Former members of the Executive Board 

Former members of the Executive Board Urs Ramseier 

and Daniel Roth were paid a total of CHF 639,000 in 2006 in 

compliance with contractual commitments, thereby settling 

all claims.

Share allotment in the year under review

Ascom Holding Ltd. allotted no shares in 2006.

Share ownership

The number of Ascom Holding Ltd. shares held as of 

31 December 2006 was:

All members of the Board of Directors and parties closely 

linked to such persons, in toto: 62,506 shares 

All members of the Executive Board and parties closely 

linked to such persons, in toto: no shares

Options

2003 Ascom Stock Option Plan

In accordance with the resolution passed by the Board 

of Directors on 27 February 2003, a total of 560,000 options 

were issued to seven members of Ascom’s senior manage-

ment on 1 March 2003, each option entitling the holder to 

purchase one share with a par value of CHF 10. The options 

have a life of four years and are subject both to an exercise 

hurdle (outperformance of the SMI index within a period of 

ß

ß

ß

12 months) and to a blocking period (one third of the op-

tions can be exercised after one year). At the time when the 

options are exercised, the participants must also have a 

valid employment contract with an Ascom company (trun-

cation clause). The strike price is CHF 2.67. The stock option 

plan includes a customary anti-dilution clause. With the 

agreement of all entitled parties, the Board of Directors de-

cided to waive the application of this clause in relation to 

the capital increase of 4 December 2003. Accordingly, there 

has been no reduction in the strike price despite provision 

for this in the contract and despite the fact that the option 

holders would have been entitled to such a reduction. Each 

option now entitles the holder to buy one share with a par 

value of CHF 5.50 and the strike price remains unchanged.

Since all 201,670 options still outstanding were exer-

cised in 2006, there are no more options in circulation pur-

suant to the 2003 Ascom Stock Option Plan.

2004 Ascom Stock Option Plan

In accordance with the resolution passed by the Board 

of Directors on 2 July 2004, a total of 99,000 options were 

issued to seven members of Ascom’s senior management 

on 1 July 2004, each option entitling the holder to purchase 

one share with a par value of CHF 5.50. The strike price is 

CHF 14.21. The options have a life of four years and are sub-

ject both to an exercise hurdle (outperformance of the SMI 

index within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking pe-

riod (one third of the options can be exercised after one 

year). At the time when the options are exercised, the par-

ticipants must also have a valid employment contract with 

an Ascom company (truncation clause). 

On 30 June 2006 the Board of Directors decided to 

reduce the strike price for all options still in circulation by 

CHF 5, with immediate effect, due to the par value repay-

ment of CHF 5 per share. The strike price for all options still 

in circulation pursuant to the 2004 Ascom Stock Option Plan 

was set at CHF 9.21. 
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SMI index within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking 

period to 28 February 2008. 

On 30 June 2006 the Board of Directors decided to 

reduce the strike price for all options still in circulation by 

CHF 5, with immediate effect, due to the par value repay-

ment of CHF 5 per share. The strike price for all options still 

in circulation pursuant to the 2006 Ascom Stock Option Plan 

was set at CHF 14.75. 

29,200 options became nil and void due to termination 

of the holders’ employment relationship, leaving 106,200 

options still outstanding at balance sheet date.

The 223,000 options issued and not yet exercised or 

expired as of 31 December 2006 correspond to 0.62% of the 

total share capital.

Additional fees and remuneration

Members of the Board of Directors and Executive 

Board received no additional fees or remuneration in 

2006.

Loans to members of governing bodies

No loans were extended to members of the Board of 

Directors or the Executive Board in 2006.

Highest total compensation

The highest total compensation paid to a member of 

the Board of Directors in 2006 was CHF 240,000.

In 2006, a total of 42,000 options were exercised out 

of the 74,000 options still outstanding. A further 4,000 op-

tions became nil and void due to termination of the holders’ 

employment relationship, leaving 28,000 options still out-

standing at balance sheet date.

2005 Ascom Stock Option Plan

In accordance with the resolutions passed by the 

Board of Directors on 1 March 2005 and 27 June 2005, a 

total of 150,200 options were issued to seven members of 

Ascom’s senior management on 1 February 2005 and 1 July 

2005, each option entitling the holder to purchase one share 

with a par value of CHF 5.50. The strike price is CHF 22.25. 

The options have a life of four years and are subject both 

to an exercise hurdle (outperformance of the SMI index 

within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking period to 

31 January 2007. 

On 30 June 2006 the Board of Directors decided to 

reduce the strike price for all options still in circulation by 

CHF 5, with immediate effect, due to the par value repay-

ment of CHF 5 per share. The strike price for all options still 

in circulation pursuant to the 2005 Ascom Stock Option Plan 

was set at CHF 17.25. 

61,400 options became nil and void due to termination 

of the holders’ employment relationship, leaving 88,800 op-

tions still outstanding at balance sheet date.

2006 Ascom Stock Option Plan

In accordance with the resolutions passed by the 

Board of Directors on 6 April 2006 and 29 August 2006, a 

total of 135,400 options were issued to four members of 

Ascom’s senior management on 1 March 2006 and 1 Sep-

tember 2006, each option entitling the holder to purchase 

one share with a par value of CHF 5.50. The strike price is 

CHF 19.75. The options have a life of four years and are 

subject both to an exercise hurdle (outperformance of the 

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2006 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Options held as of 31 December 2006:

Issue date Duration in 

years

Strike price 

CHF

Exercised 

options

Expired 

options

Retained 

options

1.7.2004 4 9.21 42,000 4,000 28,000

1.2.2005 4 17.25 0 61,400 88,800

1.3.2006 4 14.75 0 29,200 106,200
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6. shAReholdeRs’ pARtIcIpAtIon RIGhts

Voting rights and protective rights 

Shareholders in Swiss joint-stock companies have ex-

tensive participation and protective rights governed in prin-

ciple by the Swiss Code of Obligations (OR) and supple-

mented by the respective company’s Articles of Incorpora-

tion. The main rights enjoyed by Ascom Holding Ltd. 

shareholders are listed below.

Annual General Meeting

Voting rights and representation  

Each share entitles the holder to one vote represented at 

the Annual General Meeting. There are no voting right 

restrictions.

Each shareholder may be represented by proxy at the An-

nual General Meeting by another shareholder who holds 

a power of attorney and is entered in the share ledger as 

a voting shareholder.

Sole proprietorships, partnerships and legal entities may 

be represented by authorised signatories, natural persons 

by their legal representatives, and married persons by 

their spouses, even if these representatives are not share-

holders.

The Board of Directors makes the requisite arrangements 

to determine voting rights and to establish the results of 

votes and elections.

Resolutions and elections 

The Annual General Meeting has a quorum for transaction 

of business regardless of the number of votes represent-

ed.

Unless otherwise stipulated by law, the Annual General 

Meeting adopts resolutions and carries out votes by an 

absolute majority of valid votes cast. – Elections are de-

cided by the relative majority of votes in a second ballot.

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

The Chairman holds the casting vote.

The Board of Directors determines the voting procedure. 

Shareholders representing shares with a par value of CHF 

100,000 are entitled to demand a written ballot. This 

threshold corresponds to 0.56 % of the votes.

Convocation of the Annual General Meeting 

The Annual General Meeting is convened by the Board of 

Directors or, if need be, by the auditors.

Convocation is effected no later than 20 days before the 

date of the meeting by a single announcement in the 

company’s publication of record (the Swiss Official Ga-

zette of Commerce – SOGC) and by letter to the share-

holders.

Agenda  

In accordance with Art. 699 Para. 3 of the Swiss Code of 

Obligations, requests to place an item on the agenda must 

be submitted to the Board of Directors no later than 45 

days before the date of the Annual General Meeting. 

The invitation to submit agenda items is published in a 

single announcement in the company’s official publication 

organ (the SOGC).

Registration in the share register 

All shareholders recorded in the share register as voting 

shareholders 10 days before the date of the Annual Gen-

eral Meeting are admitted to the Meeting and entitled to 

vote. 

Shareholders who dispose of their shares before the An-

nual General Meeting are no longer entitled to vote.

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß
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7. chAnGe of contRol And defensIve meAsuRes

Obligation to submit a purchase offer

Ascom Holding Ltd.’s Articles of Incorporation contain 

neither an opting-out nor an opting-up clause. Anyone who 

acquires one-third (33 1⁄3 %) of Ascom Holding Ltd.’s share 

capital is obliged under the Stock Exchange Act (SESTA Art. 

32) to submit a public purchase offer for the remaining 

shares.

Change of control clauses

No change of control clauses have been agreed in cov-

enants with members of the Board of Directors, the Execu-

tive Board or other senior managers. The period of notice 

for senior management varies between 6 and 24 months. 

After the balance sheet date, the company agreed with its 

CEO a.i. to a clause regarding change of control, without 

changing the previous 12 months period of notice in his 

employment contract. As a result of the agreed clause re-

garding change of control, the company may owe the CEO 

a.i. additional compensation which can be up to the amount 

of one year’s salary.

8. AudItoRs

Group Auditors and Statutory Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd., Zurich (formerly STG 

Coopers & Lybrand Ltd.), have acted in the capacity of Group 

auditors and statutory auditors since 1987. Stephen Wil-

liams has been head auditor since 2003. The statutory audi-

tors are appointed by the Annual General Meeting for a 

term of one fiscal year.

Auditing fee 

PricewaterhouseCoopers was paid compensation of 

approximately CHF 1,234,000 for services in connection with 

auditing the annual financial statements of Ascom Holding 

Ltd. and the Group companies and the consolidated state-

ments of the Ascom Group.

Additional fees 

In 2006, compensation of approximately CHF 451,000  

was paid for tax consulting and CHF 434,500  for other con-

sulting services. Fees for other consulting services are re-

lated to the performance of mandates for transactions 

which were set in motion before 1 January 2006. Since then, 

the company no longer issues such mandates.

Monitoring and control instruments 

The Audit Committee as a committee of the Board of 

Directors evaluates the performance, fees and indepen-

dence of the statutory auditors each year. The statutory 

auditors attended all Audit Committee meetings held in 

2006, at least for part of the time.

The Audit Committee agrees the scope of the external 

audit, audit plans and relevant processes with the statu-

tory auditors and discusses the results of the respective 

audits with the external auditors. Representatives of the 

statutory auditors are regularly invited to meetings of the 

Audit Committee.
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9. InfoRmAtIon polIcy 

The Board of Directors of Ascom Holding Ltd. and the 

Executive Board have undertaken to align their organisa-

tional structure with the latest corporate governance stan-

dards.

The Board of Directors has also issued a directive to 

implement the publication requirements in effect under 

stock exchange regulations. 

Ascom’s information policy is based on commitment 

to a high degree of transparency and equal treatment of all 

stakeholder groups. Corporate communications come under 

the remit of the General Secretary. Ascom Holding Ltd. pro-

vides a wide range of communication tools to keep its 

shareholders, the media, analysts and other stakeholder 

groups informed:

Publications

Annual Report

Half-Year Report

The official publication organ of Ascom Holding Ltd. is the 

Swiss Official Gazette of Commerce (SOGC)

Events

Annual Media Conference and Half-Year Media Conference 

for media representatives and analysts

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Roadshows for institutional investors

Analyst & Media Day

Media releases

In accordance with the provisions of the SWX Swiss Ex-

change, Ascom publishes information on an ad hoc and 

regular basis. Furthermore, Ascom publishes Ascom me-

dia releases on significant business activities and on its 

products and services.

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß

Electronic information tools

The Ascom website (www.ascom.com) provides a 

comprehensive overview of the company’s structure and 

activities. 

All media releases and presentations at media confer-

ences are available on the website (www ascom.com). The 

media releases may also be received by e-mail by subscrib-

ing to the News Service on the website or via News Feed.

The Articles of Association of Ascom Holding Ltd., the 

Organisational Regulations, a current extract from the Com-

mercial Register and the minutes of the last General Meet-

ing of Shareholders are available for downloading from the 

website, under “Corporate Governance”.
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CONSOLidAtEd bALANCE ShEEt

CHFm Notes 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

ASSETS Property, plant and equipment 4, 30 43.7 46.8

Intangible assets 5 28.8 34.7

Deferred tax assets 6 5.3 3.5

Financial assets 7 10.7 18.0

Associated companies 7 – 0.9

Non-current assets 88.5 103.9

Inventories and work in process 8 51.5 70.0

Trade receivables 9 107.2 169.1

Other current assets 10 61.6 48.4

Financial assets held for trading purposes 11 0.6 2.2

Cash and cash equivalents 12 165.6 278.9

386.5 568.6

Assets held for sale 30 17.8 89.3

Current assets 404.3 657.9

Total assets 492.8 761.8

LIABILITIES 

AND-

sHAre-

HoLders’ 

equity

Share capital 14 18.0 198.0

Reserves 14 (29.0) (36.9)

Retained earnings 14 231.0 224.1

220.0 385.2

Minority interests 15 0.1 0.1

equity 220.1 385.3

Deferred tax liabilities 6 4.3 4.3

Borrowings 16 – 0.6

Retirement benefit	obligations 17 18.0 19.7

Provisions 18 19.9 22.8

Other	liabilities 19 3.8 9.9

Long-term liabilities 46.0 57.3

Trade	payables 41.3 70.8

Borrowings 16 0.1 1.4

Provisions 18 21.5 25.6

Liabilities	for	income	taxes 20 6.7 6.0

Other	liabilities 21 129.3 148.6

198.9 252.4

Liabilities	in	relation	to	assets	held	for	sale 30 27.8 66.8

short-term liabilities 226.7 319.2

total liabilities 272.7 376.5

total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 492.8 761.8

The	notes	on	pages	71	to	117	are	an	integral	part	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements.
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CONSOLidAtEd iNCOME StAtEMENt

CHFm Notes 2006 2005

Revenue 22, 37 564.9 553.3

Cost of goods sold (366.4) (353.5)

Gross profit 198.5 199.8

Marketing and distribution (103.3) (99.8)

Research and development (30.8) (35.3)

Administration (31.4) (47.6)

operating result 1 37 33.0 17.1

Amortisation of intangible assets 5 (1.7) (5.3)

Other income/(expenses), net 23 1.7 19.6

Profit before interest and taxes (ebit) 37 33.0 31.4

Financial income 24 3.7 3.2

Financial expenses 24 (3.7) (9.7)

Net financial income/(expenses) 24 – (6.5)

Share in net income of associated company – 0.3

Profit before income taxes 33.0 25.2

Income taxes 25 0.2 2.8

Profit from continuing operations 33.2 28.0

(Loss)/Profit	from	discontinued	operations 30 (16.1) 116.8

Group profit 17.1 144.8

1 Before amortisation of intangible assets and other (expenses)/income

Allocation of Group profit

Shareholders	of	the	Holding	company 17.1 144.8

Minorities 15 – –

earnings per share for profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company in CHF

Group	basic 28 0.48 4.04

Continuing	operations	basic 0.93 0.78

Group	diluted 28 0.48 4.01

Continuing	operations	diluted 0.93 0.78

The	notes	on	pages	71	to	117	are	an	integral	part	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements.
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CONSOLidAtEd CASh fLOw StAtEMENt

CHFm Notes 2006 2005

Cash flow from operating activities

Group profit 17.1 144.8

Depreciation	on

–	Property,	plant	and	equipment 4 11.1 17.6

–	Intangible	assets 5 3.5 7.8

Increase	in	provisions 18.2 22.3

Release	of	provisions (6.9) (27.3)

(Profit)/loss	from	sale	of

–	Property,	plant	and	equipment 23 (1.2) (6.1)

–	Subsidiaries,	associated	companies	and	business	units 23 2.6 (97.5)

Expense	option	program 29 1.0 0.7

Other	expenses/(income) 23,	30 4.9 (8.6)

Share	in	net	income	of	associated	company 7 – (0.3)

Income	tax	expenses 25 0.9 1.9

Financial	expenses,	net 24,	30 0.2 5.8

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in net working capital 51.4 61.1

Changes	in	inventory	and	work	in	process (6.6) 7.8

Changes	in	trade	receivables 6.0 8.0

Changes	in	trade	payables (1.2) (1.3)

Other	items	excluding	cash (4.6) 22.1

Cash flow from operating activities 45.0 97.7

Paid	restructuring	expenses (8.5) (13.7)

Paid	warranty	costs	and	guarantees (5.4) (2.5)

Paid	other	accrued	costs (3.0) (24.9)

Other	income/(expenses) 23,	30 (4.9) 8.6

Interest	paid (0.5) (10.7)

Interest	received 3.3 2.7

Other	financial	expenses (2.1) (5.9)

Income	tax	paid (9.0) (10.3)

Net cash flow from operating activities 14.9 41.0

The	notes	on	pages	71	to	117	are	an	integral	part	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements.
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CHFm Notes 2006 2005

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (13.5) (17.1)

Sale of property, plant and equipment 4, 23 37.6 17.0

Acquisition of intangible assets 5 (2.3) (9.2)

Sale of intangible assets 5 0.1 0.1

Capital repayment of associated company – 1.0

Sale of consolidated companies and business units 30 38.1 145.7

Sale of financial	assets – 8.3

Net cash flow from investing activities 60.0 145.8

Cash flow from financing activities

Decrease	in	long-term	borrowings (0.6) (3.5)

Decrease	in	short-term	borrowings (1.2) (203.0)

Increase	in	short-term	borrowings 0.9 1.7

Reduction	of	nominal	share	capital (178.5) –

Dividend	payment (10.1) (9.9)

Sale	of	own	shares 14 0.4 0.1

Purchase	of	own	shares 14 (0.8) (4.8)

Escrow	bondholders – 96.5

Net cash flow from financing activities (189.9) (122.9)

(decrease)/increase in cash (115.0) 63.9

Unrestricted	cash	at	beginning	of	year 278.9 212.5

Effect	of	exchange	rate	fluctuations	on	cash 1.7 2.5

unrestricted cash at end of year 12 165.6 278.9

The	notes	on	pages	71	to	117	are	an	integral	part	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements.
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CONSOLidAtEd StAtEMENt Of ChANgES iN EQUity

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Holding company

CHFm Share

capital

Own  

shares

Legal and

special

reserves

Other

reserves

(Accumu-

lated loss)/ 

Retained

earnings

Translation 

adjustments

Minority

interests

Total

Balance at 31.12.2004 198.0 (4.4) 21.9 0.4 89.2 (59.2) – 245.9

Currency translation adjustments – – – – – 6.7 – 6.7

Group profit – – – – 144.8 – – 144.8

Total recognised income
and expenses

151.5

Costs	of	share-based	payment – – – 0.7 – – – 0.7

Dividend	payment – – – – (9.9) – – (9.9)	

Purchase	of	own	shares – (4.6) – – – – – (4.6)

Exercised	option – 1.6 – – – – – 1.6

Purchase	of	minority	interests – – – – – – 0.1 0.1

Balance at 31.12.2005 198.0 (7.4) 21.9 1.1 224.1 (52.5) 0.1 385.3

Currency	translation	adjustments – – – – – 3.9 – 3.9

Group	profit – – – – 17.1 – – 17.1

Total recognised income
and expenses

21.0

Costs	of	share-based	payment – – – 1.0 – – – 1.0

Capital	redemption (180.0) 1.6 – – (0,1) – – (178.5)

Dividend	payment – – – – (10.1) – – (10.1)

Purchase	of	own	shares – (0.8) – – – – – (0.8)

Sale	of	own	shares – 0.4 – – – – – 0.4

Exercised	option – 1.8 – – – – – 1.8

Balance at 31.12.2006 18.0 (4.4) 21.9 2.1 231.0 (48.6) 0.1 220.1

The	notes	on	pages	71	to	117	are	an	integral	part	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements.
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1. summARy of the GeneRAl GRoup AccountInG polIcIes 

1.1 General

The Ascom consolidated financial	statements	are	drawn	up	in	Swiss	francs	(CHF)	on	the	basis	of	

the	individual	Group	company	accounts.	These	are	based	on	historical	costs	except	for	the	revaluation	

of	certain	financial	assets	at	market	values	(more	specifically	–	financial	assets	and	liabilities	(includ-

ing	derivatives)	at	fair	value	through	profit	and	loss),	and	are	prepared	in	accordance	with	Interna-

tional	Financial	Reporting	Standards	(IFRS)	including	the	standards	and	interpretation	guidelines	issued	

by	 the	 International	Accounting	Standards	Board	as	well	as	 the	valuation	and	accounting	policies	

described	below.	These	policies	have	been	consistently	applied.	

The	preparation	of	financial	statements	in	conformity	with	IFRS	requires	the	use	of	certain	criti-

cal	accounting	estimates.	It	also	requires	management	to	exercise	its	judgment	in	the	process	of	ap-

plying	the	Group’s	accounting	policies.	The	areas	involving	a	higher	degree	of	judgment	or	complexity,	

or	areas	where	assumptions	and	estimates	are	significant	to	the	consolidated	financial	statements,	

are	disclosed	in	Note	1.23.

The	closing	date	for	the	Group	and	the	individual	companies	is	31	December.	Individual	items	of	

information	with	respect	to	the	previous	year	have	been	reclassified	in	order	to	allow	comparability	

with	the	data	presented	for	the	year	under	review.	The	main	reclassifications	have	been	made	in	the	

segment	reporting	and	in	the	statement	on	discontinued	operations	due	to	changes	in	the	scope	of	

consolidation	and/or	allocations.

New accounting standards and iFriC interpretations

a)	Amendments	to	published	standards	effective	in	2006

IAS	19	(Amendment),	Employee	Benefits,	is	mandatory	for	the	Group’s	accounting	periods	begin-

ning	on	or	after	1	January	2006.	It	introduces	the	option	of	an	alternative	recognition	approach	for	

actuarial	gains	and	losses.	It	may	impose	additional	recognition	requirements	for	multi-employer	plans	

where	insufficient	information	is	available	to	apply	defined	benefit	accounting.	It	also	adds	new	dis-

closure	 requirements.	 As	 the	 Group	 does	 not	 intend	 to	 change	 the	 accounting	 policy	 adopted	 for	

recognition	of	actuarial	gains	and	losses	and	does	not	participate	in	any	multi-employer	plans,	adop-

tion	 of	 this	 amendment	 only	 impacts	 the	 format	 and	 extent	 of	 disclosures	 presented	 in	 the	 ac-

counts.

b)	Standards	early	adopted	by	the	Group:

No	standards	have	been	early	adopted	by	the	Group	in	2006.

NOtES tO thE CONSOLidAtEd fiNANCiAL StAtEMENtS
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c) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2006	but	having	no	significant	impact	on	

the	present	annual	financial	statements:

The	following	standards,	amendments	and	interpretations	are	mandatory	for	accounting	periods	

beginning	on	or	after	1	January	2006	but	have	had	no	significant	impact	on	the	present	annual	finan-

cial	statements:

IAS	21	(Amendment),	Net	Investment	in	a	Foreign	Operation;

IAS	39	(Amendment),	Cash	Flow	Hedge	Accounting	of	Forecast	Intragroup	Transactions;

IAS	39	(Amendment),	The	Fair	Value	Option;

IAS	39	and	IFRS	4	(Amendment),	Financial	Guarantee	Contracts;

IFRS	1	(Amendment),	First-time	Adoption	of	International	Financial	Reporting	Standards	and	IFRS	6	

(Amendment),	Exploration	for	and	Evaluation	of	Mineral	Resources;	

IFRIC	6,	Liabilities	arising	from	Participating	in	a	Specific	Market	–	Waste	Electrical	and	Electronic	

Equipment;

IFRIC	4,	Determining	whether	an	Arrangement	contains	a	Lease;	and

IFRIC	5,	Rights	to	Interests	arising	from	Decommissioning,	Restoration	and	Environmental	Rehabilita-

tion	Funds.

d)	Standards	and	interpretations	to	existing	standards	that	are	not	yet	effective	and	have	not	been	

early	adopted	by	the	Group:

The	following	interpretations	to	existing	standards	have	been	published	that	are	mandatory	for	

the	Group’s	accounting	periods	beginning	on	or	after	1	January	2007	that	the	Group	has	not	early	

adopted:	

IFRS	7,	Financial	Instruments:	Disclosures,	and	the	complementary	Amendment	to	IAS	1,	Presentation	

of	Financial	Statements	–	Capital	Disclosures	(effective	from	1	January	2007).	IFRS	7	introduces	new	

disclosures	 to	 improve	 the	 information	about	financial	 instruments.	 It	 requires	 the	disclosure	of	

qualitative	and	quantitative	information	about	exposure	to	risks	arising	from	financial	instruments,	

including	specified	minimum	disclosures	about	credit	risk,	liquidity	risk,	and	market	risk,	including	

sensitivity	analysis	for	market	risk.	The	amendment	to	IAS	1	introduces	disclosures	about	the	level	

of	an	entity’s	capital	and	how	it	manages	capital.	The	Group	will	apply	IFRS	7	and	the	amendment	

to	IAS	1	from	annual	periods	beginning	1	January	2007;

IFRS	8,	Operating	Segments	(effective	for	annual	periods	beginning	on	or	after	1	January	2009).	This	

standard	requires	companies	to	determine	their	segments	on	the	basis	of	the	information	that	is	

made	available	to	the	chief	operating	decision	maker	in	order	to	manage	the	business.	Management	

is	currently	studying	the	effects	that	implementation	of	this	standard	will	have	on	Ascom’s	financial	

reporting;

ß

ß

ß
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IFRIC 8,	Scope	of	IFRS	2	(effective	for	annual	periods	beginning	on	or	after	1	May	2006).	IFRIC	8	requires	

consideration	of	transactions	involving	the	issuance	of	equity	instruments	–	where	the	identifiable	

consideration	received	 is	 less	than	the	fair	value	of	the	equity	 instruments	 issued	–	to	establish	

whether	or	not	they	fall	within	the	scope	of	IFRS	2.	The	Group	will	apply	IFRIC	8	from	1	January	2007,	

but	it	is	not	expected	to	have	any	impact	on	the	Group’s	accounts;	

IFRIC	10,	Interim	Financial	Reporting	and	Impairment	(effective	for	annual	periods	beginning	on	or	

after	1	November	2006).	IFRIC	10	prohibits	the	impairment	losses	recognised	in	an	interim	period	on	

goodwill,	investments	in	equity	instruments	and	investments	in	financial	assets	carried	at	cost	to	be	

reversed	at	a	subsequent	balance	sheet	date.	The	Group	will	apply	IFRIC	10	from	1	January	2007,	but	

it	is	not	expected	to	have	any	impact	on	the	Group’s	accounts;	and

IFRIC	11,	Group	and	Treasury	Share	Transactions	(effective	for	annual	periods	beginning	on	or	after	

1	March	2007).	This	pronouncement	provides	further	detailed	guidance	 in	connection	with	share	

based	payments	to	employees.	Management	is	currently	studying	the	effects	that	implementation	

of	this	standard	will	have	on	Ascom’s	financial	reporting.

e)	Interpretations	to	existing	standards	that	are	not	yet	effective	and	not	relevant	for	the	Group’s	

operations:

The	following	interpretations	to	existing	standards	have	been	published	that	are	mandatory	for	

the	Group’s	accounting	periods	beginning	on	or	after	January	2006	or	later	periods	but	are	not	relevant	

for	the	Group’s	operations:	

IFRIC	7,	Applying	the	Restatement	Approach	under	IAS	29,	Financial	Reporting	in	Hyperinflationary	

Economies	(effective	from	1	March	2006).	IFRIC	7	provides	guidance	on	how	to	apply	requirements	

of	IAS	29	in	a	reporting	period	in	which	an	entity	identifies	the	existence	of	hyperinflation	in	the	

economy	of	its	functional	currency,	when	the	economy	was	not	hyperinflationary	in	the	prior	period.	

As	none	of	the	group	entities	have	a	currency	of	a	hyperinflationary	economy	as	its	functional	cur-

rency,	IFRIC	7	is	not	relevant	to	the	Group’s	operations;	

IFRIC	9,	Reassessment	of	embedded	derivatives	(effective	for	annual	periods	beginning	on	or	after	

1	June	2006).	IFRIC	9	requires	an	entity	to	assess	whether	an	embedded	derivative	is	required	to	be	

separated	from	the	host	contract	and	accounted	for	as	a	derivative	when	the	entity	first	becomes	a	

party	to	the	contract.	Subsequent	reassessment	is	prohibited	unless	there	is	a	change	in	the	terms	

of	the	contract	that	significantly	modifies	the	cash	flows	that	otherwise	would	be	required	under	

the	contract,	in	which	case	reassessment	is	required.	As	none	of	the	group	entities	have	changed	the	

terms	of	their	contracts,	IFRIC	9	is	not	relevant	to	the	Group’s	operations;	and

IFRIC	 12,	 Service	 Concession	 Arrangements	 (effective	 for	 annual	 periods	 beginning	 on	 or	 after		

1	January	2008).	This	pronouncement	is	not	relevant	for	Ascom.
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1.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial	statements	cover	Ascom	Holding	Ltd.	and	all	companies	over	which	

the	Group	has	the	power	to	govern	the	financial	and	operating	policies	or	which	it	otherwise	controls.	

As	a	rule,	control	is	assumed	if	Ascom	holds	more	than	half	of	the	voting	rights.	The	list	of	the	sig-

nificant	group	companies	is	included	under	note	38.	The	purchase	method	of	accounting	is	used	to	

account	for	the	acquisition	of	subsidiaries	by	the	Group.	The	cost	of	an	acquisition	is	measured	as	the	

fair	value	of	the	assets	given,	equity	instruments	issued	and	liabilities	incurred	or	assumed	at	the	date	

of	exchange,	plus	costs	directly	attributable	to	the	acquisition.	Identifiable	assets	acquired	and	liabil-

ities	and	contingent	liabilities	assumed	in	a	business	combination	are	measured	initially	at	their	fair	

values	at	the	acquisition	date,	irrespective	of	the	extent	of	any	minority	interest.	The	excess	of	the	

cost	of	acquisition	over	the	fair	value	of	the	Group’s	share	of	the	identifiable	net	assets	acquired	is	

recorded	as	goodwill.	If	the	cost	of	acquisition	is	less	than	the	fair	value	of	the	net	assets	of	the	sub-

sidiary	acquired,	the	difference	is	recognised	directly	in	the	income	statement	.	Percentages	in	capital	

correspond	to	percentages	in	voting	rights	held.	Group	companies	are	included	in	the	consolidated	

financial	statements	in	their	entirety.	Minority	interests	in	equity	and	the	net	income	of	Group	com-

panies	 are	 included	 in	 the	 equity	 and	 net	 income	 respectively,	 and	 are	 disclosed	 separately	 (eco-

nomic	entity	approach).	Intercompany	transactions	and	balances,	including	intercompany	profits,	are	

eliminated	on	consolidation.	Investments	in	companies	in	which	the	Ascom	Group	is	able	to	exercise	

significant	influence	are	associated	companies	(as	a	rule,	ownership	between	20	%	and	50	%)	and	are	

accounted	for	using	the	equity	method.	They	are	initially	recognized	at	cost	and	adjusted	thereafter	

for	the	post-acquisition	change	in	Ascom’s	share	of	the	net	assets	of	the	investee.	Companies	acquired	

or	disposed	of	during	the	year	are	consolidated	or	de-consolidated	from	the	date	on	which	control	is	

transferred	 to	 the	Group	or	 from	the	date	 the	 control	 ceases.	Profits	or	 losses	 from	disposals	are	

charged	to	income.

1.3 Foreign currency translation

Items	included	in	the	financial	statements	of	each	of	the	Group’s	entities	are	measured	using	the	

currency	of	the	primary	economic	environment	in	which	the	entity	operates	(‘the	functional	currency’).	

The	consolidated	financial	statements	are	presented	in	Swiss	francs	(CHF),	which	is	the	Group’s	func-

tional	and	presentation	currency.

Income	statements	of	foreign	entities	are	translated	into	the	Group’s	presentation	currency	at	

average	exchange	rates	for	the	year.	The	balance	sheets	are	translated	at	the	exchange	rates	prevail-

ing	on	31	December.	Exchange	differences	arising	from	the	re-conversion	of	the	net	 investment	 in	

subsidiaries	 and	 associated	 undertakings	 in	 foreign	 functional	 currencies	 are	 taken	 to	 translation	

adjustments	in	equity.	Also	taken	to	equity	are	differences	from	the	retranslation	of	borrowings	that	

hedge	such	investments	in	foreign	group	companies.	Upon	disposal	of	a	foreign	entity,	accumulated	

exchange	differences	are	recognized	in	the	income	statement	as	part	of	the	gain	or	loss	on	sale.
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Foreign currency translation

in CHF ISO-code Unit 31.12.

2006

Average 

 2006

31.12.

2005

Average 

 2005

US dollar USD 1 1.219 1.263 1.316 1.234

Pound sterling GBP 1 2.397 2.302 2.261 2.256

Euro EUR 1 1.607 1.571 1.559 1.547

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as 

assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the rate prevailing on the balance sheet 

date. Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the 

transaction date. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 

conversion of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the 

income statement. Such balances are converted at year-end exchange rates.

1.4 derivative financial instruments

All derivative financial	instruments	are	initially	recorded	at	their	fair	value	including	transaction	

costs.	All	purchases	and	sales	are	recognised	on	the	settlement	date.	Subsequently,	derivative	finan-

cial	 instruments	are	accounted	for	at	market	value	on	a	regular	basis.	No	hedge	accounting	 is	ap-

plied.

All	changes	in	market	value	of	the	financial	instruments	are	recorded	in	net	financial	income/

(expenses)	of	the	corresponding	reporting	period.	Derivative	financial	instruments	comprise	forward	

exchange	contracts	and	one	call	option	(Note	14).	Forwards	are	used	to	hedge	currency	risks.	The	call	

option	was	used	to	hedge	the	stock	options	granted	to	senior	management	in	2003.	This	call	option	

was	fully	exercised	during	2006.	All	subsequent	plans	are	covered	by	the	purchase	of	own	shares.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property,	plant	and	equipment	is	recorded	at	purchase	or	manufacturing	cost	(i.e.	historical	cost)	

less	accumulated	depreciation.	Historical	cost	includes	expenditure	that	is	directly	attributable	to	the	

items	acquired.	Leases	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	where	the	Group	holds	the	risks	and	rewards	

incident	to	ownership	are	classified	as	finance	leases.	Finance	leases	are	capitalised	at	the	inception	

of	the	lease	at	the	lower	of	the	fair	market	value	of	the	leased	property	or	the	present	value	of	the	

lease	payments.	Each	 leasing	payment	 is	allocated	to	 the	 liability	and	finance	charges	 in	order	 to	

achieve	a	constant	interest	rate	on	the	outstanding	lease	liability.	The	corresponding	lease	obligations	

are	included	in	the	short-term	and	long-term	liabilities.	The	interest	portion	of	the	lease	payments	is	

charged	to	the	income	statement	over	the	lease	period.	Property,	plant	and	equipment	acquired	under	

finance	leases	are	depreciated	over	the	lease	period	or,	if	shorter,	the	useful	life	of	the	asset.	Land	is	

valued	at	cost	and	is	not	depreciated.	Depreciation	on	property,	plant	and	equipment	is	calculated	

using	the	straight-line	method	based	on	the	estimated	useful	lives	as	shown	in	the	following	table:
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Useful life in years

Buildings 20 – 40

Installations and transport systems 7 – 10

Production equipment, measuring and test equipment, IT hardware, furniture 3 – 5

Tools 3

Rental equipment Duration of rental contract

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 

balance sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits	associated	with	the	item	will	

flow	to	the	Group	and	the	cost	of	the	item	can	be	measured	reliably.	The	carrying	amount	of	the	re-

placed	part	is	derecognised.	All	other	repairs	and	maintenance	are	charged	to	the	income	statement	

during	the	financial	period	in	which	they	are	incurred.

Items	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	are	eliminated	from	the	balance	sheet	from	their	date	

of	disposal,	or	written	off	when	no	further	economic	benefit	can	be	expected	from	their	use.	All	gains	

or	 losses	arising	from	the	disposal	of	such	items	are	included	in	the	income	statement.	Where	the	

carrying	amount	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	is	higher	than	the	recoverable	amount,	these	assets	

are	depreciated	to	the	recoverable	amount.	The	recoverable	amount	is	the	higher	of	an	asset’s	fair	

value	less	costs	to	sell	and	value	in	use.	Land	and/or	buildings	that	are	held	for	appreciation	of	value	

or	for	rental	income	are	defined	as	investment	properties.	This	real	estate	is	carried	at	acquisition	cost	

less	any	necessary	depreciation.

1.6 intangible assets

Licences,	patents,	trademarks,	software	and	other	similar	rights	are	recorded	at	cost	less	accu-

mulated	amortisation.	The	amortisation	charge	is	calculated	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	period	

of	its	estimated	useful	economic	life	up	to	a	maximum	of	5	years	or	in	proportion	to	the	estimated	

usage.	Purchased	goodwill	(the	excess	of	the	purchase	price	over	the	fair	value	of	the	net	assets	ac-

quired)	is	recorded	as	an	intangible	asset	with	an	indefinite	useful	life	that	is	tested	for	impairment	

at	least	once	a	year.	For	the	purposes	of	testing	for	impairment,	the	goodwill	was	allocated	to	the	

corresponding	cash	generating	units.	Goodwill	 is	 carried	at	 cost	 less	any	accumulated	 impairment	

losses.
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1.7 Financial assets/investments

Financial assets are classified	as	“Financial	assets	and	liabilities	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	

loss”,	 “Held-to-maturity	 investments”,	 “Loans	and	 receivables”	and	“Financial	assets	available	 for	

sale”.

a)	Financial	assets	and	liabilities	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss

The	financial	assets	and	liabilities	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss	are	either	held	for	trading	

purposes	or	designated	as	such.	Financial	investments	held	for	trading	are	purchased	with	the	inten-

tion	of	generating	a	profit	from	short-term	fluctuations	in	the	price.	Derivatives	are	classified	as	held	

for	trading.	Assets	in	this	category	are	classified	as	current	assets.	

b)	Held-to-maturity	investments

Held-to-maturity	 investments	are	financial	assets	with	a	fixed	term	which	the	Group	has	the	

intention	and	ability	to	hold	to	maturity.

c)	Loans	and	receivables

Loans	and	receivables	are	non-derivative	financial	assets	with	fixed	or	determinable	payments	

that	are	not	quoted	in	an	active	market.	They	are	included	in	current	assets,	except	for	maturities	

greater	than	12	months	after	the	balance	sheet	date.	These	are	classified	as	non-current	assets.	Loans	

and	receivables	are	classified	as	trade	receivables	and	financial	assets	in	the	balance	sheet.	

d)	Financial	assets	available	for	sale

Available-for-sale	financial	assets	are	non-derivative	financial	instruments	that	are	either	allo-

cated	to	this	category	or	do	not	belong	to	any	other	category.	They	are	included	in	non-current	assets	

unless	 management	 intends	 to	 dispose	 of	 the	 investment	 within	 12	 months	 of	 the	 balance	 sheet	

date.	

All	financial	instruments	are	recorded	initially	at	fair	value	including	transaction	costs.	All	pur-

chases	and	sales	are	recognized	on	the	settlement	date,	i.e.	on	the	day	of	the	transfer	of	the	asset.	

After	initial	recognition,	financial	assets	and	liabilities	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss	are	recorded	

at	market	value	and	changes	in	market	value	are	charged	to	financial	income/(expenses)	in	the	ap-

propriate	reporting	period.	The	fair	value	of	exchange-listed	financial	instruments	is	based	on	available	

stock	exchange	prices.	If	a	financial	instrument	is	not	traded	on	an	active	market,	alternative	valuation	

methods	are	used	based	on	 recent	 transactions	between	willing	and	 independent	 third	parties	or	

discounted	cash	flow	analysis	or	similar.

Following	initial	recognition,	held-to-maturity	financial	investments	are	recorded	at	their	amor-

tised	cost	value	using	the	effective	interest	method	(amortised	costs).	Interest	is	recognised	in	the	

income	statement	as	part	of	other	income.	Following	initial	recognition,	available-for-sale	financial	

investments	are	recognised	at	fair	market	value	and	changes	in	value	are	charged	to	equity.	Permanent	

impairments	are	recognised	in	the	income	statement.	Dividends	on	available-for-sale	equity	instru-

ments	are	recognised	in	the	income	statement	as	part	of	other	income	when	the	Group’s	right	to	receive	

payments	is	established.	
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1.8 inventories and work in process

Inventories are stated at the lower of purchase costs/manufacturing costs or net realizable val-

ue. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the normal course of business, less estimated 

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Manufacturing costs include 

direct material and production costs as well as material and production overheads. The costs are de-

termined using the weighted average method.

Value adjustments are made for obsolete and slow-moving items. Inventories held for the fulfill-

ment	of	long-term	delivery	commitments	are	valued	according	to	the	delivery	commitment.	Project	

contracts	are	recognised	according	to	the	stage	of	completion	of	the	contract	(POC	method)	(cf.	also	

Note	1.18),	and	the	respective	effect	is	recognised	in	the	income	statement.	Customer	prepayments	

are	shown	separately	as	a	liability.	Provisions	are	made	to	cover	all	anticipated	losses,	as	soon	as	these	

are	identified.

1.9 trade receivables

Trade	receivables	are	carried	at	the	invoiced	amount	less	an	allowance	for	doubtful	accounts.	An	

allowance	for	doubtful	accounts	is	recognised	when	it	becomes	obvious	that	the	originally	invoiced	

amount	is	not	fully	realisable.	The	amount	of	the	allowance	for	doubtful	accounts	is	determined	by	

reference	to	the	originally	invoiced	amount	less	the	amount	of	the	expected	realisation.

1.10 other current assets

Prepayments	and	accrued	income	are	stated	at	cost	or	net	realizable	value.

1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	includes	cash	in	hand,	deposits	held	at	call	with	banks,	other	short-

term	highly	liquid	investments	with	original	maturities	of	three	months	or	less,	and	bank	overdrafts.	

Bank	overdrafts	are	shown	within	borrowings	on	the	balance	sheet.	Cash	which	is	restricted	for	at	least	

12	months	is	recognised	as	a	financial	asset.

1.12 research and development costs

All	research	costs	are	charged	immediately	to	income.	Costs	incurred	on	development	projects	

(relating	to	the	design	and	testing	of	new	or	improved	products)	are	recognised	as	intangible	assets	

when	the	following	criteria	are	fulfilled:

a)	 it	is	technically	feasible	to	complete	the	intangible	asset	so	that	it	will	be	available	for	use	or	sale

b)	management	intends	to	complete	the	intangible	asset	and	use	or	sell	it

c)	 there	is	an	ability	to	use	or	sell	the	intangible	asset

d)	 it	can	be	demonstrated	how	the	intangible	asset	will	generate	probable	future	economic	benefits

e)	 adequate	technical,	financial	and	other	resources	to	complete	the	development	and	to	use	or	sell		

	 the	intangible	asset	are	available

f)	 the	expenditure	attributable	to	the	intangible	asset	during	its	development	can	be	reliably	measured
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The capitalised assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the 

respective product. Development costs that cannot be capitalised are charged to income in the period 

in which they occur. Property, plant and equipment used for research and development activities are 

capitalised in the same way as other property, plant and equipment, and amortised on a straight-line 

basis over their useful lives. 

1.13 income taxes

Income taxes are recorded based on the period to which they properly relate. Deferred income 

taxes are recorded in full using the liability method. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arise on 

temporary differences between carrying values of assets and liabilities for Group purposes and their 

related tax values. These temporary differences arise mainly from depreciation on property, plant and 

equipment, revaluation of certain non-current assets, provisions for pensions and other retirement 

benefit	obligations	and	tax	loss	carry-forwards,	and,	in	the	case	of	acquisitions,	the	difference	between	

the	fair	value	of	the	net	assets	acquired	and	their	tax	base.	The	tax	rates	and	laws	enacted	or	sub-

stantially	enacted	at	the	balance	sheet	date	are	used	to	determine	deferred	income	tax.	Deferred	tax	

assets	are	recognised	to	the	extent	that	 it	 is	probable	that	future	taxable	profits	will	be	available	

against	which	the	temporary	deductible	differences	can	be	offset.

Deferred	income	tax	is	recognised	on	temporary	differences	arising	from	investments	in	subsid-

iaries,	associates	and	joint	ventures.	Exceptions	are	temporary	differences	for	which	the	timing	of	the	

reversal	of	the	temporary	difference	can	be	controlled	by	the	group	and	it	is	probable	that	the	tem-

porary	difference	will	not	reverse	in	the	foreseeable	future.

1.14 Pension plans

Current	and	former	employees	are	covered	by	various	statutory	retirement	plans	in	their	respec-

tive	countries.	Both	defined	benefit	plans	and	defined	contribution	plans	exist.	For	defined	benefit	

plans,	 the	defined	benefit	obligation	 (DBO)	 is	determined	using	 the	projected	unit	 credit	method.	

Actuarial	valuations	are	obtained	annually.	This	method	corresponds	to	the	present	value	of	the	ex-

pected	future	cash	flows.	The	costs	recognised	in	the	income	statement	comprise	the	actuarially	de-

termined	costs	for	the	period	less	contributions	made	by	employees.	Actuarial	gains	and	losses	are	

accounted	for	over	the	average	remaining	working	period	of	the	employees	if	these	gains	and	losses	

exceed	the	10	%	corridor	of	the	higher	of	retirement	benefit	liabilities	and	pension	fund	assets.	Em-

ployer	contribution	reserves	in	special	employer	funds	are	taken	into	account.	Past-service	costs	are	

recognised	 immediately	 in	 income,	unless	 the	 changes	 to	 the	pension	plan	are	 conditional	on	 the	

employee	remaining	 in	service	for	a	specified	period	of	time	(the	vesting	period).	 In	this	case,	the	

past-service	costs	are	amortised	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	vesting	period.	The	contributions	to	

defined	contribution	pension	plans	are	charged	to	the	income	statement	in	the	period	to	which	they	

relate.	Costs	related	to	pension	plans	are,	together	with	other	personnel	expenses,	included	in	cost	of	

goods	 sold,	 costs	 for	 marketing	 and	 distribution,	 research	 and	 development	 and	 administration	

costs.
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1.15 Provisions

Provisions are made when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 

event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and 

when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If an outflow of resources to 

settle an obligation is not probable, a contingent liability is disclosed. Provisions for product warranties 

are made to the extent of the outflow of resources that can be expected to meet the obligation in full. 

For costs that are expected to arise in connection with plant closures, the disposal of companies or 

business units and restructuring, provisions are made at the time of the approval and announcement 

of the planned measures. For onerous contracts, provisions are provided if the unavoidable costs of 

meeting the obligation exceed the economic benefit	to	be	received.

1.16 borrowings

Liabilities	are	stated	as	being	short-term	if	they	are	settled	within	12	months	or	there	is	no	un-

conditional	right	to	extend	the	settlement	to	at	least	12	months	after	the	balance	sheet	date.	Initial	

recognition	is	at	fair	value,	net	of	transaction	costs	incurred.	Valuation	is	subsequently	carried	out	at	

amortized	cost	value	using	the	effective	interest	method.

1.17 equity

Registered	shares	are	classified	as	equity.	Own	shares	and	options	to	acquire	own	shares	as	well	

as	realized	gains	or	losses	stemming	from	disposals	and	costs	relating	to	capital	increases	and	de-

creases	are	deducted	from	equity.	Dividends	are	charged	to	equity	in	the	period	in	which	they	are	

approved.

1.18 revenue 

Revenue	from	sales	and	services	to	third	parties	is	reported	net.	This	includes	the	total	value	of	

invoices	for	products	and	services	sold,	licenced	or	leased	out.	Trade	rebates,	sales	tax	or	value-added	

tax	as	well	as	credit	notes	for	goods	returned	are	deducted	from	revenue.	Revenue	from	project	con-

tracts	 is	determined	based	on	 the	stage	of	 completion	using	 the	Percentage	of	Completion	 (POC)	

method	if	the	stage	of	completion	and	expected	outcome	can	be	measured	reliably.	The	respective	

calculation	is	based	on	the	costs	incurred	and	the	total	costs	to	complete.	If	it	is	probable	that	the	

contract	costs	will	exceed	the	economic	benefit,	the	potential	loss	is	recognised	in	the	income	state-

ment	regardless	of	the	project	progress.

1.19 borrowing costs

Borrowing	costs	are	charged	to	income	statement	as	incurred.
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1.20 segment reporting

The segment reporting is based primarily on Divisions and secondarily on geographical regions. 

The regions correspond to the sales channels (client location). The business sectors are managed on 

a global basis. Transactions between the segments are carried out at standard market terms. The as-

sets of the segments include property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, assets from finance	

leases,	loans	to	third	parties,	inventories	and	work	in	process,	trade	receivables	and	other	current	as-

sets.	The	liabilities	comprise	provisions,	customer	prepayments,	trade	payables	and	other	short-term	

liabilities.	The	eliminations	concern	balances	between	the	segments.

1.21 option plans

Ascom	offers	various	employee	option	plans	(stock	option	plans).	The	fair	value	of	the	employee	

benefits	as	remuneration	for	the	options	received	is	booked	as	an	expense.	The	total	expense,	which	

is	recorded	over	the	entire	vesting	period,	is	based	on	the	fair	value	of	the	options,	with	market	condi-

tions	taken	into	account.	Conditions	that	are	not	market-related	are	included	in	the	estimate	of	the	

exercisable	options.	These	estimates	are	assessed	as	of	each	balance	sheet	date	and	recorded	under	

personnel	expenses,	with	the	corresponding	counterbooking	directly	within	equity.	Management	has	

determined	that	its	plans	are	equity-settled.	

1.22 Leases

Leases	in	which	a	significant	portion	of	the	risks	and	rewards	of	ownership	are	retained	by	the	

lessor	are	classified	as	operating	leases.	Payments	made	under	operating	leases	are	charged	to	the	

income	statement	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	period	of	the	lease.

1.23 Main sources of uncertainty with regard to estimates (Critical accounting estimates and judg-

ments)

Below	 we	 explain	 important	 forward-looking	 assumptions	 and	 other	 main	 sources	 of	 uncer-

tainty	with	regard	to	estimates,	which	could	result	in	significant	value	adjustments	in	respect	of	assets	

and	liabilities	carried	on	the	balance	sheet	in	the	coming	financial	year.

Goodwill	is	regarded	as	an	intangible	asset	with	an	indefinite	useful	life	that	must	be	tested	for	

impairment	at	least	once	a	year.	For	this	purpose,	it	is	necessary	to	estimate	future	cash	flows	from	

the	cash	generating	unit	to	which	the	goodwill	is	allocated.	Determining	the	value	in	use	requires	an	

estimate	of	the	expected	future	cash	flows	from	the	cash	generating	unit	and	the	setting	of	an	ap-

propriate	discount	rate	to	determine	the	present	value	of	these	cash	flows.	The	estimates	of	the	cash	

flows	are	based	on	medium-term	plans.	The	discount	rate	applied	reflects	the	risk	arising	in	connection	

with	the	respective	business	activities.	 If	the	estimated	EBIT	margin	for	the	future	years	had	been		

10	%	lower	than	management’s	estimates	no	impairment	would	have	been	recognized.	An	increase	of	

the	 discount	 rate	 from	 10	 to	 11	%	 would	 also	 not	 have	 resulted	 in	 the	 recognition	 of	 impairment	

charges.	The	goodwill	recorded	in	the	balance	sheet	at	31	December	2006	came	to	CHF	12.7	million	

(2005:	CHF	13.0	million).	Further	information	on	goodwill	can	be	found	in	Note	5.

The	bookvalue	of	the	openAccess®	(Greenbox)	licence	has	been	tested	for	impairment.	The	value	

in	use	has	been	determined	by	estimating	the	cash	flows	that	will	be	generated.	Further	information	

can	be	found	in	Note	5.		
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In connection with recording revenue from project contracts it is necessary to reliably determine 

the project progress and costs. The calculation is based on the ratio of the costs already incurred to 

the estimated total contract costs. The contracts are analysed and reassessed as of every balance 

sheet date. The POC revenue in the period under review amounted to CHF 122.0	million	(2005:	CHF	183.8	

million)	(Note	10).

Restructuring	provisions	are	created	in	connection	with	the	discontinuation	or	reorganization	of	

business	areas	or	geographic	business	segments	if	there	is	a	detailed	formal	plan	and	the	implications	

are	known	and	communicated.	As	of	31	December	2006,	the	restructuring	provisions	amounted	to	CHF	

12.0	million	(2005:	18.9	million).

As	of	the	balance	sheet	date,	there	were	non-capitalised	loss	carry-forwards	totaling	CHF	1,187.5	

million	(Note	6).	As	a	result	of	future	positive	developments	with	regard	to	income,	the	possibility	may	

arise	that	deferred	tax	assets	in	connection	with	these	tax	loss	carry-forwards	are	capitalised	at	least	

in	part.

2. sIGnIfIcAnt tRAnsActIons And opeRAtIonAl chAnGes

Divestment of Manufacturing France

On	4	July	2006,	Ascom	announced	that	it	had	received	an	irrevocable	offer	from	the	French	in-

dustrial	buyer	Network	Concept	Finances	SA	(NCF)	to	purchase	the	residual	activities	of	Manufacturing	

France	(Ascodi	Industries	SAS)	at	its	book	value.	The	closing	took	place	as	planned	at	30	September	

2006.	All	175	employees	were	taken	over	by	NCF.

Divestment of Network Integration Italy

In	line	with	its	strategy,	Ascom	sold	the	Italian	Network	Integration	activity	(part	of	the	former	

Network	Integration	Division)	to	Technomatica	Italia	S.p.A	on	1	December	2006	for	an	amount	of	CHF	

36.7	million.	This	transaction	resulted	in	a	book	loss	of	CHF	11.4	million	and	a	cash	inflow	of	around	CHF	

31.6	million.	All	of	the	137	employees	as	well	as	the	related	business	activities	were	taken	over	by	

Technomatica	via	a	transfer	of	all	of	the	shares	of	Ascom	Italia	S.p.A.

Divestment of property

On	27	June	2006	Ascom	sold	its	Solothurn	Ziegelmatte	property	to	Ypsomed.	The	sales	price	of	

CHF	10.7	million	resulted	in	a	book	profit	of	CHF	0.8	million	after	fees	and	provisions	taken	by	Ascom,	

mainly	for	environmental	clean-up.	In	July	2006	Ascom	sold	its	remaining	Swiss	Real	Estate	portfolio	

in	Solothurn	(Weissenstrasse),	Flamatt,	Estavayer	le	Lac	and	Lausanne	Entre	Bois	at	book	value	to	

Yennora	Continental	SA.	The	property	was	no	longer	required	for	Ascom’s	operations	and	had	been	

reported	as	held-for-sale.

Other divestments

In	the	course	of	its	divestment	program	Ascom	sold	the	German	Network	Integration	activity	

with	a	transaction	loss	of	CHF	0.8	million.	Furthermore	Ascom	sold	Powerline	Communications.	Ascom	

has	received	a	royalty-free	and	non-transferable	licence	of	specific	Powerline	know-how	for	use	in	its	

own	business.	The	gain	on	the	transaction	amounted	to	CHF	1.0	million.	On	29	June	2006	Ascom	sold	

its	50	%	share	in	Mediacrypt	AG	to	the	other	shareholder	at	book	value.
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Adjustment of the acquisition costs for Tumsan Oy

The paid goodwill for this company has been reduced to zero. The carrying value of the acquired 

licence was in addition reduced in 2006	by	an	amount	of	CHF	4.9	million	by	adjustment	of	the	contin-

gent	future	payments,	following	a	reassessment	of	the	current	and	projected	business	performance.	

The	review	of	the	carrying	value	as	of	31	December	2006	revealed	no	impairments.

3. RIsK mAnAGement

3.1 risk controlling using clearly defined management information systems

As	an	international	company,	Ascom	is	exposed	to	a	variety	of	risks	that	are	directly	associated	

with	the	Group’s	business	operations.	These	are	addressed	in	accordance	with	the	principle	of	risk	

limitation.	 Our	 risk	 management	 is	 an	 integral	 part	 of	 corporate	 management	 and	 the	 long-term	

corporate	strategy,	and	it	is	correspondingly	incorporated	in	the	framework	of	our	business	processes	

and	procedures.	Ascom	applies	clearly	defined	management	information	and	control	systems	to	mea-

sure,	monitor	and	control	the	risks	to	which	it	is	exposed.	Regularly,	reports	are	drawn	up.	We	monitor	

the	effectiveness	and	efficiency	of	our	risk	management	activities	and	control	systems	at	regular	in-

tervals	and	makes	adjustments	as	and	when	required.

3.2 operational risks

The	Security	Solutions	and	Wireless	Solutions	Divisions	manage	some	large	and	complex	projects.	

Depending	on	the	Division,	these	projects	can	extend	from	several	months	to	as	much	as	several	years.	

Technical	problems,	unforeseen	developments	at	project	sites,	problems	at	the	customer	end,	and	a	

degree	of	dependence	on	our	suppliers’	technological	approaches	constitute	the	greatest	risks	in	the	

project	business.	To	minimize	the	risk	of	operational	downtimes,	quality	problems	and	the	associated	

extra	costs	or	contractual	penalties,	the	Divisions	have	defined	specific	directives	and	procedures	in	

cooperation	with	the	Group.	The	bid	process	itself	is	governed	by	a	list	of	strictly	defined	responsi-

bilities	and	provisions	that	cover	commercial	as	well	as	legal	aspects.	It	is	the	policy	of	each	Division	

to	require	suppliers	to	agree	with	the	fulfillment	guarantees	demanded	by	customers.	Ascom	is	also	

insured	against	the	financial	consequences	of	such	a	guarantee	in	the	event	of	damage	claims.	More-

over,	consistent	implementation	of	a	clearly	defined	procedure	ensures	regular	reviews	of	the	indi-

vidual	project	steps	as	well	as	the	financial	and	legal	requirements	in	respect	of	ongoing	projects.

The	continuing	loyalty	of	our	customers	is	dependent	on	the	compliance	of	our	security	solutions	

with	high	quality	standards	and	security	regulations.	New	developments	are	therefore	subjected	to	

comprehensive	security	tests.	Operating	reliability	is	ensured	by	our	maintenance	organisations	on	

the	basis	of	customer-specific	Service	Level	Agreements	governing	maintenance	and	operation,	and	

through	standardized	processes	at	the	individual	Division	level.	This	is	further	supported	through	the	

continued	training	of	our	employees	in	accordance	with	international	guidelines	such	as	the	Interna-

tional	Project	Management	Association	(IPMA)	and	the	IT	Infrastructure	Library	(ITIL).
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3.3 Supplier-related risks

Our security solutions are also dependent on external suppliers. This involves risks concerning 

unexpected difficulties	in	delivery	or	unforeseeable	price	rises	as	a	result	of	changes	in	market	condi-

tions	or	currency	effects.	We	aim	to	minimize	these	risks	by	way	of	comprehensive	contractual	regu-

lations	with	our	suppliers.	However,	the	boundaries	set	for	the	Ascom	Divisions	vary	depending	on	the	

market	position	of	their	suppliers.	The	Divisions	therefore	endeavour	to	develop	vendor-independent	

solutions	and,	wherever	possible,	to	enter	into	long-term	delivery	agreements.

3.4 Employee-related risks

In	the	areas	in	which	Ascom	is	active,	there	is	intensive	competition	for	well-qualified	technical	

and	management	staff	with	the	technological	and	market-specific	skills	that	are	key	for	Ascom.	Skilled	

employees	are	extremely	 important	 for	 the	value-added	development	of	our	Group.	We	therefore	

strive	to	recruit	well-trained	employees,	to	ensure	they	are	integrated	optimally,	and	to	foster	a	long-

term	working	relationship.	We	offer	our	employees	not	only	attractive	conditions	of	employment,	but	

also	opportunities	for	targeted	further	training	and	education.	Another	top	priority	is	the	provision	of	

high-quality	apprentice	training	schemes	in	our	various	business	areas.

3.5 Other risks

Our	 innovative	 and	 competitive	 strengths	 are	 consolidated	 and	 expanded	 on	 the	 one	 hand	

through	organic	growth,	and	on	the	other	through	targeted	acquisitions.	Our	Group’s	business	port-

folio	therefore	changes	over	time	through	the	sale	of	parts	of	the	company,	acquisitions	of	new	com-

panies	and	strategic	alliances.	The	potential	risks	in	this	regard	arise	from	changing	market	or	com-

pany	developments	that	can	delay	or	even	prevent	the	conclusion	of	negotiations	to	sell	or	acquire	

companies.	We	counter	these	risks	by	defining	clear	processes	and	high	standards	which	we	apply	to	

every	transaction.	

3.6 Financial risks

Financial	risk	management	(cash	management,	procurement	of	loans	and	advances,	hedging	of	

interest-rate	risks,	foreign-exchange	risks,	market	risks	and	credit	risks)	is	ensured	by	the	relevant	

written	principles	and	guidelines	laid	down	by	management	and	approved	by	the	Board	of	Directors.	

The	financial	instruments	are	centrally	applied	and	monitored	at	Group	level.	Group	companies	submit	

monthly	reports	on	loans	and	cash	positions.

3.7 Liquidity risks

Forward-looking	liquidity	management	comprises	the	availability	of	sufficient	liquidity	and	mar-

ketable	securities	as	well	as	the	ability	to	draw	on	credit	 lines.	The	 liquidity	status	 is	permanently	

monitored.
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3.8 Market risks

Ascom is exposed to market risks. Changes in the market values of financial	assets,	liabilities	or	

financial	instruments	can	affect	the	Group’s	asset	and	income	situation.	It	is	not	part	of	the	Ascom	

investment	policy	to	invest	significant	amounts	in	financial	assets	outside	its	operational	activities.	

Apart	from	interest	and	foreign	currency	risks,	no	other	significant	market	risks	exist.

Interest-rate risks

Changes	in	interest	rates	can	have	a	negative	effect	on	the	Group’s	income	situation.	Interest-rate	

fluctuations	can	also	impact	the	market	value	of	financial	assets	and	liabilities.	Interest-rate	risks	are	

not	hedged.

Foreign-currency risks

Due	to	the	global	nature	of	its	activities,	the	Group	is	exposed	to	foreign	exchange	risks.	Foreign	

exchange	risks	are	permanently	monitored	and	the	necessary	measures	are	taken	as	and	when	re-

quired,	to	hedge	against	impairment	of	value	with	respect	to	transactions	and	assets.	Foreign	exchange	

gains	or	losses	arise	from	transactions	as	well	as	financial	assets	and	liabilities	denominated	in	foreign	

currencies	(mainly	EUR	and	USD)	since	these	are	affected	by	exchange	rate	fluctuations	vs	the	CHF.	

Translation	differences	also	arise	from	the	consolidation	of	subsidiaries	drawn	up	in	foreign	currencies.	

Foreign	currency	forward	contracts	are	used	to	hedge	against	transaction	risks	from	operational	ac-

tivities	at	the	closing	date	of	the	respective	business.	Corresponding	hedge	transactions	are	entered	

into	with	external	counterparties	with	good	international	risk	ratings	and	are	stated	at	market	value.	

3. 9 Credit risks

Credit	risks	may	result	in	a	financial	loss	if	one	party	in	a	transaction	is	unable	or	unwilling	to	

discharge	its	obligations.	Active	risk	management	is	pursued	for	credits	arising	from	goods	delivered	

and	services	rendered.	The	credit	quality	of	customers	is	assessed	based	on	external	ratings,	financial	

position,	past	experience	and	other	factors.	The	number	of	customers	and	their	geographical	distribu-

tion	minimizes	the	risk	of	clustering.
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4. property, plAnt And equipment

CHFm Land and

buildings

 not used

 operationally

Land and

buildings

 used

 operationally

Other property,

plant and  

equipment

Equipment under 

construction and 

prepayments

Total

Acquisition costs

Balance at 1.1.2005 131.1 86.9 231.8 1.0 450.8

Translation adjustments – 0.2 1.4 – 1.6

Additions – 0.5 12.3 4.3 17.1

Disposals – (1.3) (7.4)  (0.2) (8.9)

Sale of consolidated companies and business units (41.3) (19.0) (66.1) – (126.4)

Reclassification	into	property,	plant	and	equipment	
held	for	sale

(89.8) (17.9) – – (107.7)

Reclassifications – (0.2) 3.2 (3.0) –

Balance at 31.12.2005 – 49.2 175.2 2.1 226.5

Accumulated depreciation

Balance	at	1.1.2005 99.0 50.6 199.9 – 349.5

Translation	adjustments – 0.1 1.0 – 1.1

Additions 0.1 3.6 13.9 – 17.6

Disposals – (0.9) (5.7) – (6.6)

Sale	of	consolidated	companies	and	business	units (32.7) (11.3) (58.0) – (102.0)

Reclassification	into	property,	plant	and	equipment	
held	for	sale

(66.4) (13.5) – – (79.9)

Balance at 31.12.2005 – 28.6 151.1 – 179.7

Net book value at 31.12.2005 – 20.6 24.1 2.1 46.8

Property,	plant	and	equipment	held	for	sale 27.8

Total net book value at 31.12.2005 74.6
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CHFm Land and

buildings

 not used

 operationally

Land and

buildings

 used

 operationally

Other property,

plant and  

equipment

Equipment under 

construction and 

prepayments

Total

Acquisition costs

Balance at 1.1.2006 – 49.2 175.2 2.1 226.5

Translation adjustments – 1.6 5.5 0.1 7.2

Additions – 2.4 8.3 2.8 13.5

Disposals – (5.8) (26.9) – (32.7)

Sale of consolidated companies and business units – (3.6) (20.4) (0.4) (24.4)

Reclassifications – (0.2) 6.8 (3.5) 3.1

Balance at 31.12.2006 – 43.6 148.5 1.1 193.2

Accumulated depreciation

Balance	at	1.1.2006 – 28.6 151.1 – 179.7

Translation	adjustments – 0.8 4.6 – 5.4

Additions – 1.2 9.9 – 11.1

Disposals – (3.0) (25.7) – (28.7)

Sale	of	consolidated	companies	and	business	units – (1.8) (18.8) – (20.6)

Reclassifications – – 2.6 – 2.6

Balance at 31.12.2006 – 25.8 123.7 – 149.5

Net book value at 31.12.2006 – 17.8 24.8 1.1 43.7

Property,	plant	and	equipment	held	for	sale 0.3

Total net book value at 31.12.2006 44.0

Leased assets included in property, plant and equipment (finance leases)

CHFm buildings other property, 

plant and  

equipment

total 2006 total 2005

Acquisition	costs 0.1 0.2 0.3 3.0

Accumulated	depreciation (0.1) (0.1) (0.2) (2.9)

Net	book	value – 0.1 0.1 0.1

The	fire	insurance	value	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	is	CHF	118	million	(2005:	CHF	263	million).
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5. intAnGiBle Assets

CHFm Goodwill Licences Other Total

Acquisition costs

Balance at 1.1.2005 75.2 21.3 61.4 157.9

Translation adjustments (0.2) 0.1 (1.0) (1.1)

Additions 3.2 0.3 8.9 12.4

Disposals – (1.8) (11.8) (13.6)

Reduction purchase price  (2.3) – – (2.3)

Sale of consolidated companies and business units – (0.5) (1.2) (1.7)

Elimination of accumulated depreciation  (62.9) – – (62.9)

Balance at 31.12.2005 13.0 19.4 56.3 88.7

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1.1.2005 62.9 6.4 55.4 124.7

Translation adjustments – – (0.6) (0.6)

Additions – 1.4 6.4 7.8

Disposals – (1.8) (11.7) (13.5)

Sale of consolidated companies and business units – (0.3) (1.2) (1.5)

Elimination of accumulated amortisation  (62.9) – – (62.9)

Balance at 31.12.2005 – 5.7 48.3 54.0

Net book value at 31.12.2005 13.0 13.7 8.0 34.7
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CHFm Goodwill Licences Other Total

Acquisition costs

Balance at 1.1.2006 13.0 19.4 56.3 88.7

Translation adjustments 0.5 0.4 3.1 4.0

Additions – 0.5 1.8 2.3

Disposals – (0.3) (1.5) (1.8)

Reduction in purchase price  (0.8) (4.9) – (5.7)

Sale of consolidated companies and business units – (0.2) (0.9) (1.1)

Reclassifications – – (2.7) (2.7)

Balance at 31.12.2006 12.7 14.9 56.1 83.7

Accumulated depreciation

Balance	at	1.1.2006 – 5.7 48.3 54.0

Translation	adjustments – 0.2 2.5 2.7

Additions – 1.6 1.9 3.5

Disposals – (0.2) (1.4) (1.6)

Sale	of	consolidated	companies	and	business	units – (0.1) (0.9) (1.0)

Reclassifications – – (2.7) (2.7)

Balance at 31.12.2006 – 7.2 47.7 54.9

Net book value at 31.12.2006 12.7 7.7 8.4 28.8

In	connection	with	Wireless	Solutions	goodwill	in	the	amount	of	CHF	12.7	million	has	been	capitalised.	The	value	was	
compared	with	the	value	in	use	as	of	the	balance	sheet	date.	The	value	in	use	is	based	on	the	cash	flows	determined	
at	the	level	of	Wireless	Solutions	segment	(horizon	to	2011)	using	the	medium-term	planning.	The	basis	for	the	cash	
flow	estimate	is	the	result	before	interest	and	taxes	(EBIT).	The	yearly	revenue	growth-rate	is	assumed	to	be	5	to	
10	%	with	an	EBIT	margin	of	about	10	%.	The	inherent	risk	was	sufficiently	taken	into	account	with	the	discount	rate		
of	10	%.	No	impairments	were	recorded	in	the	year	under	review.	

In	connection	with	the	Tumsan	Oy	acquisition	in	2004,	goodwill	in	the	amount	of	CHF	3.1	million	was	capitalised.		
As	of	31	December	2005	this	goodwill	was	reduced	to	CHF	0.8	million	and	as	of	December	2006	to	zero	due	to	a	new	
assessment	of	the	conditional	purchase	consideration.

Licences	stem	mainly	from	the	openAccess®	(Greenbox)	Business	of	Tumsan	Oy,	acquired	in	2004.	This	licence	is		
amortized	over	5	years	in	proportion	with	the	expected	sales	volumes.	The	remaining	depreciation	period	is	3	years.		
The	carrying	value	of	the	licence	was	reduced	in	2006	by	an	amount	of	CHF	4.9	million	by	adjustment	of	the	contin-
gent	future	payments,	following	a	reassessment	of	the	current	and	projected	business	performance.	The	remaining	
value	of	the	licence	at	December	31,	2006	is	CHF	5.4	million.	

At	the	balance	sheet	date,	the	book	value	of	the	licence	was	compared	with	the	value	in	use.	The	value	in	use	is	based	
on	the	cash	flows	determined	at	the	level	of	Security	Solutions	(Cash	Generating	Unit	Defence/Public	Safety)	using	
forecasts	with	a	time	horizon	to	2011.	The	cash	flow	estimates	are	based	on	specific	client	relationships	on	the	one	
hand	and	growth	estimates	in	segments	on	the	other.	The	high	inherent	risk	was	sufficiently	taken	into	account	with	
the	discount	rate	of	19.5	%.	No	impairment	was	necessary.	

Other	intangible	assets	include	mainly	software.	Depreciation	on	intangible	assets	in	an	amount	of	CHF	1.8	million	is	
included	in	the	operating	result	(2005:	CHF	2.4	million).
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6. deFerred tAx Assets/(liABilities)

CHFm Deferred tax 

assets

Deferred tax  

liabilities

Net value

Balance at 31.12.2004 3.4 (6.6) (3.2)

Increase 1.7 (2.9) (1.2)

Decrease (0.8) 5.3 4.5

Sale of consolidated companies (0.8) (0.1) (0.9)

Balance at 31.12.2005 3.5 (4.3) (0.8)

Increase 1.9 (1.7) 0.2

Decrease (0.2) 1.9 1.7

Sale of consolidated companies (0.1) – (0.1)

Translation adjustments 0.2 (0.2) –

Balance at 31.12.2006 5.3 (4.3) 1.0

Estimated reversal within 12 months 0.2 (0.8) –

Estimated reversal later 5.1 (3.5) –

Deferred tax assets result from tax loss carry-forwards as well as valuation differences of prop-

erty plant and equipment and provisions. They are recognised to the extent that realization through 

the future taxable profits	is	probable.	Deferred	income	tax	assets	and	liabilities	are	offset	when	there	

is	a	legally	enforceable	right	to	offset	current	tax	assets	against	other	current	tax	liabilities	and	when	

the	deferred	income	taxes	relate	to	the	same	fiscal	authority.	In	2006	deferred	tax	liabilities	in	the	

amount	of	CHF	1.9	million	(2005:	CHF	3.7	million)	have	been	offset	with	deferred	tax	assets.	Provisions	

for	deferred	taxes	are	calculated	in	accordance	with	the	liability	method.	The	deferred	tax	liabilities	

pertain	to	the	following	balance	sheet	positions:	

CHFm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Property,	plant	and	equipment 0.4 0.6

Intangible	assets 2.6 3.7

Current	assets 0.3 –

Liabilities 1.0 –

Total 4.3 4.3

The	deferred	tax	assets	pertain	to	the	following	balance	sheet	positions:

CHFm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Property,	plant	and	equipment 1.9 0.4

Tax	losses 1.3 1.2

Liabilities 2.1 1.9

Total 5.3 3.5
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Tax loss carry-forwards which are not capitalized amount to CHF 1,187.5	million	(2005:	CHF	1,143.7	

million)	and	expire	in	the	following	years:

CHFm

2007 3.3

2008 65.2

2009 241.2

2010 315.5

2011 158.7

2012 0.3

2013 15.6

Later 387.7

7. FinAnciAl Assets And AssociAted compAny

Financial assets

CHFm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Investments	in	third	parties 1.1 1.1

Loans	and	other	financial	investments 9.6 16.9

Total 10.7 18.0

Investments	in	third	parties	are	available	for	sale.	The	investments	in	third	parties	are	valued	at	fair	value.	Holdings	
in	equity	without	market	prices	whose	fair	value	cannot	be	reliably	determined	are	shown	in	the	balance	sheet	at	ac-
quisition	cost.	This	refers	to	the	stake	in	CSEM	AG	Neuenburg.	Loans	and	other	financial	investments	in	2006	primarily	
comprise	loans	in	connection	with	the	sale	of	real	estate	in	Switzerland.

Associated company

The	associated	company	refers	to	MediaCrypt	AG,	in	which	Ascom	held	a	50	%	stake.	Due	to	the	

lack	of	control,	this	company	was	consolidated	using	the	equity	method.	The	investment	in	this	com-

pany	has	been	sold	in	2006.	The	book	values	are	as	follows:

CHFm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Associated	company – 0.9
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8. inventories And work in process

CHFm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Raw materials and components 12.1 12.9

Work in process and customer specific	contracts 16.3 24.8

Finished	goods	and	goods	for	resale 23.1 32.3

Total 51.5 70.0

Customer	prepayments	are	recorded	under	other	liabilities.
Project	contracts	valued	using	the	POC	method	are	included	under	prepaid	expenses	(Note	10).	The	above	figures	are	
after	valuation	adjustments	amounting	to	CHF	21.7	million	as	of	31	December	2006	(2005:	CHF	39.7	million).	

9. trAde receivABles

CHFm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Receivables	from	third	parties 110.5 177.1

Provisions	for	doubtful	accounts (3.3) (8.0)

Total 107.2 169.1

Valuation	adjustments	in	the	amount	of	CHF	0.1	million	net	were	recorded	in	the	reporting	year	(2005:	release	of	CHF	
4.7	million	net).	The	costs	are	included	in	the	marketing	and	distribution	costs.

10. other current Assets

CHFm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Other	receivables 12.9 14.0

Prepayments	for	goods 6.4 0.8

Accrued	income 42.3 33.6

Total 61.6 48.4

Other	receivables	include	recoverable	withholding	tax	and	value	added	tax	totaling	CHF	3.8	million	(2005:	CHF	5.5	
million).	Besides	other	items,	accrued	income	includes	accrued	revenues	from	project	contracts	valued	using	the	POC	
method.

The	key	data	in	connection	with	project	contracts	valued	using	the	POC	method	are	as	follows:

CHFm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Total	revenue	from	project	contracts 122.0 183.8

Accumulated	costs 166.8 243.9

Profit	share 46.0 77.7

Accumulated	contract	costs	incl.	recognised	profits 212.8 321.6

Progress	billings (192.9) (308.1)

Total	accrued	revenues	valued	using	POC	method 19.9 13.5

Customer	prepayments	on	project	contracts	
(included	under	customer	prepayments)

11.9 5.8
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11. FinAnciAl Assets held For trAdinG purposes

This position comprises money market paper. This is available without restrictions and is held for 

trading purposes. 

12. cAsh

Cash includes cash on hand, post office	and	bank	account	balances,	as	well	as	money	market	

instruments	with	original	maturities	of	under	3	months	and	are	valued	at	face	value.	Their	availability	

is	as	follows:

CHFm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Available	without	restrictions 165.6 278.9

Total 165.6 278.9

The	average	interest	rate	on	cash	in	the	year	under	review	was	2	%.	

13. pledGes

Ascom	entered	 into	a	new,	3	year	 credit	 facility	as	of	31	March	2006.	As	a	 result	all	 existing	

pledges	have	been	released.	As	of	31	December	2006	Ascom	has	no	pledges	related	to	credit	facili-

ties.

14. shAre cApitAl And reserves

Composition

CHFm Number 2006 Amount 2006 Number 2005 Amount 2005

Registered	shares	nom.	CHF	0.50	
(2005:	CHF	5.50)

36,000,000 18.0 36,000,000 198.0

Number	of	registered	shareholders 7,110 8,038

The	total	authorized	number	of	ordinary	shares	is	36,000,000	,	of	which	35,682,400	are	outstand-

ing.	A	capital	redemption	of	CHF	5	per	registered	share	took	place	in	June	2006	for	a	total	amount	of	

CHF	180	million.

93Ascom FinAnciAl stAtements 2006 Group NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Own shares

CHFm Number 2006 Amount 2006 Number 2005 Amount 2005

Balance at 1.1. 304,800 5.6 60,000 1.0

Additions 54,800 0.8 257,800 4.8

Disposals (42,000) (0.4) (13,000) (0.2)

Reduction in nominal value of share capital – (1.6) – –

Balance at 31.12. 317,600 4.4 304,800 5.6

During 2006,	Ascom	bought	54,800	registered	shares	to	hedge	the	issuance	of	shares	in	conjunc-

tion	with	the	exercise	of	options	under	the	Ascom	Stock	Option	Plan	2006.	In	2005,	Ascom	bought	

257,800	registered	shares	to	hedge	the	Ascom	Stock	Option	Plans	2004	–	2006.	The	holdings	of	own	

shares	stated	under	the	changes	in	equity	correspond	to	these	registered	shares.	The	call	option	al-

lowing	Ascom	to	purchase	shares	from	a	financial	institution	has	been	fully	exercised	in	2006.

Changes subject to disclosure requirements during the 2006 financial year 

In	an	announcement	dated	28	March	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	of	the	Stock	

Exchange	Act	(SESTA),	Tower	Equity	N.V.,	Curaçao;	Hyos	Invest	Holding	AG,	Zurich	and	AB	Eno	River	

Holding	AG,	Zug	(all	companies	wholly	owned	by	Erbengemeinschaft	Müller-Möhl,	Zurich)	disclosed	

that	the	share	of	Ascom	voting	rights	held	by	them	as	a	group	is	below	5	%	(SOGC	notice	of	25	April	

2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	5	July	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	SESTA,	Zurich	Can-

tonal	Bank,	Zurich,	disclosed	that	it	holds	Ascom	shares	accounting	for	5.01	%	of	voting	rights	(SOGC	

notice	of	12	July	2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	7	July	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	SESTA,	Zurich	Can-

tonal	Bank,	Zurich,	disclosed	that	its	share	of	Ascom	voting	rights	is	below	5	%	(SOGC	notice	of	14	July	

2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	24	 July	2006,	published	 in	 compliance	with	Art.	 20	SESTA,	Zurich	

Cantonal	Bank,	Zurich,	disclosed	that	it	holds	Ascom	shares	accounting	for	5.00	%	of	voting	rights	(SOGC	

notice	of	28	July	2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	4	August	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	SESTA,	Zurich	

Cantonal	Bank,	Zurich,	disclosed	its	share	of	Ascom	voting	rights	is	below	5	%	(SOGC	notice	of	10	August	

2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	28	August	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	SESTA,	Zurich	

Cantonal	Bank,	Zurich,	disclosed	that	it	holds	Ascom	shares	accounting	for	5.16	%	of	voting	rights	(SOGC	

notice	of	14	September	2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	19	September	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	SESTA,	The	

Trident	European	Fund,	George	Town,	Cayman	Islands,	disclosed	that	it	holds	Ascom	shares	accounting	

for	5.01	%	of	voting	rights	(SOGC	notice	of	26	September	2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	18	December	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	SESTA,	Zur-

ich	Cantonal	Bank,	Zurich,	disclosed	that	its	share	of	Ascom	voting	rights	is	below	5	%	(SOGC	notice	of	

28	December	2006).
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Significant shareholders (as recorded in the share register)

The following significant	shareholders	as	defined	by	Art.	663c	of	the	Swiss	Code	of	Obligations,	

holding	more	than	5	%	of	share	capital,	were	recorded	in	the	share	register	at	31	December	2006:

Hasler	Works	Foundation,	Berne 8.46	%

Sterling	Strategic	Value	Ltd.,	Tortola	BVI 5.11	%

Three	further	shareholders	were	entered	in	the	share	register	with	holdings	of	more	than	2	%	of	

share	capital.	

This	does	not	cover	shares	which	are	not	registered	in	the	share	register	(Dispo	shares).	

There	are	no	known	shareholders’	agreements.

15. minority interests

CHFm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Balance	at	1.1. 0.1 –

(Loss)/income – –

Other	changes – 0.1

balance at 31.12. 0.1 0.1

The	minority	interests	relate	to	Letus	ZAO,	St.	Petersburg.	Ascom	has	a	51	%	interest	in	this	entity.

16. BorrowinGs

At 31.12.

CHFm

Long-term short-term total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Loans	from	financial	institutions		
and	banks

– 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.4

Other	interest-bearing	liabilities – – – 1.1 – 1.1

Mortgages – 0.3 – – – 0.3

Liabilities	from	capitalised	
leasing	contracts

– 0.2 – – – 0.2

Total – 0.7 0.1 1.3 0.1 2.0

Short-term	proportion	of	long-term
interest-bearing	liabilities

– (0.1) – 0.1 – –

total borrowings – 0.6 0.1 1.4 0.1 2.0

For	short-term	and	long-term	bank	liabilities,	as	of	31	December	2006	Ascom	has	a	total	of	CHF	50.7	million	(2005	CHF	
79.8	million)	in	cash	credit	lines	available	from	financial	institutions	and	banks	worldwide,	no	part	of	which	was	taken	
up	on	31	December	2006	(2005:	CHF	0.4	million).	The	expiry	of	the	borrowing	facilities	is	longer	than	one	year.

On	March	31	2006	a	3-year	credit	facility	was	signed.	As	of	31	December	2006,	the	credit	facility	comprised	a	combined	
cash	and	guarantee	line	of	total	CHF	100	million	(2005:	CHF	126.5	million).
As	of	31	December	2006,	Ascom	did	not	use	the	cash	credit	line.

The	fair	value	of	the	long	term	borrowings	equals	their	carrying	amount,	as	the	impact	of	discounting	is	not	signifi-
cant.
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Borrowings by currency

At 31.12.

CHFm

Long-term Short-term Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

EUR – 0.3 0.1 1.2 0.1 1.5

Other – 0.3 – 0.2 – 0.5

Total – 0.6 0.1 1.4 0.1 2.0

Borrowings by maturity

At 31.12.

CHFm

2006 2005 Effective interest 

rates applied

2006 2005

2007 – 0.3 Mortgages 7.1 % 5.1 %

2008 – – Short-term credits 4.2 % 4.4 %

2009 – – Long-term credits 2.5 % 3.7 %

2010 – – Leasing liabilities 7.5 % 7.5 %

2011 – 0.31

Total – 0.6

1and later       

17. pension plAns

Ascom employees are covered by either a defined	benefit	plan	or	a	defined	contribution	plan.	

Significant	defined	benefit	plans	are	subject	 to	annual	valuation	by	qualified	actuaries.	The	 latest	

valuations	took	place	on	31	December	2006	and	2005.	The	valuation	methods	used	are	described	in	

Note	1.14.	Unfunded	plans	exist	primarily	in	the	case	of	the	German	and	Swedish	companies.	

The	amounts	recognised	in	the	balance	sheet	are	as	follows	:

CHFm Plans in Switzerland Other plans Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Present	value	of	funded	obligations (1,183.6) (1,201.7) (51.1) (50.6) (1,234.7) (1,252.3)

Fair	value	of	plan	assets	 1,275.2 1,238.2 52.7 47.8 1,327.9 1,286.0

91.6 36.5 1.6 (2.8) 93.2 33.7

Present	value	of	unfunded	obligations	 – – (17.8) (18.7) (17.8) (18.7)

Unrecognised	actuarial	losses/(gains)	 (43.6) 3.0 (0.9) 1.4 (44.5) 4.4

Unrecognised	plan	assets (39.5) (34.3) – – (39.5) (34.3)

Unrecognised	past	service	costs	 – – – 0.4 – 0.4

Asset/(Liability) in the balance sheet 8.5 5.2 (17.1) (19.7) (8.6) (14.5)

Prepaid	asset 9.4 5.2

Retirement	benefit	obligation (18.0) (19.7)

(8.6) (14.5)
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The movement in the defined	benefit	obligation	over	the	year	is	as	follows:

CHFm Plans in Switzerland Other plans Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Beginning of the year (1,201.7) (1,189.5) (69.3) (58.7) (1,271.0) (1,248.2)

Current	service	costs	 (6.3) (6.4) (2.2) (1.5) (8.5) (7.9)

Past	service	costs (5.4) – – – (5.4) –

Interest	costs	 (36.0) (44.0) (3.0) (2.8) (39.0) (46.8)

Contributions	by	plan	participants (5.8) (7.6) (0.6) (0.6) (6.4) (8.2)

Actuarial	(losses)/gains (15.5) (121.5) 3.2 (7.3) (12.3) (128.8)

Exchange	differences – – (3.1) (0.8) (3.1) (0.8)

Benefits	paid 87.1 158.8 2.3 1.7 89.4 160.5

Curtailments	and	settlements – 8.5 – 0.2 – 8.7

Leaving	the	consolidation	scope – – 3.8 0.5 3.8 0.5

End of the year (1,183.6) (1,201.7) (68.9) (69.3) (1,252.6) (1,271.0)

The	movement	in	the	fair	value	of	the	plan	assets	of	the	year	is	as	follows:

CHFm Plans in Switzerland Other plans Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Beginning of the year 1,238.2 1,201.0 47.8 38.8 1,286.0 1,239.8

Expected	return	on	plan	assets	 56.0 53.9 2.4 2.3 58.4 56.2

Actuarial	(losses)/gains	 62.1 126.3 (0.3) 5.8 61.8 132.1

Exchange	differences – – 2.2 0.8 2.2 0.8

Employer	contributions 0.2 8.2 1.0 0.8 1.2 9.0

Employee	contributions 5.8 7.6 0.6 0.6 6.4 8.2

Benefits	paid (87.1) (158.8) (1.0) (1.3) (88.1) (160.1)

End of the year 1,275.2 1,238.2 52.7 47.8 1,327.9 1,286.0

The	plan	assets	are	comprised	as	follows:

CHFm Plans in Switzerland Other plans Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Cash 55.6 130.9 – – 55.6 130.9

Equity 558.8 480.2 16.8 16.1 575.6 496.3

Bonds 132.2 113.6 34.8 30.9 167.0 144.5

Mortgages 97.7 101.2 – – 97.7 101.2

Property 423.8 406.3 – – 423.8 406.3

Other 7.1 6.0 1.1 0.8 8.2 6.8

Total 1,275.2 1,238.2 52.7 47.8 1,327.9 1,286.0
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The pension costs consist of:      

CHFm Plans in Switzerland Other plans Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Current service costs 6.3 6.4 2.2 1.5 8.5 7.9

Interest cost 36.0 44.0 3.0 2.8 39.0 46.8

Expected return on plan assets (56.0) (53.9) (2.4) (2.3) (58.4) (56.2)

Net actuarial losses/(gains) recognised – 4.8 (0.2) 0.2 (0.2) 5.0

Past service costs 5.4 – – – 5.4 –

Change unrecognized plan assets 5.2 13.6 – – 5.2 13.6

Curtailments and settlements – (8.5) – – – (8.5)

Expenses/(income) recognised (3.1) 6.4 2.6 2.2 (0.5) 8.6

Of the total charge of minus CHF 0.5	million	(2005:	CHF	8.6	million),	CHF	1.0	million	(2005:	CHF	4.4	

million)	was	included	in	cost	of	goods	sold,	minus	CHF	2.9	million	in	administration	expenses	(2005:	

CHF	0.7	million),	CHF	0.8	million	in	marketing	and	distribution	and	R&D	expenses	(2005:	CHF	3.1	million)	

and	CHF	0.6	million	in	other	cost	categories	(2005:	CHF	0.5	million).	

The	principal	actuarial	assumptions	used	 in	determining	the	cost	of	 retirement	benefits	vary	

according	 to	 local	 conditions.	 The	assumptions	applied	 in	 the	valuation	of	 the	 significant	plans	 in	

Switzerland	and	abroad	are	as	follows:

	 	

Plans in Switzerland Other plans

2006 2005 2006 2005

Discount	rate	in	% 3.00 3.00 4.00	–	4.75 4.08	–	5.25

Expected	return	on	assets	in	% 4.50 4.50 4.95	–	6.15 4.37	–	7.25

Future	salary	increases	in	% 2.00 2.00 2.25	–	3.00 2.25	–	4.25

Future	pension	increases	in	% 1.00 1.00 0.00	–	3.25	 0.00	–	3.00

Average	life	expectancy	in	years	of	someone		
retiring	at	65	at	the	balance	sheet	date

–	male 19.87 19.87 16.2	–	21.0 16.2	–	21.0

–	female 22.75 22.75 20.4	–	26.0 20.4	–	26.0

Pension	plan	assets	include	buildings	occupied	by	the	group	with	a	fair	value	of	CHF	8.8	million	at	31	December	2006	
(2005:	CHF	17.3	million).	
The	actual	return	on	the	pension	fund	capital	was	CHF	120.2	million	(2005:	CHF	183.7	million).
The	expected	return	on	plan	assets	is	determined	by	considering	the	expected	returns	available	on	the	assets	un-
derlying	the	current	investment	policy.	Expected	yields	on	fixed	interest	investments	are	based	on	gross	redemption	
yields	at	the	balance	sheet	date.	Expected	returns	on	equity	and	property	investments	reflect	long-term	real	rates	of	
return	in	the	respective	markets.	
The	expected	contributions	to	post-employment	benefits	for	the	year	ending	31	December	2007	are	CHF	7.2	million.
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For the Swiss pension plan the experience adjustments can be shown as follows:

CHFm 2006 2005

Fair value of plan assets 1,275.2 1,238.2

Present value of defined	benefit	obligation (1,183.6) (1,201.7)

Funded status 91.6 36.5

Experience	adjustments	on	plan	liabilities (15.5) (29.0)

Change	in	assumptions	adjustment	on	plan	liabilities – (92.5)

Experience	adjustments	on	plan	assets 62.1 126.3

Total actuarial gain 46.6 4.8

18. provisions

CHFm 2006 2005

Restructuring 12.0 18.9

Warranties 9.9 14.0

Other	provisions 19.5 15.5

Total 41.4 48.4

Expected	usage:

Within	12	months 21.5 25.6

Later 19.9 22.8

Restructuring

CHFm 2006 2005

Balance	at	1.1. 18.9 37.1

Changes	in	consolidation (0.8) –

Payments (7.8) (13.7)

Additions 3.4 8.1

Reversals (1.8) (12.7)

Translation	adjustments 0.1 0.1

Balance	at	31.12. 12.0 18.9

Expected	usage:

Within	12	months 4.3 10.2

Later 7.7 8.7

The	restructuring	provisions	comprise	costs	for	social	plans,	onerous	lease	contracts	and	other	costs	related	to	
divestments	and	risks	in	connection	with	these	disposals.	As	a	consequence	of	the	ongoing	process,	it	is	not	possible	
to	specify	the	timing	of	potential	pay-outs	precisely.
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Warranties

CHFm 2006 2005

Balance at 1.1. 14.0 30.4

Changes in consolidation (0.7) (6.8)

Payments (5.3) (2.5)

Additions 5.8 5.3

Reversals (4.2) (12.5)

Translation adjustments 0.3 0.1

Balance at 31.12. 9.9 14.0

Expected usage:

Within 12 months 5.2 6.7

Later 4.7 7.3

Provisions for warranties are project-related and are based on systematic extrapolation of historical  

payment patterns which are verified	and	adjusted	periodically.

Other provisions

CHFm 2006 2005

Balance	at	1.1. 15.5 38.4

Changes	in	consolidation (2.1) (4.0)

Payments (1.5) (24.9)

Additions 12.2 7.7

Reversals (4.8) (1.9)

Translation	adjustments 0.2 0.2

Balance	at	31.12. 19.5 15.5

Expected	usage:

Within	12	months 12.0 8.6

Later 7.5 6.9

Other	provisions	comprise	provisions	for	project	risks,	for	environmental-	and	onerous	lease	costs	in	certain	premises,	
and	other	obligations	arising	from	law	suits	in	connection	with	the	operational	business	of	Ascom	companies.	The	ad-
ditions	mainly	relate	to	onerous	lease	contracts	and	real	estate	related	costs.	

19. other liABilities (lonG-term)

CHFm 31.12. 2006 31.12. 2005

Income	tax	due	after	12	months 1.1 1.5

Other	liabilities 2.7 8.4

Total 3.8 9.9

20. liABilities For income tAx

CHFm 31.12. 2006 31.12. 2005

Income	tax	due	within	12	months 6.7 6.0
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21. other liABilities (short-term)

CHFm 31.12. 2006 31.12. 2005

Prepayments from customers 36.5 21.8

Tax liabilities (in particular VAT) 7.2 12.2

Other liabilities 17.5 30.2

Accrued liabilities

– Payroll-related accruals (e.g. salaries, annual leave) 31.5 30.3

– Other 36.6 54.1

Total 129.3 148.6

Other accrued liabilities above include all outstanding costs in connection with POC orders totaling CHF 16.1	million	
(2005:	CHF	13.4	million).

22. revenue

CHFm 2006 2005

Revenue	from	goods	delivered	and	services		 536.0 513.6

Other	revenue 28.9 39.7

Total 564.9 553.3

23. other expenses And income

CHFm 2006 2005

Release	of	provisions 3.0 3.3

Profit	on	sale	of	real	estate 1.2 6.2

Trademark/Management	fees 1.5 7.3

Profit/(loss)	on	sale	of	subsidiaries	or	business	units	after		
release	of	provisions

0.5 8.3

Other	operating	(expenses) (4.5) (5.5)

Total 1.7 19.6

24. net FinAnciAl income/(expenses)

CHFm 2006 2005

Financial income

Investment	income – 0.1

Interest	income 3.7 2.6

Income	from	securities – 0.5

Total 3.7 3.2

Financial expenses

Interest	expenses 1.4 2.2

Net	currency	losses 1.5 5.3

Other	financial	expenses 0.8 2.2

Total 3.7 9.7

Net financial income/(expenses) – (6.5)
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25. income tAxes

CHFm 2006 2005

Income taxes on net income for the year 9.5 5.0

Effects from prior years (6.7) –

Discontinued operations (1.1) (4.7)

Deferred income taxes (1.9) (3.1)

Total (0.2) (2.8)

Analysis of tax rate

The following elements explain the difference between the expected tax charge (using the 

weighted average tax rate based on profits/(losses)	before	taxes	of	each	Group	company)	and	the	

actual	tax	rate:

CHFm 2006 2005

Profit	before	tax	continuing	operations 33.0 25.2

Profit	before	tax	discontinued	operations (15.0) 121.5

Total profit before tax 18.0 146.7

Theoretically	expected	average	tax	rate 24.4% 22.5%

Expected	tax 4.4 32.9

Utilisation	of	tax	loss	carry-forwards (17.6) (22.7)

Changes	in	tax	rates 0.7 (0.5)

Effect	of	tax	losses	not	recognised 1.9 4.2

Effects	from	prior	years (6.7) –

Effect	of	(income)/expenses	taxed	at	lower	rate	or	not	taxed 18.2 (12.0)

Actual tax 0.9 1.9

Income	taxes	continuing	operations (0.2) (2.8)

Income	taxes	discontinued	operations 1.1 4.7

total income taxes 0.9 1.9

26. personnel expenses

CHFm 2006 2005

Wages	and	salaries 184.0 188.7

Social	security	costs 26.2 28.0

Pension	costs 11.5 19.1

Other	personnel	expenses 18.0 20.3

total 239.7 256.1
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27. leAse oBliGAtions

Non-cancelable lease obligations with a minimum period of at least one year fall due as fol-

lows:

At 31.12.

CHFm

Finance leases1 Operating leases

2006 2005 2006 2005

Up to 1 year – 0.1 23.0 14.4

1 – 5 years – 0.1 86.5 61.7

More than 5 years – – 27.9 27.2

Total – 0.2 137.4 103.3

Future financial expenses – –

Present value – 0.2

Short-term – 0.1

Long-term – 0.1

1 included in note 16

Significant	leasing	agreements	exist	with	regard	to	the	sale	and	lease	back	of	properties	used	for	operational		
purposes	in	Berne	and	Hombrechtikon.	A	new	outsourcing	contract	was	signed	in	2006	with	Swisscom	IT	Services		
for	IT	hardware	and	IT	services	in	Switzerland.	

28. eArninGs per shAre

Earnings	per	share	are	calculated	by	dividing	the	Group	income	attributable	to	the	shareholders	

by	the	time-weighted	number	of	shares	outstanding	during	the	financial	year.	Treasury	shares	are	not	

considered	as	outstanding	shares.

2006 2005

Group	profit	attributable	to	the	shareholders	(CHFm) 17.1 144.8

Weighted-average	number	of	outstanding	shares 35,684,476 35,834,462

Earnings	per	share	(CHF) 0.48 4.04

For	the	purpose	of	calculating	diluted	earnings	per	share,	the	weighted-average	number	of	ordi-

nary	shares	is	adjusted	by	the	weighted-average	number	of	ordinary	shares	which	would	be	issued	

on	the	conversion	of	all	the	potentially	dilutive	share	options	into	ordinary	shares.

2006 2005

Group	profit	attributable	to	shareholders	(CHFm)	 17.1 144.8

Weighted-average	number	of	outstanding	shares 35,684,476 35,834,462

Adjusted	for	the	dilutive	number	of	call	options	on	Ascom	shares 51,442 232,512

Weighted-average	number	of	diluted	shares 35,735,918 36,066,974

Diluted	earnings	per	share	(CHF) 0.48 4.01
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The dividends paid in 2006	and	2005	were	CHF	10.1	million	(CHF	0.28	per	share)	and	CHF	9.9	mil-

lion	(CHF	0.275	per	share)	respectively.	For	the	year	ended	31	December	2006	the	Board	of	Directors	

proposes	no	dividend	payment	to	the	Annual	General	Meeting	on	16	April	2007.

29. trAnsActions with relAted pArties 

Content and method of determining compensation and shareholding programmes

Board of Directors

Fees	for	members	of	the	Board	of	Directors	are	set	down	in	the	Compensation	Guidelines	(as	an	

annex	to	the	Organizational	Guidelines).

The	honorarium	for	a	regular	member	of	the	Board	of	Directors	has	long	remained	unchanged	at	

CHF	80,000	per	annum.	

The	Chairman	of	the	Board	of	Directors	receives	an	honorarium	of	CHF	240,000	per	annum.	The	

Vice-Chairman	of	the	Board	of	Directors,	who	also	acts	as	chairman	of	the	Audit	Committee,	receives	

an	honorarium	of	CHF	160,000	p.a.

Executive Board

The	compensation	packages	of	all	members	of	the	Executive	Board	are	set	by	the	full	Board	of	

Directors	on	the	recommendation	of	the	Compensation	Committee.	Each	member’s	total	compensa-

tion	consists	of	a	basic	salary	and	a	performance-related	bonus.	The	focus	of	performance-related	

bonus	is	linked	to	the	attainment	of	clearly	measurable	targets	set	at	the	beginning	of	the	year.	On	

achieving	the	defined	targets,	the	respective	member	of	the	Executive	Board	shall	receive	a	prede-

termined	percentage	of	his	basic	salary	as	a	bonus.	In	cases	where	the	targets	set	in	the	member’s	

respective	area	of	responsibility	are	exceeded	–	and	the	Group	targets	are	also	achieved	–	a	sum	up	

to	a	maximum	of	double	the	bonus	may	be	paid.

In	addition,	the	Board	of	Directors	approved	an	option	programme	for	senior	management	for	

2006.	The	allocation	of	options	is	made	on	the	basis	of	stock	option	plans	set	up	each	year	and	agreed	

in	writing.	 The	 conditions	 regarding	exercising	are	defined	on	allocation	of	 the	options,	with	no	

subsequent	changes	being	made	and	 in	particular	no	re-pricing.	The	management	of	the	Ascom	

Stock	Option	Plans	is	the	responsibility	of	the	Board	of	Directors.

In	2006,	the	members	of	the	Executive	Board	received	options	worth	20	%	of	the	total	of	their	

basic	salaries	and	target	bonuses.	The	value	of	the	options	was	determined	by	an	independent	third	

party.	

	

ß

ß
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Compensation for acting members of governing bodies

The following compensations were paid in 2006:

Board of Directors

The	members	of	the	Board	of	Directors	were	paid	compensation	totaling	CHF	860,000	in	2006.	

	
CHF

Juhani	Anttila,	Chairman	 240,000

Paul	E.	Otth,	Vice-Chairman	 160,000

Dr	J.	T.	Bergqvist	 80,000

Dr	Wolfgang	Kalsbach 80,000

Dr	Rolf	A.Meyer 80,000

Dr	Axel	Paeger 80,000

Pierre	Roy (since	6.4.2006) 59,000

Adrian	Schmassmann (since	6.4.2006) 59,000

Beat	Näf (until	6.4.2006) 22,000

Executive Board 

The	total	of	five	members	active	in	the	Executive	Board	in	fiscal	2006	were	paid	a	total	of	CHF	

2,531,000	(for	members	leaving	the	Board	in	the	course	of	the	year,	the	total	amount	includes	com-

pensation	during	their	term	of	office	including	all	employer’s	contributions	to	the	occupational	pen-

sion	 scheme)	 (2005:	 CHF	 4,349,000).	 The	 total	 amount	 includes	 employer’s	 contributions	 to	 the	

pension	scheme	for	an	amount	of	CHF	185,000,	termination	benefits	amounting	to	CHF	32,000	and	

provisions	in	respect	of	the	bonus	payments	of	the	three	Executive	Board	members	in	office	as	of	

balance	sheet	date.	In	addition	the	members	of	the	Executive	Board	received	in	total	135,400	options	

(Ascom	Stock	Option	Plan	2006).	

Executive	Board	members’	bonus	claims	for	2006	will	be	calculated	and	paid	in	2007	after	ap-

proval	of	the	annual	financial	statements.	The	criteria	governing	payment	of	the	2006	bonus	are	

measurable	and	contractually	regulated.

The	highest	total	compensation	within	the	Executive	Board	is	paid	to	the	CEO.	The	total	amount	

for	2006	came	to	CHF	864,000.	This	figure	includes	provisions	for	the	bonus	claims	for	fiscal	2006.	

The	CEO	was	also	allocated	60,300	options	under	the	Ascom	Stock	Option	Plan	2006.

Former members of the Executive Board 

Former	members	of	the	Executive	Board	Urs	Ramseier	and	Daniel	Roth	were	paid	a	total	of	CHF	

639,000	in	2006	in	compliance	with	contractual	commitments,	thereby	settling	all	claims.

Share allotment in the year under review

Ascom	Holding	Ltd.	allotted	no	shares	in	2006.

Share ownership

The	number	of	Ascom	Holding	Ltd.	shares	held	as	of	31	December	2006	was:

All	members	of	the	Board	of	Directors	and	parties	closely	 linked	to	such	persons,	 in	toto:	62,506	

shares	

All	members	of	the	Executive	Board	and	parties	closely	linked	to	such	persons,	in	toto:	0	shares

ß

ß

ß

ß

ß
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Options

Ascom Stock Option Plan 2003

In accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 27	February	2003,	a	total	

of	560,000	options	were	issued	to	seven	members	of	Ascom’s	senior	management	on	1	March	2003,	

each	option	entitling	the	holder	to	purchase	one	share	with	a	nominal	value	of	CHF	10.	The	options	

have	a	life	of	four	years	and	are	subject	both	to	an	exercise	hurdle	(outperformance	of	the	SMI	index	

within	a	period	of	12	months)	and	to	a	blocking	period	(one	third	of	the	options	can	be	exercised	after	

one	year).	At	the	time	when	the	options	are	exercised,	the	participants	must	also	have	a	valid	employ-

ment	contract	with	an	Ascom	company	(truncation	clause).	The	strike	price	 is	CHF	2.67.	The	stock	

option	plan	includes	a	customary	anti-dilution	clause.	With	the	agreement	of	all	entitled	parties,	the	

Board	of	Directors	decided	to	waive	the	application	of	this	clause	in	relation	to	the	capital	increase	of	

4	December	2003.	Accordingly,	there	has	been	no	reduction	in	the	strike	price	despite	provision	for	

this	in	the	contract	and	despite	the	fact	that	the	option	holders	would	have	been	entitled	to	such	a	

reduction.	Each	option	now	entitles	the	holder	to	buy	one	share	with	a	nominal	value	of	CHF	5.50	and	

the	strike	price	remains	unchanged.

In	2006,	all	remaining	201,670	options	were	exercised.	There	are	no	outstanding	options	pursuant	

to	the	Ascom	Stock	Option	Plan	2003.

Ascom stock option Plan 2004

In	accordance	with	the	resolution	passed	by	the	Board	of	Directors	on	2	July	2004,	a	total	of		

99,000	options	were	issued	to	seven	members	of	Ascom’s	senior	management	on	1	July	2004,	each	

option	entitling	the	holder	to	purchase	one	share	with	a	nominal	value	of	CHF	5.50.	The	strike	price	is	

CHF	14.21.

The	options	have	a	life	of	four	years	and	are	subject	both	to	an	exercise	hurdle	(outperformance	

of	the	SMI	index	within	a	period	of	12	months)	and	to	a	blocking	period	(one	third	of	the	options	can	

be	exercised	after	one	year).	At	the	time	when	the	options	are	exercised,	the	participants	must	also	

have	a	valid	employment	contract	with	an	Ascom	company	(truncation	clause).	

The	Board	of	Directors	resolved	on	30	June	2006	to	lower	the	strike	price	by	CHF	5	for	all	outstand-

ing	options	with	immediate	effect	due	to	the	capital	reduction	of	CHF	5	per	share.	The	strike	price	for	

all	options	with	regard	to	the	Ascom	Stock	Option	Plan	2004	was	fixed	at	CHF	9.21.

In	2006,	a	total	of	42,000	options	were	exercised.	A	further	4,000	options	became	nil	and	void	

due	to	the	employment	relationship	of	the	holders	having	ended.	There	are	thus	28,000	options	still	

outstanding	at	31	December	2006.

Ascom stock option Plan 2005

In	accordance	with	the	resolution	passed	by	the	Board	of	Directors	on	1	March	2005	and	27	June	

2005,	a	total	of	150,200	options	were	issued	to	seven	members	of	Ascom’s	senior	management	on		

1	February	2005	and	1	July	2005	respectively,	each	option	entitling	the	holder	to	purchase	one	share	

with	a	nominal	value	of	CHF	5.50.	The	strike	price	is	CHF	22.25.	

The	options	have	a	life	of	four	years	and	are	subject	both	to	an	exercise	hurdle	(outperformance	

of	the	SMI	index	within	a	period	of	12	months)	and	to	a	blocking	period	to	31	January	2007.	

 106 Ascom FinAnciAl stAtements 2006 Group NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



The Board of Directors resolved on 30	June	2006	to	lower	the	strike	price	by	CHF	5	for	all	outstand-

ing	options	with	immediate	effect	due	to	the	capital	reduction	of	CHF	5	per	share.	The	strike	price	for	

all	options	with	regard	to	the	Ascom	Stock	Option	Plan	2005	was	fixed	at	CHF	17.25.

61,400	options	became	nil	and	void	due	to	the	employment	relationship	of	the	holders	having	

ended.	There	are	thus	88,800	options	still	outstanding	at	31	December	2006.	

Ascom Stock Option Plan 2006

In	accordance	with	the	resolution	passed	by	the	Board	of	Directors	on	6	April	2006	a	total	of	

135,400	options	were	issued	to	four	members	of	Ascom’s	senior	management	on	1	March	2006	and		

1	September	2006	respectively,	each	option	entitling	the	holder	to	purchase	one	share	with	a	nominal	

value	of	CHF	5.50	and	CHF	0.50	respectively.	The	strike	price	was	CHF	19.75	and	CHF	14.75	respectively.

The	options	have	a	life	of	four	years	and	are	subject	both	to	an	exercise	hurdle	(outperformance	

of	the	SMI	index	within	a	period	of	12	months)	and	to	a	blocking	period	to	28	February	2008.

The	Board	of	Directors	resolved	on	30	June	2006	to	lower	the	strike	price	by	CHF	5	for	all	outstand-

ing	options	with	immediate	effect	due	to	the	capital	reduction	of	CHF	5	per	share.	The	strike	price	for	

all	options	with	regard	to	the	Ascom	Stock	Option	Plan	2006	was	fixed	at	CHF	14.75.

29,200	options	became	nil	and	void	due	to	the	employment	relationship	of	the	holders	having	

ended.	There	are	thus	106,200	options	still	outstanding	at	31	December	2006.

Number of options

2006

Weighted strike price 

(CHF) 2006

Number of options

2005

Weighted strike price 

(CHF) 2005

Options	outstanding	at	1.1. 425,870 11.57 472,335 5.08

Granted 135,400 18.85 150,200 22.25

Exercised (243,670) 3.96 (184,665) 3.48

Forfeited (53,900) 15.30 (12,000) 14.21

Expired (40,700) 17.25 – –

Options	outstanding	at	31.12. 223,000 15.05 425,870 11.57

Exercisable	at	31.12. 12,000 9.21 35,000 9.26

2006 2005

Range	of	exercise	prices	(remaining	options) 9.21	–	17.25 2.67	–	22.25

Weighted-average	of	remaining	contract	duration	(years) 0.66 2.1

Weighted-average	of	fair	value	of	granted	options 5.62 6.53

Average	price	of	shares	(exercised) 18.74 20.41

Personnel	expenses	included	in	equity	(CHFm) 1.05 0.7
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The Enhanced American Model (binomial model) was used to determine the fair value, with the 

following parameters:

Strike price 

(CHF)

Price on  

issue date 

(CHF)

Vesting 

period 

(years)

Max. 

duration 

(years)

Volatility

( %)

Interest 

rate 

( %)

Dividend 

yield 

( %)

Withdrawal 

rate

( %)

Expected 

duration 

(years)

Allocation 2003 / I 2.67 2.20 2 4 64.2 1.16 0.67 8 3.11

Allocation 2003 / II 2.67 2.20 3 4 64.2 1.31 0.67 8 3.66

Allocation 2004 / I 14.21 14.80 1.325 4 69.2 1.76 1.08 8 2.40

Allocation 2004 / II 14.21 14.80 2 4 69.2 1.97 1.08 8 3.00

Allocation 2004 / III 14.21 14.80 3 4 69.2 2.12 1.08 8 3.61

Allocation 2005 / I 22.25 22.40 2 4 55.4 1.47 1.24 8 3.00

Allocation 2005 / II 22.25 19.05 1.6 3.6 55.4 1.12 1.45 8 2.63

Allocation 2006 / I 19.75 19.95 2 4 51.1 2.08 1.37 8 3.00

Allocation 2006 / II 14.75 13.00 1.5 3.5 51.7 2.30 1.54 8 2.50

The expected volatility was estimated using the historical, long-term volatility (in the case of the 2005	and	2006	
granting	also	weighted	with	the	implied	volatility)	over	a	ten-year	period	to	the	issue	date.

The	market-related	exercise	hurdle	(market	condition)	was	taken	into	account	in	calculating	the	fair	value	of	the	
options.

For	all	outstanding	options	from	the	ASOP	plan	2004,	2005	and	2006	the	strike	price	was	lowered	by	CHF	5	on	
30	June	2006	due	to	the	capital	reduction	of	CHF	5	per	share.	Due	to	the	modification	of	the	strike	price,		
an	incremental	fair	value	of	383,427	resulting	from	this	change	was	determined	at	the	modification	date	using		
the	Enhanced	American	Model	(binomial	model).

Loans to members of governing bodies

No	loans	were	extended	to	members	of	the	Board	of	Directors	or	Executive	Board	in	2006.

30.	ASSETS	AND	LIABILITIES	HELD	FOR	SALE	AND	DISCONTINUED	OPERATIONS

The	activities	of	Network	Integration	Italy	have	been	sold	to	Technomatica	Italia	S.p.A	on	1	De-

cember	2006.	The	result	of	these	activities	is	shown	as	result	from	discontinued	operations.

For	the	activities	of	Toll	France	and	Hong	Kong	(part	of	the	former	Transport	Revenue	segment)	

management	is	actively	looking	for	a	potential	buyer.	The	sale	of	these	activities	is	expected	to	take	

place	in	the	next	12	months.	The	assets	and	liabilities	are	therefore	considered	to	be	held	for	sale.	The	

results	of	these	activities	are	included	in	the	results	from	discontinued	operations.

The	non	operational	property	in	Switzerland	that	was	held	for	sale	at	the	end	of	2005	has	been	

sold	during	2006.
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Assets and liabilities held for sale

CHFm Real Estate NI CH NI B/D 1 Transport 

Revenue

Powerline Com-

munications

31.12.2005

ASSETS Property, plant and equipment 27.8 – – – – 27.8

Non-current assets 27.8 – – – – 27.8

Inventories and work in process – – 1.0 – – 1.0

Trade receivables – – 2.4 1.0 – 3.4

Other current assets – 7.0 – 49.9 0.2 57.1

Current assets – 7.0 3.4 50.9 0.2 61.5

Total assets 27.8 7.0 3.4 50.9 0.2 89.3

LIABILITIES Long-term liabilities – – – 0.9 0.1 1.0

Short-term liabilities – 10.6 3.0 51.9 0.3 65.8

Total liabilities – 10.6 3.0 52.8 0.4 66.8

1 comprises activities of network integration in Germany and Belgium

CHFm NI B/D/CH1 NI Italy Transport 

Revenue

Powerline Com-

munications

Toll 31.12.2006

ASSETS Property, plant and equipment – – – – 0.3 0.3

Non-current assets – – – – 0.3 0.3

Inventories and work in process – – – – 5.0 5.0

Trade receivables 0.4 – – – 6.8 7.2

Other current assets – 4.2 0.3 0.3 0.5 5.3

Current assets 0.4 4.2 0.3 0.3 12.3 17.5

Total assets 0.4 4.2 0.3 0.3 12.6 17.8

LIABILITIES Long-term liabilities 0.7 – 1.8 – 2.2 4.7

Short-term liabilities 2.2 0.6 9.9 – 10.4 23.1

Total liabilities 2.9 0.6 11.7 – 12.6 27.8

1 comprises activities of network integration Germany, Belgium and switzerland incl. divisional headquarters

The assets and liabilities held for sale are valued at book value or fair value minus selling costs if lower.  

No revaluations were made.
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Further information on discontinued operations

CHFm NI CH/B/D1 NI Italy Transport

Revenue

Powerline

Communi-

cations

Toll 2005

Incoming orders 67.8 120.4 348.5 1.1 17.6 555.4

Order backlog 5.3 24.7 144.9 0.1 20.5 195.5

Revenue 83.0 116.8 231.2 3.7 18.5 453.2

Cost of goods sold (63.7) (95.9) (167.7) (1.9) (16.9) (346.1)

Gross profit 19.3 20.9 63.5 1.8 1.6 107.1

Marketing and distribution (17.3) (10.7) (17.5) (1.5) (1.6) (48.6)

Research and development (0.4) – (6.0) (1.6) (1.0) (9.0)

Administration (3.2) (2.1) (14.3) (0.3) (1.4) (21.3)

operating result (1.6) 8.1 25.7 (1.6) (2.4) 28.2

Amortisation of intangible assets – – (0.1) – – (0.1)

Other income/(expenses), net (3.3) (1.8) (0.6) 1.5 (0.6) (4.8)

Profit	from	divestment 21.0 – 76.5 –	 – 97.5

Profit before interest and taxes (ebit) 16.1 6.3 101.5 (0.1) (3.0) 120.8

Net	financial	income/(expenses) 0.8 (0.2) (0.2) 0.3 – 0.7

Profit	before	income	taxes	of	discontinued	operations (4.1) 6.1 24.8 0.2 (3.0) 24.0

Profit	before	income	taxes	of	divestment 21.0 – 76.5 – – 97.5

Profit before taxes 16.9 6.1 101.3 0.2 (3.0) 121.5

Income	taxes	on	profit	from	operations (0.4) (1.6) (2.4) – – (4.4)

Income	taxes	on	profit	from	divestment – – (0.3) – – (0.3)

Profit from discontinued operations 16.5 4.5 98.6 0.2 (3.0) 116.8

Earnings	per	share	in	CHF – – – – – 3.26

Diluted	earnings	per	share	in	CHF – – – – – 3.24

Cash	flow	from	operating	activities	in	CHFm (14.6) 9.4 53.6 3.0 (2.6) 48.8

Cash	flow	from	investment	activities	in	CHFm 38.3 (0.3) 102.6 – (0.1) 140.5

Cash	flow	from	financing	activities	in	CHFm 0.1 – (1.0) – – (0.9)

1includes activities of network integration switzerland incl. divisional headquarters, Belgium and Germany    
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CHFm NI Italy Transport

Revenue

Toll Other1 2006

Incoming orders 89.3 0.3 12.5 3.5 105.6

Order backlog – – 15.3 0.4 15.7

Revenue 82.1 0.3 18.2 3.7 104.3

Cost of goods sold (68.6) (0.3) (22.4) (3.4) (94.7)

Gross profit 13.5 – (4.2) 0.3 9.6

Marketing and distribution (9.5) – (1.4) (0.5) (11.4)

Research and development – – (0.6) – (0.6)

Administration (2.0) – (1.9) (0.4) (4.3)

operating result 2.0 – (8.1) (0.6) (6.7)

Amortisation of intangible assets – – – – –

Other income/(expenses), net (1.3) 2.8 (1.0) 2.8 4.6

Profit	from	divestment (11.4) – – – (12.7)

Profit before interest and taxes (ebit) (10.7) 2.8 (9.1) 2.2 (14.8)

Net	financial	income/(expenses) – – (0.2) – (0.2)

Profit	before	income	taxes	of	discontinued	operations 0.7 2.8 (9.3) 2.2 (3.6)

Profit	before	income	taxes	of	divestment (11.4) – – – (11.4)

Profit before taxes (10.7) 2.8 (9.3) 2.2 (15.0)

Income	taxes	on	profit	from	operations (1.1) – – – (1.1)

Income	taxes	on	profit	from	divestment – – – – –

Profit from discontinued operations (11.8) 2.8 (9.3) 2.2 (16.1)

Loss	per	share	in	CHF – – – – (0.45)

Diluted	loss	per	share	in	CHF – – – – (0.45)

Cash	flow	from	operating	activities	in	CHFm (4.9) 0.7 (9.2) 1.1 (12.3)

Cash	flow	from	investment	activities	in	CHFm 29.9 17.7 (0.1) 7.3 54.8

Cash	flow	from	financing	activities	in	CHFm – – – – –

1comprises activities of network integration switzerland, Germany and Belgium and powerline communications   
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Divestments 2006

On December 1,	2006	Ascom	sold	the	Italian	Network	Integration	activities	for	an	amount	of	CHF	

36.7	million.	The	transaction	resulted	in	a	book	loss	of	CHF	11.4	million.	The	operational	results	for	the	

period	1	January	2006	until	30	November	2006	have	been	included	in	the	result	from	discontinued	

operations.

As	per	30	September	2006	Ascom	sold	the	activities	of	Ascodi	Industries	SAS.	The	sale	resulted	

in	a	small	book	result.	The	results	for	the	period	1	January	2006	until	30	September	2006	have	been	

included	in	the	consolidated	results.

CHFm Ni italy Manufacturing 

France

total

Total	amount	from	divestments 36.7 4.5 41.2

Of	which	cash	payment 31.6 4.5 36.1

Divested	assets	and	liabilities:

–	Cash	and	cash	equivalents 1.5 5.1 6.6

–	Property,	plant	and	equipment 2.3 3.6 5.9

–	Other	non-current	assets – 0.1 0.1

–	Inventories	and	work	in	process 21.6 (0.4) 21.2

–	Trade	receivables 49.7 2.4 52.1

–	Other	current	assets 8.8 0.2 9.0

–	Provisions (4.1) (1.1) (5.2)

–	Other	liabilities (32.9) (5.6) (38.5)

total divested assets, net 46.9 4.3 51.2

In	addition	Ascom	sold	its	German	Network	Integration	activity	with	a	transaction	loss	of	CHF	0.8	

million.	Furthermore	the	Powerline	Communications	activities	have	been	sold	with	a	transaction	gain	

of	CHF	1.0	million.

31. events occurrinG AFter the BAlAnce sheet dAte

Since	the	balance	sheet	date,	no	further	events	have	occurred	that	have	an	influence	on	the	2006	

financial	statements.

32. derivAtive FinAnciAl instruments

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Foreign	currencies	are	purchased	and	forward	contracts	are	entered	into	at	Group	level	as	a	hedge	

against	foreign	currency	risks	for	accounts	outstanding	or	planned.	These	derivative	financial	instru-

ments	are	classified	as	held	for	trading.	The	open	contracts	comprise	the	following	forward	exchange	

contracts	in	various	currencies:

CHFm 31.12.2006 31.12. 2005

Contract	volume 72.6 5.4

Positive	market	value 1.3 0.3

Negative	market	value 0.6 –
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Breakdown by currency (CHFm) 31.12. 2006 31.12. 2005

USD 5.5 3.7

EUR 62.7 1.2

GBP 4.1 0.5

Other 0.3 –

Total 72.6 5.4

The maximum credit risk corresponds to the aggregated positive market values. This risk is con-

sidered low since the counterparties are financial	institutions	of	good	standing.	The	positive	market	

values	are	included	under	other	current	assets,	the	negative	market	values	under	other	liabilities.	The	

changes	in	value	are	recognized	in	the	income	statement	under	financial	income	as	currency	gains/

losses.	

33. Future investments

Group	companies	have	various	investment	plans	that	are	required	within	the	context	of	normal	

business	operations.

34. continGent liABilities

A	 number	 of	 Group	 companies	 issue	 guarantees	 in	 connection	 with	 their	 ordinary	 business		

operations.	Provisions	are	made	for	guarantees	where	the	likelihood	of	fulfilment	is	probable.

For	the	other	contingent	liabilities	of	CHF	172.6	million	at	31	December	2006	(2005:	CHF	236.6	

million)	there	is	no	indication	that	these	guarantees	will	lead	to	fulfilment	payments.	Of	this	amount,	

CHF	49.6	million	(2005:	CHF	136.5	million)	pertains	to	discontinued	operations,	and	in	these	cases	re-

course	claims	can	be	asserted	against	the	buyer	of	these	operations.

35. domicile

Ascom	Holding	Ltd.,	the	parent	company	of	the	Group,	is	domiciled	in	Berne,	Switzerland.

36. time oF releAse For puBlicAtion

The	Board	of	Directors	approved	the	year-end	financial	statements	on	5	March	2007	and	gave	

permission	for	publication	at	the	media	conference	on	14	March	2007.

37. seGment inFormAtion

Segment	reporting	represents	the	current	set-up	of	the	Ascom	Group,	while	at	the	same	time	

allowing	comparisons	with	the	2005	reporting.	

The	segment	reporting	covers	the	Wireless	Solutions	and	Security	Solutions	divisions,	Special	

Products,	and	the	divested	activities	before	1	January	2005.	Wireless	Solutions	comprises	products	and	

services	 in	connection	with	client-specific	onsite	communication	solutions.	Security	Solutions	com-
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prises products and services in connection with solutions for security, communication, automation and 

control systems for traffic	infrastructure	operators,	institutions	of	the	public	safety	sector,	the	defence	

sector	and	Telcom	operations.	Special	Products	comprises	Payphones,	Manufacturing	France	and	the	

Real	Estate	operations.	The	segment	Corporate	includes	those	group	activities	that	cannot	be	assigned	

directly.

Key figures by segment (i) 

CHFm security solutions Wireless solutions special Products Corporate total continuing 

operations

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Incoming	orders 243.1 213.6 297.2 279.8 58.6 73.0 22.2 11.4 621.1 577.8

Order	backlog 161.5 111.8 70.7 58.3 12.3 26.7 0.1 0.1 244.6 196.9

Revenue 195.0 205.7 285.9 279.0 69.2 76.2 22.4 11.4 572.5 572.3

Of	which	with	other	segments – – – – 6.7 17.8 – – 6.7 17.8

Operating	result 7.3 3.1 32.4 29.9 1.5 2.4 (8.8) (17.9) 32.4 17.5

Restructuring	costs	included	therein – 1.4 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.1 1.6 1.7 4.5

Profit	before	interest	and	taxes	(EBIT) 2.2 (2.1) 27.6 21.3 (3.0) 6.2 2.6 (4.6) 29.4 20.8

Depreciation 3.0 2.0 8.3 12.8 1.6 5.3 0.9 1.3 13.8 21.4

EBITDA 5.2 (0.1) 35.9 34.1 (1.4) 11.5 3.5 (3.3) 43.2 42.2

Assets 96.2 117.3 138.2 134.1 34.2 116.5 204.9 304.5 473.5 672.4

Liabilities	of	third	parties 76.5 91.1 67.0 60.7 35.3 89.8 64.5 64.0 243.3 305.6

Investments	incl.	acquisitions 2.2 3.6 7.1 12.2 3.4 1.3 0.5 4.1 13.2 21.2

Employees 771 844 1,156 1,194 138 316 17 33 2,082 2,386

Key figures by segment (ii) 

CHFm divested activities 1 Consolidation 2 total Ascom

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Incoming	orders – – (6.3) (14.5) 614.8 563.3

Order	backlog – – (0.2) (0.7) 244.4 196.2

Revenue – – (7.6) (19.0) 564.9 553.3

Operating	result 0.6 (0.4) – – 33.0 17.1

Restructuring	costs	included	therein – – – – 1.7 4.5

Profit	before	interest	and	taxes	(EBIT) 3.6 10.6 – – 33.0 31.4

Depreciation – – – – 13.8 21.4

EBITDA 3.6 10.6 – – 46.8 52.8

Assets 1.4 0.1 17.8 89.3 492.8 761.8

Liabilities	of	third	parties	 1.6 4.0 27.8 66.8 272.7 376.5

Investments	incl.	acquisitions – – – – 13.2 21.3

Employees – – – – 2,082 2,386

1discontinued activities before 1 January 2005        

2or assets and liabilities of third parties of discontinued activities after 1 January 2005
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Further information on the segment Special Products 

CHFm Payphones Other 1 Total Special Products

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Incoming orders 30.1 31.5 28.5 41.5 58.6 73.0

Order backlog 12.3 16.8 – 9.9 12.3 26.7

Revenue 35.0 27.9 34.2 48.3 69.2 76.2

Of which with other segments – – 6.7 17.8 6.7 17.8

Operating result 2.3 2.7 (0.8) (0.3) 1.5 2.4

Restructuring costs included therein – – 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.7

Profit	before	interest	and	taxes	(EBIT)	 2.2 2.2 (5.2) 4.0 (3.0) 6.2

Depreciation 0.6 1.3 1.0 4.0 1.6 5.3

EBITDA 2.8 3.5 (4.2) 8.0 (1.4) 11.5

Assets 12.1 20.0 22.1 96.5 34.2 116.5

Liabilities	of	third	parties 14.6 26.9 20.7 62.9 35.3 89.8

Investments	incl.	acquisitions 0.2 1.2 3.2 0.1 3.4 1.3

Employees 107 104 31 212 138 316

1comprises the activities of manufacturing France and real estate 

Key figures by region

CHFm switzerland europe excl.switzerland rest of the world Group

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Incoming	orders 198 147 356 366 61 50 615 563

Revenue 151 145 354 364 60 44 565 553

Assets 104 96 190 281 8 9 3021 3861

Investments	incl.	acquisitions 2 6 11 15 – – 13 21

Employees 740 824 1,275 1,489 67 73 2,082 2,386

1excluding unallocated assets of chF 173 million (2005: chF 287 million) and discontinued operations    
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38. consolidAted compAnies

Country Company Location Capital Investment

Austria Ascom Austria GmbH Vienna EUR 3,634,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100  %

Belgium Ascom (Belgium) NV Brussels EUR 1,424,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Czech Republic Ascom (CZ) s.r.o. Prague CZK 200,000 Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 100 %

Denmark Ascom Danmark A/S Silkeborg DKK 1,200,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Finland Ascom (Finland) Oy Vantaa EUR 562,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

France Ascom SAS Guilherand-Granges EUR 5,000,000 Ascom Holding SA (F): 100 %

Ascom Holding SA (F) Guilherand-Granges EUR 9,600,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom (France) SA Nanterre EUR 2,000,000 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100 %

Ascom Multitoll Solutions SAS Orsay EUR 3,648,000 Ascom SAS: 100 %

Germany Ascom Deutschland GmbH Frankfurt/M. EUR 2,137,000 Ascom Unternehmensholding GmbH: 
99.76 %, Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 0.24 %

Technologiepark Teningen 
GmbH

Teningen EUR 6,136,000 Ascom Unternehmensholding GmbH: 
94 %, Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 6 %

Ascom GCT Grau-communica-
tions technology GmbH

Frankfurt/M. EUR 1,534,000 Ascom Unternehmensholding GmbH: 
94 %, Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 6 %

Ascom Unternehmens- 
holding GmbH

Frankfurt/M. EUR 5,113,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Hong Kong Ascom Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong HKD 1,500,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Mexico Ascom de México SA. de C.V. México, D.F. MXN 50,000 Ascom SAS: 100 %

Netherlands Ascom (Nederland) BV Utrecht EUR 1,361,000 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100 %

Ascom Finance BV Arnhem EUR 45,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Mocsa Real Estate BV Utrecht EUR 454,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom Tateco BV Hoofddorp EUR 18,000 Ascom (Nederland) BV: 100 %

SPT Wijk by Duurstede BV Utrecht EUR 18,000 Ascom (Nederland) BV: 100 %
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Country Company Location Capital Investment

Norway Ascom (Norway) A/S Oslo NOK 1,250,000 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100 %

Poland Ascom Poland Sp z o.o. Warsaw PLN 2,405,200 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Russia Letus ZAO St. Petersburg RUB 10,000 Ascom (Finland) Oy: 51 %

Sweden Ascom (Sweden) AB Gothenburg SEK 96,154,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 66.4 %, 
Ascom UK Group Ltd.: 33.6 %

Ascom Sweden Holding AB Gothenburg SEK 100,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Switzerland Adilan S.à.r.l. in Liquidation Geneva CHF 20,000 Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 100 %

AIWP AG in Liquidation Berne CHF 500,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom Favag AG Bevaix CHF 8,000,000 Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 100 %

Ascom Immobilien AG Berne CHF 2,400,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

BIWP AG in Liquidation Berne CHF 50,000,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom (Schweiz) AG Berne CHF 28,000,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Wolf Computer AG  
in Liquidation

Berne CHF 100,000 Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 100 %

UK Ascom Croydon Ltd. Croydon GBP 600,000 Ascom UK Group Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom Dartford Ltd. Croydon GBP 1,000,000 Ascom UK Group Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom Telecommunications 
Ltd. (in liquidation)

Croydon GBP 11,500,000 Ascom UK Group Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom (UK) Ltd. Sevenoaks GBP 50,000 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100 %

Ascom UK Group Ltd. Croydon GBP 5,000,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

USA Ascom Holding Inc. Rockaway NJ USD 10 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

Ascom (US) Inc. Morrisville NC USD 10 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100 %
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Report of the Group Auditors to the General Meeting 

of Ascom Holding Ltd., Berne

As auditors of the group, we have audited the consolidated financial	statements	(consolidated	

balance	sheet,	consolidated	income	statement,	consolidated	cash	flow	statement,	consolidated	state-

ment	of	changes	in	equity	and	notes	on	pages	66	to	117)	of	Ascom	Holding	Ltd.	for	the	year	ended		

31	December	2006.

These	consolidated	financial	statements	are	the	responsibility	of	the	board	of	directors.	Our	re-

sponsibility	is	to	express	an	opinion	on	these	consolidated	financial	statements	based	on	our	audit.	

We	confirm	that	we	meet	the	legal	requirements	concerning	professional	qualification	and	indepen-

dence.

Our	audit	was	conducted	 in	accordance	with	Swiss	Auditing	Standards	and	with	the	 Interna-

tional	Standards	on	Auditing,	which	require	that	an	audit	be	planned	and	performed	to	obtain	reason-

able	assurance	about	whether	the	consolidated	financial	statements	are	free	from	material	misstate-

ment.	We	have	examined	on	a	test	basis	evidence	supporting	the	amounts	and	disclosures	 in	the	

consolidated	financial	statements.	We	have	also	assessed	the	accounting	principles	used,	significant	

estimates	made	and	the	overall	consolidated	financial	statement	presentation.	We	believe	that	our	

audit	provides	a	reasonable	basis	for	our	opinion.

In	our	opinion,	the	consolidated	financial	statements	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	financial	

position,	the	results	of	operations	and	the	cash	flows	in	accordance	with	the	International	Financial	

Reporting	Standards	(IFRS)	and	comply	with	Swiss	law.

We	recommend	that	the	consolidated	financial	statements	submitted	to	you	be	approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers	AG

Stephen	W.	Williams	 	 Claudia	Muhlinghaus

Auditor	in	charge

Zurich,	5	March	2007
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Summary of Key Financial Data

CHFm 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Incoming orders 614.8 563.3 802.1 1,619.6 1,911.0

Order backlog 244.4 196.2 217.3 583.8 565.8

Revenue 564.9 553.3 838.2 1,514.9 2,066.1

Operating result 33.0 17.1 45.1 (27.2) (107.4)

(Loss)/profit	before	interest	and	taxes 33.0 31.4 42.0 (45.2) (230.7)

Personnel	expenses 239.7 256.1 317.2 583.1 795.4

Depreciation	and	amortisation 14.6 25.4 39.7 78.0 204.9

Group	profit/(loss) 17.1 144.8 46.9 (67.9) (281.2)

Net	cash	flow	from	operating	activities 14.9 41.0 44.9 54.2 105.4

Investments	in	property,	plant	and	equipment 13.5 17.1 14.0 23.8 51.9

Research	and	development	expenses 30.8 35.3 28.4 54.5 109.3

Balance	sheet	total 492.8 761.8 955.2 1,107.7 1,503.5

Non-current	assets 88.5 103.9 167.2 223.2 382.3

Non-current	assets	in		%	of	balance	sheet	total 18.0 13.6 17.5 20.1 25.4

Current	assets 404.3 657.9 788.0 884.5 1,121.2

Current	assets	in		%	of	balance	sheet	total 82.0 86.4 82.5 79.9 74.6

Inventories	and	work	in	process 51.5 70.0 108.1 146.8 316.8

Prepayments	from	customers 36.5 21.8 58.7 69.1 82.9

Equity 220.1 385.3 245.9 203.0 195.6

Equity	in		%	of	balance	sheet	total 44.7 50.6 25.7 18.3 13.0

Minority	interests 0.1 0.1 – 0.6 –

Minority	interests	in		%	of	balance	sheet	total – – – 0.1 –

Short-term	liabilities 226.7 319.2 619.4 573.3 920.8

Long-term	liabilities 46.0 57.3 89.9 330.8 387.1

Liabilities 272.7 376.5 709.3 904.1 1,307.9

Liabilities	in		%	of	balance	sheet	total 55.3 49.4 74.3 81.6 87.0

Cash	and	marketable	securities	less	
interest-bearing	liabilities	

166.1 279.1 134.3 55.0 (264.4)

Gearing1 n/a n/a n/a n/a 1.35

Dividend	paid –	2 10.1 9.9 – –

Number	of	employees 2,082 2,386 2,650 4,842 7,304

1 net interest-bearing debt / equity         

2 At the proposal of the Board of directors          
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in 1000 CHF 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

ASSETS Investments 174,586 286,550

Loans to Group companies 1,296 25,874

Non-current assets 175,882 312,424

Accounts receivable from Group companies 2,349 3,824

Accounts receivable from third parties 4,708 42,733

Prepaid expenses 489 1,646

Own shares 4,420 5,633

Cash and cash equivalents 101,222 217,247

Current assets 113,188 271,083

Total assets 289,070 583,507

LIABILITIES

AND 

EQUITy

Share capital 18,000 198,000

Legal reserves

– General reserves 5,400 600

– Reserve for own shares 4,420 5,633

Special reserve from capital increase 17,457 16,243

Retained earnings 87,836 95,569

Equity 133,113 316,045

Loans from Group companies 107,035 201,453

Other long-term liabilities 2,141 7,946

Long-term liabilities 109,176 209,399

Provisions 37,025 37,891

Accounts payable to Group companies 4,222 1,027

Accounts payable to third parties 3,492 10,877

Third-party accruals 2,042 8,268

Short-term liabilities 9,756 20,172

Total liabilities 155,957 267,462

Total liabilities and equity 289,070 583,507

ASCOM hOLdiNg Ltd. bALANCE ShEEt

Ascom FinAnciAl stAtements 2006 holdinG BALANCE SHEET 120



in 1000 CHF 2006 2005

Investment income 82,194 38,790

Profit	from	the	sale	of	non-current	assets 1,076 56,588

Financial	income 4,482 4,144

Other	income 6,505 10,230

Total income 94,257 109,752

Financial	expenses (5,384) (5,584)

Administration	expenses (6,447) (5,063)

Depreciation	and	value	adjustments	on	investments	and	loans (75,223) (4,692)

Profit for the year before taxes 7,203 94,413

Taxes (55) (40)

Profit for the year after taxes 7,148 94,373

iNCOME StAtEMENt
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1. General

Ascom Holding Ltd., Berne, which is listed on the Swiss stock exchange, is the holding company 

of the Ascom Group. The accounts are prepared in compliance with Swiss law. In the year under review 

there were no changes in the basic accounting policies compared with the prior year.

2. Accounting policies

Non-current assets: Investments and loans are recognized at cost less necessary provisions. Cur-

rency differences resulting from loans in foreign currencies are charged to the income statement. 

Provisions are recorded for unrealized currency gains. Current assets: The positions are valued at 

nominal value less necessary provisions. Liabilities: The positions are valued at nominal value. Effects 

on foreign currencies are charged to the income statement.

3. Contingent liabilities

Sureties, guarantees and pledges in respect of Group companies, third parties and associated 

companies total CHF 171.9	million	(2005:	CHF	233.5	million).	Of	this	amount,	CHF	120.6	million	(2005:	

CHF	95.3	million)	are	in	favour	of	Group	companies.	

4. investments and pledged assets 

Direct	and	indirect	investments	are	listed	in	Note	38	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements.	

Ascom	entered	into	a	new,	3	year	credit	facility	as	of	31	March	2006.	As	a	result	all	existing	pledges	

have	been	released.	As	of	31	December	2006	Ascom	has	no	pledges	related	to	credit	facilities.

5. own shares

Own	shares	held	by	Ascom	Holding	Ltd.	(Swiss	Code	of	Obligations	Art.	659b)	have	developed	as	

follows:

in 1000 CHF Number book value

Balance	at	1	January	2006 304,800 5,633

Additions	in	2006 54,800 849

Disposals	in	2006 (42,000) 						(426)

Reduction	in	nominal	value	of	share	capital	2006 – (1,636)

balance at 31 december 2006 317,600 4,420

Changes subject to disclosure requirements during the 2006 financial year 

In	an	announcement	dated	28	March	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	of	the	Stock	

Exchange	Act	(SESTA),	Tower	Equity	N.V.,	Curaçao;	Hyos	Invest	Holding	AG,	Zurich	and	AB	Eno	River	

Holding	AG,	Zug	(all	companies	wholly	owned	by	Erbengemeinschaft	Müller-Möhl,	Zurich)	disclosed	

that	the	share	of	Ascom	voting	rights	held	by	them	as	a	group	is	below	5	%	(SOGC	notice	of	25	April	

2006).

NOtES tO thE ANNUAL fiNANCiAL StAtEMENtS

 122 Ascom FinAnciAl stAtements 2006 holdinG NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



In an announcement dated 5 July 2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	SESTA,	Zurich	Can-

tonal	Bank,	Zurich,	disclosed	that	it	holds	Ascom	shares	accounting	for	5.01	%	of	voting	rights	(SOGC	

notice	of	12	July	2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	7	July	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	SESTA,	Zurich	Can-

tonal	Bank,	Zurich,	disclosed	that	its	share	of	Ascom	voting	rights	is	below	5	%	(SOGC	notice	of	14	July	

2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	24	 July	2006,	published	 in	 compliance	with	Art.	 20	SESTA,	Zurich	

Cantonal	Bank,	Zurich,	disclosed	that	it	holds	Ascom	shares	accounting	for	5.00	%	of	voting	rights	(SOGC	

notice	of	28	July	2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	4	August	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	SESTA,	Zurich	

Cantonal	Bank,	Zurich,	disclosed	its	share	of	Ascom	voting	rights	is	below	5	%	(SOGC	notice	of	10	August	

2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	28	August	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	SESTA,	Zurich	

Cantonal	Bank,	Zurich,	disclosed	that	it	holds	Ascom	shares	accounting	for	5.16	%	of	voting	rights	(SOGC	

notice	of	14	September	2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	19	September	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	SESTA,	The	

Trident	European	Fund,	George	Town,	Cayman	Islands,	disclosed	that	it	holds	Ascom	shares	accounting	

for	5.01	%	of	voting	rights	(SOGC	notice	of	26	September	2006).

In	an	announcement	dated	18	December	2006,	published	in	compliance	with	Art.	20	SESTA,	Zur-

ich	Cantonal	Bank,	Zurich,	disclosed	that	its	share	of	Ascom	voting	rights	is	below	5	%	(SOGC	notice	of	

28	December	2006).

Significant shareholders (as recorded in the share register)

The	following	significant	shareholders	as	defined	by	Art.	663c	of	the	Swiss	Code	of	Obligations,	

holding	more	than	5	%	of	share	capital,	were	recorded	in	the	share	register	at	31	December	2006:

Hasler	Works	Foundation,	Berne 8.46		%

Sterling	Strategic	Value	Ltd.,	Tortola	BVI 5.11		%

Three	further	shareholders	were	entered	in	the	share	register	with	holdings	of	more	than	2	%	of	

share	capital.	

This	does	not	cover	shares	which	are	not	registered	in	the	share	register	(Dispo	shares).	

There	are	no	known	shareholders’	agreements.
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Assets

Investments include shares in Group companies amounting to CHF 173.6	million	(2005:	CHF	285.6	

million).	The	decrease	in	investments	is	primarily	attributable	to	the	sale	of	the	Group	company	in	

Italy	and	capital	redemptions	in	Switzerland	and	France.

Of	the	loans	to	Group	companies,	CHF	0.7	million	are	denominated	in	CZK,	and	CHF	0.6	million	in	

GBP.	

Accounts	receivable	 from	Group	companies	consist	mainly	of	short-term	receivables	denomi-

nated	in	CHF	and	EUR.	Third-party	receivables	primarily	include	outstanding	payments	due	on	the	sale	

of	the	Group	company	in	Italy.

	

Liabilities and equity 

Due	to	the	decrease	of	own	shares,	CHF	1.2	million	was	transferred	from	the	reserves	for	own	

shares	to	the	special	reserve.

In	 the	year	under	 review,	 loans	 from	Group	companies	 reduced	sharply,	primarily	due	 to	 the	

offset	of	dividends	received	and	loans	receivable.	The	remaining	loans	are	denominated	mainly	in	CHF	

and	EUR.

The	provisions	primarily	cover	general	valuation	risks	and	warranties	from	the	sale	of	companies	

as	well	as	receivables	risks	and	unrealized	foreign	currency	differences.

Based	on	a	syndicated	bank	agreement,	a	combined	cash	and	guarantee	line	of	total	CHF	100	

million	has	been	made	available	to	Ascom	Holding	Ltd.

Income statement

Income	from	investments	increased	due	to	a	higher	amount	of	dividends	distributed	by	Group	

companies.	The	profit	 from	the	sale	of	non-current	assets	 resulted	 from	the	divestment	of	Group	

companies	and	 the	 sale	of	 third	party	 investments.	Other	 income	 includes	mainly	 trademark	 fees	

charged	to	Group	companies.	

The	small	decrease	in	financial	expenses	results	on	the	one	hand	from	the	absence	of	interest	on	

the	bond,	on	the	other	hand	exchange	losses	have	arisen.	The	increase	in	administration	expenses	was	

mainly	caused	by	management	fees	(stewardship	portion).	The	administration	expenses	include	CHF	

1.3	million	(2005:	CHF	1.3	million)	of	personnel	related	costs.

In	2006,	significant	depreciation	and	value	adjustments	on	 investments	and	 loans	arose	as	a	

result	of	value	corrections	on	investment	book	values	due	to	significant	dividend	payouts	(included	

in	income	from	investments)	and	of	losses	from	the	sale	of	Group	companies.

Taxes	comprise	capital	taxes	only.

Annual result

	In	2006,	Ascom	Holding	Ltd.	posted	net	income	of	CHF	7.1	million	(2005:	CHF	94.4	million),	while	

Ascom	Group	recorded	a	consolidated	group	profit	of	CHF	17	million	(2005:	CHF	145	million).

COMMENtS ON thE fiNANCiAL StAtEMENtS
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Report of the Statutory Auditors to the General Meeting 

of Ascom Holding Ltd., Berne

As statutory auditors, we have audited the accounting records and the financial	 statements	

(balance	sheet,	income	statement	and	notes	on	pages	120	to	124)	of	Ascom	Holding	Ltd.	for	the	year	

ended	31	December	2006.

These	financial	statements	are	the	responsibility	of	the	board	of	directors.	Our	responsibility	is	

to	express	an	opinion	on	these	financial	statements	based	on	our	audit.	We	confirm	that	we	meet	the	

legal	requirements	concerning	professional	qualification	and	independence.

Our	audit	was	conducted	in	accordance	with	Swiss	Auditing	Standards,	which	require	that	an	

audit	be	planned	and	performed	to	obtain	reasonable	assurance	about	whether	the	financial	state-

ments	are	free	from	material	misstatement.	We	have	examined	on	a	test	basis	evidence	supporting	

the	amounts	and	disclosures	in	the	financial	statements.	We	have	also	assessed	the	accounting	prin-

ciples	used,	significant	estimates	made	and	the	overall	financial	statement	presentation.	We	believe	

that	our	audit	provides	a	reasonable	basis	for	our	opinion.

In	our	opinion,	the	accounting	records,	the	financial	statements	and	the	proposed	appropriation	

of	available	earnings	comply	with	Swiss	law	and	the	company’s	articles	of	incorporation.

We	recommend	that	the	financial	statements	submitted	to	you	be	approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers	AG

Stephen	W.	Williams	 	 Patrick	Riner

Auditor	in	charge

Zurich,	5	March	2007
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prOpOSAL fOr thE ApprOpriAtiON Of rEtAiNEd EArNiNgS 2006

in CHF 2006 2005

Retained earnings from previous year 80,688,459 1,195,630

Profit 7,147,979 94,372,829

Retained earnings 87,836,438 95,568,459

Allocation	to	legal	reserves – (4,800,000)

Distribution	of	dividend – (10,080,000)

Balance	carried	forward 87,836,438 80,688,459
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in CHF 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Dividend per share

Registered shares CHF 0.50 –1 0.28 0.275 – –

Equity per share2

Registered shares CHF 10 – – – – 8.73

Registered shares CHF 0.50 6.17 10.70 6.84 5.64 –

Profit/(loss) per share2

Registered shares CHF 10 – – – – (10.53)

Registered shares CHF 0.50 0.48 4.04 1.30 (2.50) –

stock quote high/low

Registered shares CHF 10 – – – – 34/2.25

Registered shares CHF 0.50 20.65/12.00 22.95/16.55 19.00/9.38 10.13/1.623 –

taxable values

1.1.2007 1.1.2006 1.1.2005 1.1.2004 1.1.2003

Registered shares CHF 10 – – – – 4

Registered shares CHF 0.50 15.35 18.65 19.00 9.36 –

Number of shares/PC

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Participation certificates – – – – 83

Registered	shares	 CHF	10 – – – 22,500,000

Registered	shares	 CHF	0.50 36,000,000 36,000,000 36,000,000 36,000,000 –

of which own shares

Registered	shares	 CHF	10 – – – – 101,029

Registered	shares	 CHF	0.50 317,600 304,800 60,000 – –

1proposed by the Board of directors            

2based on the consolidated Financial statements (excluding own shares)         

3adjusted
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AUSTRIA

Ascom Austria GmbH P. Bernhofer Lemböckgasse 49, 1230 Vienna

+43 I 1 811 77 0 I Fax 1 811 77 10

info@ascom.at

BELGIUM

Ascom (Belgium) NV F. Humbeeck Raketstraat 64, 1130 Brussels

+32 I 2 727 13 11 I Fax 2 727 13 00

direction@ascom.be

CZECH REPUBLIC

Ascom (CZ) s.r.o. J. Polàk Zemské právo 1199/5, 102 00 Prague 10

+420 I 267 219 512 I Fax 267 219 511

info@ascom.cz

DENMARK

Ascom Danmark A/S E. Beiter Roskildevej 342c, 2630 Tåstrup

+45 I 70 20 38 83 I Fax 70 20 38 82

info@ascom.dk

FINLAND

Ascom (Finland) Oy J. Kettunen Ensimmäinen Savu, 01510 Vantaa

+358 I 9 825 901 I Fax 9 825 902 09

info@ascom.fi

FRANCE

Ascom	SAS	 J.P.	Manson Rue	Claude-Chappe,	07503	Guilherand-Granges		

+33	I	475	81	41	41	I	Fax	475	81	41	09

info@ascom.fr

Ascom	(France)	SA Ph.	Chevalier 28,	Avenue	de	l’Île	Saint-Martin,	92024	Nanterre-Cedex		

+33	I	8	11	90	20	10	I	Fax	1	47	69	64	52

info@ascom.fr

Ascom	Multitoll	Solutions	SAS C.	Defay 18	–	20,	Rue	Jean	Rostand,	ZAC	des	Vignes,	91400	Orsay		

+33	I	1	69	33	15	20	I	Fax	1	69	85	31	42

acm@atolltech.fr

GERMANY

Ascom	Deutschland	GmbH J.	Gebauer Edisonstrasse	11-13,	60388	Frankfurt		

+49	I	6109	738	0	I	Fax	6109	738	333		

info@ascom.de

HONG	KONG

Ascom	Hong	Kong	Ltd. M.	Ho Suites	1905-7,	19th	Floor,	Asian	House,	1	Hennessy	Road,	Wanchai,	Hong	Kong

+852	I	2830	9813	I	Fax	2895	4558

iMpOrtANt grOUp COMpANiES
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MEXICO

Ascom de México S.A. de C.V. J. C. Destombes Kansas 38, Col. Napoles, 03810 México, D.F. 

+52 I 5 682 33 33 I Fax 5 682 17 16 

jean-claude.destombes@ascom.com

NETHERLANDS

Ascom (Nederland) BV C. Hoonhoud Savannahweg 31, Postbus 40242, 3504 AA Utrecht

+31 I 30 240 91 00 I Fax 30 341 19 46 

info@ascom.nl

NORWAY

Ascom (Norway) A/S B. Barbogen Brobekkveien 80, Postboks 73, Grorud, 0905 Oslo 9 

+47 I 23 24 77 00 I Fax 22 64 74 40

firmapost@ascom.no

POLAND

Ascom	Poland	SP.	z	o.o. K.	Durczak ul.	Farbiarska	71a,	02-862	Warsaw

+48	I	22	544	22	00	I	Fax	22	544	22	05	

ascom@ascom.com.pl

RUSSIA

Letus	ZAO V.	G.	Mishenkov bld.	5,	of.	106,	Metrostroevtsev	street,	198035	St-Petersburg		

+7	I	812	783	24	68	I	Fax	812	783	24	68	122

info@letus.ru

SWEDEN

Ascom	(Sweden)	AB B.	Nordén Grimbodalen	2,	P.O.	Box	8783,	40276	Gothenburg

+46	I	31	55	94	00	I	Fax	31	55	20	31

info@ascom.se

SWITZERLAND

Ascom	Holding	Ltd. F.	Mumenthaler Belpstrasse	37,	3000	Bern	14

+41	I	31	999	11	11	I	Fax	31	999	23	00

ask-ascom@ascom.ch

Ascom	(Schweiz)	AG F.	Mumenthaler Belpstrasse	37,	3000	Bern	14

+41	I	31	999	11	11	I	Fax	31	999	23	00

ask-ascom@ascom.ch

UK

Ascom	(UK)	Ltd. J.	Burns Clockhouse	Court,	45	Westerham	Road,	Sevenoaks,	Kent	TN13	2QB		

+44	I	1732	742	014	I	Fax	1732	455	865	

sales@ascomws.co.uk

USA

Ascom	(US)	Inc. C.	West 598	Airport	Blvd,	Suite	300,	Morrisville,	NC	27560

+1	I	919	234	25	00	I	Fax	919	234	25	26

info@ascomwireless.com
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dAtES ANd CONtACtS

Important dates 2007

16	April	2007

Annual	General	Meeting

BEAexpo,	Berne

5	September	2007

Presentation	of	2007	half-year	results

SWX	Swiss	Exchange,	Zurich

Contact addresses

Ascom Head office

Ascom	(Schweiz)	AG	

Belpstrasse	37	|	CH-3000	Berne	14	

T	+41	31	999	11	11	|	F	+41	31	999	23	00	

ask-ascom@ascom.com	|	www.ascom.com

Ascom Corporate Media office

Ascom	(Schweiz)	AG

Daniel	Lack,	General	Secretary	and	Press	Officer

Belpstrasse	37	|	CH-3000	Berne	14

T	+41	31	999	43	44	|	F	+41	31	999	21	17

media@ascom.com	|	www.ascom.com

Ascom Corporate Finance and

investor relations

Ascom	(Schweiz)	AG	

Alberto	Romaneschi,	Chief	Financial	Officer	

Belpstrasse	37	|	CH-3000	Berne	14	

T	+41	55	254	69	00	|	F	+41	55	254	69	21

investor@ascom.com	|	www.ascom.com
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Declaration of Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains statements that constitute “forward-looking statements” relating 

to Ascom. Because these forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, the read-

er is cautioned that actual future results may differ from those expressed in or implied by the state-

ments, which constitute projections of possible developments. All forward-looking statements are 

based only on data available to Ascom at the time of preparing the Annual Report.

This Annual Report is also available in German. For the general part and Corporate Governance, 

the German version is binding, for the fi nancial section, the English version is binding. The full Annual 

Report of the Ascom Group can be viewed online at:

http://www.ascom.com/report
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